DR.1733

COO-4635-1

THE GEOTHERMAL LOAN GUARANTY PROGRAM AND ITS IMPACT ON GEOTHERMAL EXPLORATION AND DEVELOPMENT

By Louise H. Nasr

May 1978

Work Performed Under Contract No. ET-78-C-02-4635



Colorado School of Mines Golden, Colorado



U. S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY Geothermal Energy

DISCLAIMER

This report was prepared as an account of work sponsored by an agency of the United States Government. Neither the United States Government nor any agency Thereof, nor any of their employees, makes any warranty, express or implied, or assumes any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of any information, apparatus, product, or process disclosed, or represents that its use would not infringe privately owned rights. Reference herein to any specific commercial product, process, or service by trade name, trademark, manufacturer, or otherwise does not necessarily constitute or imply its endorsement, recommendation, or favoring by the United States Government or any agency thereof. The views and opinions of authors expressed herein do not necessarily state or reflect those of the United States Government or any agency thereof.

DISCLAIMER

Portions of this document may be illegible in electronic image products. Images are produced from the best available original document.

DISCLAIMER

"This book was prepared as an account of work sponsored by an agency of the United States Government. Neither the United States Government nor any agency thereof, nor any of their employees, makes any warranty, express or implied, or assumes any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of any information, apparatus, product, or process disclosed, or represents that its use would not infringe privately owned rights. Reference herein to any specific commercial product, process, or service by trade name, trademark, manufacturer, or otherwise, does not necessarily constitute or imply its endorsement, recommendation, or favoring by the United States Government or any agency thereof. The views and opinions of authors expressed herein do not necessarily state or reflect those of the United States Government or any agency thereof."

This report has been printed directly from copy supplied by the originating organization. Although the copy supplied may not in part or whole meet the standards for acceptable reproducible copy, it has been used for reproduction to expedite distribution and availability of the information being reported.

Available from the National Technical Information Service, U. S. Department of Commerce, Springfield, Virginia 22161.

Price: Paper Copy \$13.00 Microfiche \$3.50

> Printed in the United States of America USDOE Technical Information Center, Oak Ridge, Tennessee

THE GEOTHERMAL LOAN GUARANTY PROGRAM AND ITS IMPACT ON GEOTHERMAL EXPLORATION AND DEVELOPMENT

Louise H. Nasr

May 1978

Colorado School of Mines Golden, Colorado 80401

Prepared For

U.S. Department of Energy Under Contract No. ET-78-C-02-4635





ABSTRACT

The study provides an evaluation of the impact of the Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program on geothermal development in the United States. The report includes an assessment of the program's impact on private and public decision making for investment in geothermal resource development.

The legislative background, the current and potential applications, the operating procedures, and the review process of the Loan Guaranty Program are examined. Current problems resulting from external factors affecting the program (e.g. the ERDA-DOE transition, leasing practices, environmental regulations) are also presented.

The research methodology consisted of personal interviews with representatives of the financial community, the geothermal industry, and the utility companies. Government documents were reviewed for pertinent material. The perspective of lending institutions, private industry, and utility companies, were assessed and the conclusions were arrived at by the author as a result of an evaluation of the foregoing.

iii

The study showed that the Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program has had only a negligible effect on geothermal development and the response to the program was far less than expected. The streamlining of environmental regulations and leasing policies, and the granting of intangible drilling cost writeoffs and depletion allowances to operators would have had a greater impact on geothermal energy development. The loan guaranty program did not promote the undertaking of any new projects that would not have been undertaken without it. The program only accelerated the pace for some development which might have commenced in the future.

Included in the study are recommendations for improving the operation of the program thereby increasing its attractiveness to potential applicants.

iv

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.44.1.4

<u>P</u>	age
INTRODUCTION	1
Data Sources and Method of Analysis	2
Study Organization	4
STATE OF THE ART - GEOTHERMAL ENERGY OVERVIEW	7
Resource Potential	10
Leasing	13
Drilling Activity	15
Status of Geothermal Prospects	17
Nonelectric Utilization	22
Industry Structure	25
Financial Arrangements	28
Government and Geothermal Development	30
THE GEOTHERMAL LOAN GUARANTY PROGRAM (GLGP)	11
Legislation and Objectives	41
Budgetary Allocation	4 5
Current Status of the Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program4	17
Application Processing5	58
EXTERNALITIES EFFECTING THE GEOTHERMAL LOAN GUARANTY PROGRAM7	70
General Overview7	1
ERDA-DOE Transition7	2

v

Page

Leasing 76
Environmental Regulations 77
Demonstration Program 79
EVALUATING THE GLGP: ATTITUDES AND PERSPECTIVES 83
Industry's Evaluation 84
Utility Evaluation 89
Lending Institutions 90
Author's Evaluation 92
Problems of the GLGP 98
Where Are the Applicants? 99
CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS101
Conclusions107
Recommendations108
REFERENCES
BIBLIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION120
APPENDICES124

LIST OF FIGURES

Page

1.	Geothermal Resources Development	18
2.	Required Temperature of Geothermal Fluids for Various Nonelectrical Applications	24
3.	Flow Chart of Application Processing	60
4.	Geothermal Loan Guaranty Flow Diagram, ERDA	68
5.	Geothermal Loan Guaranty Flow Diagram, ERDA	69
6.	Flow Chart of Critical Path in Geothermal Exploration	78
7.	Lending Institutions and Their Interest in ERDA's Loan Guaranty Programs	91

and and as it is a subscription of and a state of a state of a subscription of a subscription of a subscription

There is a start of the same

And the second second

LIST OF TABLES

A. 4. 4. 4. 4.

Page

1.	Worldwide Approximate Electric and Nonelectric Use of Geothermal Energy, 1976	8
2.	Existing and Expected Capacity at the Geysers Geothermal Power Plants	9
3.	Geothermal Resources of Hydrothermal Convection Systems	11
4.	Geothermal Resources of Geopressured Sedimentary Environments	12
5.	Drilling Costs for Geothermal Wells	16
6.	Geothermal Wells Drilled in the United States, 1975-77	15
7.	Types of Firms and Involvement in Geothermal Development	26
8.	Capital Formation for Geothermal Projects	30
9.	Estimated Geothermal Utilization Given Successful Federal Program Implementation, 1975	31
10.	Intended Commercial Geothermal Utilization Potential Given Successful Federal Program Implementation, 1977	31
:11.	Federal Budget for Geothermal, 1975-79	33
12.	Geothermal Loan Guaranty Applications	48
13.	Current Status of Applications	52
14.	Time Taken for Application Review	65
15.	Federal Regulations Applicable to Geothermal Resource Development Projects	80

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The author is indebted to Dr. George V. Keller for his guidance and encouragement throughout the project. The author also wishes to acknowledge Dr. Oded Rudawsky, her Thesis Advisor, and Dr. Hunter Swanson who also served as committee members.

The author is grateful to Dr. William Copeland, Dean of the Graduate School, and Mr. Richard Harshman of the Office of Research Services whose efforts made this project possible.

The author thanks the U.S. Department of Energy for financial assistance of this project and Dr. Donald Elmer of DOE for his support and assistance.

The author wishes to extend thanks to the many people in industry and government who gave their time and assistance to her.

ix

INTRODUCTION

Loan guaranties to stimulate investment and development for social or political benefit have been used in the United States for over 30 years with varying degrees of success. The use of this vehicle as an incentive to develop energy resources and technologies is new; and its success in achieving the objectives has not yet been determined.

The United States government has several programs directed at the development of geothermal resources⁽¹⁾. The potential contribution of this resource to total energy supply has been estimated to be between 3-10 percent. Its role is especially significant in the western United States, where over 60 percent of geothermal resources are estimated to exist. The United States Geological Survey (CI 726, 1975) assessed the resource potential and estimated potential electric generating power to be 42,000 MW·cent⁽²⁾ or 140,000 MW for 30 years. Three types of geothermal resources were

 ⁽¹⁾ Geothermal resources are defined as the stored heat, both identified and undiscovered, that is recoverable using current or near current technology regardless of cost
 (USGS CI 726).

 ⁽²⁾ A megawatt century of electricity is a unit of energy equivalent to 1 MW of power produced for 100 years (or 3.33 MW for 30 years).

evaluated: vapor-dominated hydrothermal⁽³⁾, liquid-dominated hydrothermal⁽⁴⁾ (for temperatures of >150°C and 90-150°C), and geopressured fluids⁽⁵⁾.

The Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program (GLGP) is one government support directed at developing this resource potential. Title II of the Geothermal Research, Development and Demonstration Act of 1974 (P.L. 93-410) provided the legislation for enactment of the program. The Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program was the first such program aimed at developing an energy resource and has provided a model for additional loan guaranty programs for coal, synthetic fuel, and electric and hybrid vehicles.

It is the objective of this study to evaluate the Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program, to examine its operation, and to estimate its current and potential use in developing geothermal energy.

Data Sources and Method of Analysis

Data were acquired from primary sources and personal contact with lending institutions, government, private industry, and utilities. Contacts were made on the basis of involvement

⁽³⁾ Geothermal convection systems containing saturated or superheated steam.

⁽⁴⁾ Geothermal convection systems containing hot water.

⁽⁵⁾ Areas of abnormally high fluid pressure.

in geothermal development and/or interest in the loan guaranty program. The San Francisco Operations Office (SAN), the administrating office for the program, provided the author with a list of potential applicants as discussed in Chapter III.

Government documents and internally circulated memoranda were reviewed for information and insight into the workings of the program in relation to government organization. The Department of Energy and before that, ERDA (Energy Research and Development Administration), has contracted several studies devoted to various government financial supports including loan guaranties, cost-sharing, direct grants, and tax subsidies addressing the potential for promoting development and commercialization of energy resources and technologies. Two studies by large research institutes, Harbridge House and Bradford National, deal with lending institutions' attitudes and potential activity with respect to government loan guaranties (see Bibliography).

Utilities, their involvement, obstacles, and potential for utilizing geothermal resources are well documented in two studies by Sheldon Bierman, et al: <u>Innovation and Mono-</u> <u>poly</u> and <u>Geothermal Energy and the Bulk Electric Power and</u> <u>Petroleum Industries</u> (draft). Legal and tax issues are being studied extensively by Jack McNamara at the University of Southern California; two papers have been produced:

Geothermal Energy and the Law, Vol I: The Federal Lands <u>Management Program</u> (draft), and <u>Vol. II</u>: <u>Preliminary Analysis</u> of the Impacts of Federal Tax Reform on Geothermal Energy <u>Development in the United States</u>. The U.S. Senate and House of Representatives are also studying the prospects for using loan guaranties and their affect on various sectors within government and industry. The U.S. General Accounting Office is preparing a report to Congress on government involvement in geothermal development. The GAO conducted a survey by sending questionnaires (Appendix A) to 180 federal and state leaseowners; approximately 62 percent of them responded. A GAO draft report should be ready by Spring 1978 and a final report by Fall 1978.

These sources and others that were consulted addressed the Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program directly, loan guaranties in general as a financing mechanism, the financial climate in the geothermal industry, other government supports, and geothermal development in the United States. All are referenced in the bibliography of this paper.

Study Organization

This study begins with Chapter II, an overview of the geothermal industry - the state of the art, and current and future potential, in order to give perspective to the scope of the problem of developing geothermal resources.

Chapter III, "The Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program," focuses on the specifics of the program: applications received and pending, operating procedures, and the reviewing process. Legislative background sets the timeframe in which the program has evolved.

Chapter IV. "Externalities Affecting the Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program," lends insight to those factors impeding the development of the resource and the effectiveness of the loan guaranty program. Barriers, other than financial, that have prevented the industry from developing to a point where full advantage could be taken of such a program are evaluated.

Chapter V. "Evaluating the GLGP: Attitudes and Perspectives," elaborates the private sectors perceptions of the loan guaranty program. An understanding of how the program meets the needs and serves the purpose of lending institutions, private industry, and utilties is required to determine its potential capability. The existing problems for the use and operation of the loan guaranty program aid in evaluating its impact and are the basis for recommendations made in Chapter VI.

The uncertainty and risk associated with geothermal resources with respect to the legal, institutional, and technical barriers are outside of the scope of this paper,

except as they are an impediment to the functioning of the loan guaranty program. These subjects have been addressed in greater detail by others.

6

The geothermal industry and the government have traveled far up the "learning curve" in a matter of a few years. Growing pains are apparent in this "infant industry" but growth is taking place, regardless of the status of the loan guaranty program. It is the hope of the author that information provided herein will aid in furthering the understanding of the magnitude, complexities, and interdependencies of constraints affecting the geothermal industry.

STATE OF THE ART -- GEOTHERMAL ENERGY OVERVIEW

Geothermal resources were used for the generation of electricity first at Laradello, Italy in 1904; 250 kilowatts were being generated by 1931. Italy presently produces 417 MW of electricity. In 1958, New Zealand was the second country to generate electricity using geothermal resources, with current production of about 170 MW. The United States was the third country to produce electricity, beginning in 1960 at the Geysers. Presently, several countries are exploring for and utilizing geothermal resources for non-electric uses and for generating electricity: Iceland, Hungary, USSR, Japan, Mexico, Honduras, El Salvador, Nicaragua, and several others (Table 1).

The United States is the world's largest producer of electricity utilizing a vapor-dominated hydrothermal (dry steam) resource. The only geothermal power plant generating electricity, at the Geysers in California, currently produces 502 MW of electricity with plans to generate an additional 626 MW by 1981 (Table 2). Total potential for this area has been estimated to be 2000-2500 MW.

Table 1

Worldwide	Approximate Electric and Non-E	lectric Use
	of Geothermal Energy, 1976	

Country	Operating Operating	Power (MW) Planned	Non-Electric (MW)
Hungary			380
Iceland	3	55	285
Italy	417	15	15
Japan	170		25
Mexico	75	75	·
New Zealand	170	210	120
United States	502	626	15
U.S.S.R.	6	20	5,100
El Salvador	30	30	.
Guadaloupe		30	
Turkey		10	
Nicaragua		100	
Total	1,373	1,171	5,940

Based on data provided from: Birsic, 1976 and Howard, 1975 (cited in Sacarto, pg. 3)

Table 2

Existing and Expected Capacity at the Geysers Geothermal Power Plants

		Capacity		Capital C	ost	
<u>Unit</u>	Year	Net KW	Cum.	Est. Total \$(000's)	Per KW \$	Steam Producer
1	1960	11,000	11	1,750	159	U-M-T
2	1963	13,000	24	2,200	169	U-M-T
3	1967	27,000	51	3,790	140	U-M-T
4	1968	27,000	78	3,170	117	U-M-T
5	1971	53,000)			U-M-T
6	1971	53,000	184)	11,500	108	U-M-T
7	1972	53,000)			U-M-T
8	1972	53,000	290)	11,900	112	U-M-T
9	1973	53,000)			U-M-T
10	1973	53,000	396)	13,500	127	U-M-T
11	1975	106,000	502	14,404	136	U-M-T
12(C)	July/78	106,000	608	21,500	203	U-M-T
13(C)	July/79	135,000	743	28,900	214	Burmah
14(C)	Feb/79	110,000	853	28,000	255	U-M-T
15(C)	Sept/78	55,000	908	17,300	315	Thermogenics
16(P)	May/81	110,000	1,018	42,400	385	
17(P)	May/81	110,000	1,128	41,600	378	

C-under construction P-planned, government approvals pending U-Union Oil Co. M-Magma Power Co. T-Thermal Power Co.

Source: Birsic, 1976; Pacific Gas and Electric and Union Oil Company, Promotional Material, 1976.

Resource Potential

Electric generating potential from hydrothermal convection systems⁽⁶⁾ and geopressured sedimentary environments⁽⁷⁾, assumed recoverable with present and near-current technology and without regard to cost, are presented in Tables 3 and 4. Electric potential from hydrothermal reserves is 3,500 MW.cent or 11,700 MW for 30 years, with an equal amount from paramarginal resources. Undiscovered hydrothermal (>150°C) resources are estimated to have a potential, assuming 60 percent recoverable at prices 2X present prices, of 38,000 MW.cent (126,700 MW for 30 years). Geopressured fluids of the Gulf Coast range in potential from 9,000 to 35,000 MW.cent (31,000 to 115,000 MW for 30 years) depending on factors of production (excluding methane gas). Production potential from identified hydrothermal and geopressured systems, disregarding cost, with present or near present technology is estimated to be about 42,000 MW.cent (140,000 MW for 30 years) (USGS CI 726, pg. 155).

Hot dry rock, methane gas from geopressured resources, and yet undiscovered hydrothermal convection systems will be of significant contribution to the national energy needs. USGS

⁽⁶⁾ Heat is transferred by convection circulation of water or steam rather than by thermal conduction through solid rock (CI 726, p. 5).

⁽⁷⁾ Deposition of fluids under abnormally high pressures in sediments.

Geothermal Resources	or Hydrothermal	Convection	Systems
	10 ¹⁸ cal1/	Electrical energy MW [*] cent ² /	MW for 30 years <u>3/</u>
High-temperature systems (>150°C; for generation of electricity)			
Identified resources	257		
Reserves 7/		3,500	11,700
Paramarginal resources $\frac{8}{2}$		3,500	11,700
Submarginal resources <u>9</u> /		>1,000 <u>4</u> /	>3,300 <u>4</u> /
Undiscovered resources	1,200	38,000 <u>5</u> /	126,700 <u>5</u> /
Intermediate-temperature systems (90° to 150°C: mainly non-electrical uses).			
Identified resources	345		
Undiscovered resources	1,035		
TOTAL	2,837	46,000	153,400

Table 3

Geothermal Resources of Hydrothermal Convection Systems

1/ 10¹⁸cal (a billion-billion calories) is equivalent to heat of combustion of 690 million barrels of oil or 154 million short tons of coal; these estimates exclude the national parks.

2/ Unit of electrical energy; 1 MW·cent is equivalent to 1000 KW
produced continuously for 100 years.

3/ Assumes that each MW cent of electricity can be produced at rate of 3.33 MW for 30 years.

4/ Small because of exclusion of systems with temperatures below 150°C.

5/ Perhaps as much as 60 percent will be reserves and paramarginal resources; costs of discovery and development are more speculative than for identified resources.

6/ Reserves: recoverable with present technology and competitive cost.

7/ Paramarginal: recoverable with one to two times current energy costs.

8/ Submarginal: recoverable at greater than two times current prices of competitive energy sources.

Source: U.S.G.S. CI 726, p. 150.

Table 4

Geothermal Resources of Geopressured Sedimentary Environments

	Heat in pore fluids 10 ¹⁸ cal ¹	Electrical energy, MW·cent2/	MW for 30 years <u>3</u> /
Gulf Coast geopressured fluids in sediments of Tertiary age; assessed on-shore parts only, to depth ranging up to 7 km.	10,920		
Thermal energy		24,380	81,260
Mechanical energy (thermal equivalent)		9,970	33,230
TOTAL		34,350 4/	114,490 4

- $\frac{1}{2}$ Thermal energy only; 10^{18} cal is equivalent to heat of combustion of 690 million barrels of oil.
- 2/ Units of electrical energy; 1 MW.cent is equivalent to 1000 kw produced continuously for 100 years.
- 3/ Estimates made for 20 yr. production period; converted to 30 yrs. to be consistent with other estimates of this circular.
- 4/ Perhaps in part reserves but mostly paramarginal, depending on environmental and other costs.

Source: U.S.G.S. CI 726, p. 151.

estimates potential for these resources to be at least 100,000 MW.cent (or 330,000 MW for 30 years).

Leasing

Leasing activity on federal land was supposed to have been spurred on with enactment of the Geothermal Steam Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-581); however, several problems have dampened this effort. Regulations for the implementation of the leasing program were not completed until December 1973 and the first lease sale was in January 1974.

The Bureau of Land Management (Dept. of Interior) was designated the lead agency, working with the U.S. Dept. of Agriculture (Forest Service) to issue competitive lease sales for KGRA's (Known Geothermal Resource Areas) and noncompetitive lease applications for land authorized for geothermal exploration but not designated as KGRA's.

The competitive lease sales are made by bonus bidding-the lease is sold to the highest qualified bidder. A corporation established to do business in the U.S. or an individual can bid on a lease.

The U.S. Geological Survey has identified 106 KGRA's in a total area of greater than 3.3 million acres. These are listed in Appendix B.

Since January 1974 and as of January 30, 1978 federal leasing activity has been as follows: 178 competitive leases

totaling 349,659 acres and 1,024 non-competitive leases totaling 1,673,505 acres were issued (Bureau of Land Management, oral communication).

Of the 3.3 million acres located in 10 western states and Alaska designated KGRA's, 1 million acres are on Federal land. An additional 96 million acres are listed as having potential value for geothermal resources; of these, 58 million acres (60 percent) are on Federal land.

Only 10.5 percent of all KGRA's and only 3 percent of federal lands authorized for geothermal exploration have been leased. Many firms conduct some exploration before leasing but these efforts are not impressive with respect to the potential development of geothermal resources.

Private land is also leased for geothermal exploration and development. The extent of private leasing activity is difficult to monitor but is thought to be more extensive than leasing of state and federal lands partially due to the delays and paperwork involved in federal leasing procedures.

Several major oil companies are active in geothermal leasing and development. Appendix C presents competitive lease sales as of December 31, 1977, and is also a good indication of which firms are involved in geothermal leasing and the competition for leases.

Drilling Activity

Drilling is an expensive venture and capital must be available in order to locate additional geothermal reserves. Table 5 represents typical drilling costs.

Drilling activity for geothermal resources has not been significant compared to the number of oil and gas wells drilled in the United States. The majority of all geothermal wells have been drilled at the Geysers. The Imperial Valley is the only other area with significant drilling activity. Table 6 represents the number of geothermal wells drilled in 1975, 1976, and 1977. Appendix D lists drilling by operator and location. Drilling, together with leasing activities listed by operator indicates those most active in exploring and developing geothermal resources.

Table 6

Geothermal Wells Drilled in the United States, 1975-77

Year	Geysers	Imperial Valley	Other Locations	Total
1975	24	10	18	52
1976	30	16	19	65
1977	32	8	18	58

Drilling taking place in states other than California includes New Mexico, Nevada, Utah, Idaho, Oregon, and Hawaii.

Table 5

Drilling Costs for Geothermal Wells

Depth	(KM)	\$ Total Cost	Average Cost/Meter	Marginal Cost/Meter	Source
0.5		50,000	100	100	Meidav
1.0		150,000 150,000	150 150	200	Meidav USGS
2.0		420,000 300,000 300-520,000	210 150 166-216	270 150	Meidav USGS Rex
3.0		810,000 500,000 425-770,000	270 167 170-260	390 200 250	Meidav USGS Rex
5.0		1,000,000 635,000-1,055,000	200 200-230	250 250	USGS Rex
10.0		5,000,000 2,750,000	500 300	800 340	USGS Rex

Source: Sacarto, State Policies for Geothermal Development, 1976, p. 25.

These figures are not significant if 20,000 MW is expected to be generated by the year 2000. Problems associated with drilling activity are dealt with in Chapter III.

Status of Geothermal Prospects

Presented here is the current status of six principal geothermal areas and the potential development associated with each. Figure 1 presents the location of these and other areas undergoing various phases of development.

The only power plant in operation is at the Geysers in California. The eleven power plants mentioned here, in planning stages, should generate an additional 435 MW (excluding the Geysers); six of the eleven potential power plants would be financed with federal loan guaranties and two are candidates for the government cost-shared demonstration plant.

I. Geysers

1) Pacific Gas and Electric Company owns the power generating units. Union Oil is the operator, Thermal Power Co., Magma Power Co., Aminoil, and Thermogenics, Inc., are steam suppliers. Current power is 502 MW, with an additional 626 MW planned.

2) The California State Department of Water Resources plans to build a 55 MW power plant to be operating by 1983. An estimated \$25 million will be spent on construction. McCulloch Oil Co. will supply the steam earning working



Source: U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Department of Interior, Geothermal Project, 1976. interest revenues of 49 percent, with Geothermal Kinetics, Inc., receiving 30 percent and Entex Petroleum 21 percent. Financing will be via conventional means, e.g. revenue bonds (The Geysers, 1977).

3) The Northern California Power Agency has contracted with Shell Oil to supply steam for a 55 MW power plant. This is pending financing with a federal loan guaranty and negotiating a contract with Pacific Gas and Electric to transmit the electricity.

II. Imperial Valley, California

East Mesa

4) Magma Power Company (Imperial Magma) is constructing a 10 MW binary cycle⁽⁸⁾ power plant, operation to begin in August, 1978.

5) Republic Geothermal, Inc. is doing field development work with a federal loan guaranty and plans to construct a double flash⁽⁹⁾ 48 MW power plant.

Brawley

6) Union Oil Company has obtained a permit to construct a 10 MW single flash power plant. Possibly Southern California

⁽⁸⁾ Binary cycle: use of a heat exchanger to conduct heat from a geothermal brine to the working fluid (isobutane) which drives a turbine.

⁽⁹⁾Single or double flash: steam produced from hot water due to a decrease in pressure.

Edison or the Imperial Irrigation District will purchase electricity. Principal operators at Brawley are Union and Chevron.

Heber

7) San Diego Gas and Electric has submitted a proposal to DOE for the demonstration Program Opportunity Notice (PON) for a 50-MW binary cycle power plant costing about \$42 million. Chevron, Magma, Union, and New Albion Resources Company (NARCO), a subsidiary of SDG&E are principal leaseholders at Heber.

Salton Sea

8) DOE and SDG&E have a cost sharing agreement that funded the construction of a 10-MW binary cycle Geothermal Loop Experimental Facility--in operation since May 1976. Principal operators are Magma Power Co., Southern Pacific Land Co., and Southern California Edison. A 50-MW flash binary power plant is under consideration.

Westmoreland

9) Republic Geothermal and Mapco jointly lease and operate this prospect. An application for a federal loan guaranty has been submitted for reservoir assessment and drilling. A 50-MW double-flash power plant is planned.

III. Desert Peak (Brady-Hazen), Nevada

10) Phillips Petroleum is the principal operator. Sierra Pacific is interested in purchasing electricity at the busbar.

A 50 MW double flash power plant is under consideration. The Geothermal Energy Corporation and Morrison-Knudsen are involved in the negotiations; submission of an application for a loan guaranty is pending.

IV. Beowawe, Nevada

Chevron and Chevron/American Thermal are the principal operators. Sierra Pacific had spent some \$300,000 without success. The operators plan for extensive exploration.

V. Roosevelt Hot Springs, Utah

Principal operators are Phillips Petroleum and Thermal Power Co.

11) Rogers Engineering is submitting an application for a federal loan guaranty for construction of a 52 MW double flash power plant at a cost of about \$35 million. Utah Power and Light will purchase the electricity and Phillips Petroleum will supply the resource.

12) O'Brien Resources, together with VTN, Thermal Power Company, and AMAX Exploration are submitting an application for a federal loan guaranty to drill 8-9 wells, including 3 reinjectors, and construction of a 55 MW double flash power plant. Negotiations are underway to sell electricity to the city of Bountiful.

VI. Valles Caldera, New Mexico

13) The principal operator is Union Oil Co. Union has submitted a proposal to the Department of Energy for the construction of a 50 MW flash demonstration plant in response to the PON. The Public Service Company of New Mexico is the utility involved in this venture.

Many other areas are being explored for geothermal resources and development: a) Cove-Fort Sulphurdale, Utah-Union, b) Coso Hot Springs, California, China Lake, Naval Weapons Center has requested proposals and is looking for a developer. c) Berwawe, Nevada - extensive exploration by Chevron Oil Company, d) Raft River, Idaho - Department of Energy, binary cycle power plant, e) Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory, New Mexico - Hot Dry Rock Geothermal Energy Project funded since 1970; drilled into 200°C granite to 3 KM. A 10 MW (thermal) binary cycle power plant is planned, f) Hawaiian Islands- exploratory drilling in Kilauea and Puna. Geopressured resource potential and feasibility are being studied extensively at the University of Texas, Bureau of Economic Geology, which was awarded \$17 million in grants from the Department of Energy.

Non-electric Utilization

Significant thermal resources, 700 MW_t worldwide (Lund, OIT), are available for direct application, including space

heating, crop drying, industrial processing, sugar refining, fisheries, agribusiness, hydroponics, greenhouse complexes, pulp and paper processing, absorption - refrigeration, amonia synthesis, and chemical extraction. Space heating utilizes low enthalpy hydrothermal convection systems of temperatures 65-100°C. Transmission distance of 50-100 km has been calculated and a 20 km distance is in use presently. Direct use offers high conversion efficiency of 80-90 percent, technology is presently available, and direct use costs are 60-75 percent of the fossil fuel costs, payback is 5 to 10 years (Geothermal Resources Council Symposium, 1978).

The possibility of using spent geothermal resources from electric generation for a secondary use can be a contribution to increasing efficiency and decreasing costs. The rate of return for direct use is lower than for electric use but the payout is faster and capital investment is not extensive.

Klamath Falls, Oregon, Pagosa Springs, Colorado, and Boise, Idaho use their geothermal resources for extensive municipal and private residence space heating with plans for expansion. Currently, industries are utilizing geothermal resources for food processing, fisheries, hydroponics, greenhouse complexes, but it is insignificant in comparison to the potential use.

Figure 2 indicates some of the uses and their corresponding temperatures for nonelectric application of geothermal fluids.
	°C 200 - 190 -	Figure 2.	Required 7 Fluids for Applicatio 1974).	Temperature of Geothermal Various Nonelectrical ons (Approximate) (Lindal,
	180 - EVAPORA REFRIGERJ DIGESTIO	TION OF HIGH CON ATION BY AMMONIA IN IN PAPER PULP, K	C. SOLUTIONS. A ABSORPTION, RAFT,]
X	170 - HEAVY W DRYING (ATER VIA HYDROGE DF DIATOMACEOUS	N SULFIDE PROCESS. EARTH.	
ATED STEA	160 - DRYING (DRYING (DF FISH MEAL. DF TIMBER		TEMP. RANGE OF CONVENTIONAL POWER PRODUCTION
54 TUR	150 - ALUMINA	VIA BAYERS PROCE	SS.	
	140 - DRYING I CANNING	ARM PRODUCTS AT	HIGH RATES.	
	130 - EVAPORA EXTRACTI	TION IN SUGAR REF ON OF SALTS BY EV	INING. APORATION AND CR	YSTALIZATION.
•	120 - FRESH WA MOST MU REFRIGER	TER BY DISTILLATIO LTIPLE EFFECT EVAP NTION BY MEDIUM 1	N, ORATIONS, CONCER TEMPERATURES,	NTRATION OF SALINE SOLUTIONS.
	110 - DRYING	AND CURING OF LIC	GHT AGGREGATE CEN	MENT SLABS.
+	100 - DRYING (WASHING	DF ORGANIC MATER	NALS, SEAWEEDS, GR	ASS, VEGETABLES, ETC.
	90 - DRYING (INTENSIV	DF STOCK FISH. E DE-ICING OPERAT	nons.	
	ED - SPACE HE GREENHO	ATING. DUSE SPACE HEATING	5.	
	70 - REFRIGER	ATION BY LOW TEM	PERATURE	
	60 - ANIMAL I GREENHO	HUSBANDRY. DUSES BY COMBINED	SPACE AND HOTBED	HEATING
- water	50 - MUSHRO(BALNEOL	OM GROWING, OGICAL BATHS,		
	40 - SOIL WAR	MING.		
	30 - SWIMMIN WARM WA	IG POOLS, BIODEGI ATER FOR YEAR ARCI	RADATION, FERMENT JND MINING IN CO	ATIONS. LD CLIMATES.
¥	20 HATCHIN	G OF FISH, FISH FA	RMING	
Source: Ge	othermal R	esources Co	ouncil, Dir	ect Utilization

Industry Structure

The geothermal industry is fairly new and most firms began their industry involvement 5 to 7 years ago. The industry is relatively small, with major developments involving a few firms. Reviewing leasing and drilling activity provides a good indication of which firms are more active. These are listed in Appendix E. Planned power plant construction, as outlined in the previous section, indicates Chevron, Phillips, Magma, and Union to be leading the way. Other projects involving field development, resource supply contracts, and potential construction of power plants involve Shell, Amax, Mapco, Thermal Power, Thermogenics, Republic Geothermal, Geothermal Kinetics, Geothermal Resources International, McCulloch Oil, Aminoil, and Phillips Petroleum.

Utilities, engineering firms, land ventures, and municipalities are also involved in several stages of geothermal resource development. Table 7 lists these firms and the various stages of development in which they are most likely to participate.

There are basically four areas the industry is directed towards:

- 1) Land acquisition:
 - a) federal state
 - b) private

2) Exploration:

 a) initial exploration - geological and geophysical surveying. May precede lease acquisition.

Table 7

Types of Firms and Involvement in Geothermal Development

	Lease Acquisition	Exploration	Field Development	Power Plant Construction
Oil				
Companies				
(1)	x	x	x	
Geothermal				
firms (1,2)	x	x	x	0.
Engineering				
firms				0
Municipalities		x	x	x
(3)	x			
Utilities				
(3)	x	x	x	x

(1) sell resource; (2) sell electricity; (3) transmit electricity.

X-probable 0-possible

- b) exploration drilling thermal gradient holes, observatory wells, deep wells.
- 3) Full field development:

Drilling production and injection wells.

- 4) Utilization of the resource:
 - a) generation of electricity
 - b) direct-use (nonelectric)

A firm or an individual acquires a lease and has several options depending on the objectives of the firm, value of the lease, and the type of organization. Leaseowners will try to increase the value of the lease by doing exploratory work and/or drilling to prove up a resource. A lease may then be sold to a developer who will engage in field development and either sell the resource to another party or the developer may engage in the construction of a power plant and sell the electricity to a utility, or engage in a joint venture with a utility who will build a power plant.

The experience in geothermal is similar to that in oil and gas: small independent firms are doing the exploration and the larger firms with better access to capital are developing the field. Several small firms are engaging in promoting resource utilization by joint venturing with resource owners, engineering firms, operators, leaseowners, utilities, and municipalities. Arrangements have been made whereby a resource owner contracts to supply steam to a power plant facility at

a specified price and a utility purchases the electricity and most probably will option to purchase the power plant after several years of proven feasibility. The question remains as to whom will pay for the power plant. The developer is willing to finance the development of the field but neitherhe nor the utility companies, for various reasons (capital requirements, reservoir uncertainties, and regulatory issues) have been willing to finance liquid-dominated power plant construction. Several small independent firms are willing to act on behalf of a utility and resource supplier and apply for a loan guaranty to finance this construction.

Financial Arrangements

Financing for geothermal development is made available by the same mechanisms as in other resource investment oppotunities. Raising capital for geothermal ventures differs in that the resource is unconventional, expensive to exploit, and involves a high level of risk. The payout is longer than for oil and gas, and many uncertainties including tax treatment make financing more difficult.

Geothermal investments are judged by the same criteria as other natural resources but may be viewed more critically and a higher rate of return may be required due to higher risks. Geothermal projects must compete for capital in a thin market, and with other investments of large integrated

firms.⁽¹⁰⁾ The considerations for investment may be: undiluted interest to retain full control, cost of capital, and mini-mization of front end exposure.

Oil companies and other well-established industries, geothermal enterprises, municipalities, and utilities have different means of raising capital. Large established firms may sell securities to raise capital or use internally generated funds from other investments. Commercial banks will lend money to these firms at prime interest rates and generally they have little problem of financing. Smaller firms will seek capital through joint ventures with the larger firms, selling limited partnerships, or the venture capital market. A leaseowner or small "independent" may joint venture with a developer who has available capital. Drilling programs are a source for raising high risk capital. The limited partnership is used widely in the geothermal industry because it provides the operator with control and limits the liability of the limited partners to the amount of the investment and allows for attractive tax consequences. Table 8 identifies the sources of capital for different types of firms.

⁽¹⁰⁾ The University of Pennsylvania, Energy Center, is under contract to the Division of Geothermal Energy, DOE, to study investment decisions for geothermal resources.

Table 8

Capital Formation for Geothermal Projects

Large established firms e.g.))))	internal cash flows commercial lenders securities offerings drilling contributions from other firms
orr comp.	'	government
small firms e.g. lease exploration)))	venture capital - drilling programs joint ventures - general partnership limited partnership farm-outs federal government
Municipalities	-	revenue bonds federal government
Utilities	-	revenue bonds federal government

Government and Geothermal Development

The federal governments expectations for the development of domestic geothermal resources are shown in Tables 9 and 10. Potential electricity production from geothermal resources according to ERDA is 3000-4000 MW by 1985. The expected estimated utilization of the resource has undergone change from 1975 to 1977.

Table 10 was published a little more than a year after Table 9, at which time the figure for electrical generation was halved. The estimate is qualified by the assumption that federal program implementation is "successful." Many people in the geothermal industry have doubts of 3000-4000 MW generating by 1985. PG&E at the Geysers, as planned, will

Table 9

Estimated Geothermal Utilization Given Successful Federal Program Implementation*

	<u>1985</u>	2000	2020
Electric Capacity (MW)	6,000	39,000	140,000
Electric Applications Equivalent Energy (Quads/yr)	0.5	2.9	10.4
Nonelectric Applications (Quads/yr)	0.1	1.5	8.2
Total Energy (Quads/yr)	0.6	4.4	18.6
Quad - 10 ¹⁵ Btu			
*Assuming - 1 MW hr - 10^7	Btu	85 percent	load factor

Source: Definition Report, DGE, ERDA, Oct. 1975.

Table 10

Intended Commercial Geothermal Utilization Potential Given Successful Federal Program Implementation

	1985	2000	2020
Electric Capacity (MW) Electric Applications	3,000- 4,000	20,000- 40,000	70,000- 140,000
Device lost foggil fuel			
energy (Quads/yr)	0.2-0.3	1.5-3.0	5-10
Nonelectric applica- tions (Quads/yr)	0.1	1	8
Total Energy (Quads/yr)	0.3-0.4	2.5-4.0	13-18
Quad = 10^{15} Btu			

Source: ERDA, Program Approval Document, Fiscal Year 1977, Geothermal Energy Development, January 17, 1977. (Bierman, p. 63). have about 1125 MW by 1981 and if the 11 power plant projects outlined in this report are completed, that will mean an additional 435 MW. Given the time constraints of drilling, permitting, construction, capital requirements, etc., one wonders where the additional 1500-2500 MW will come from.

The government is spending millions of dollars on research and development of geothermal resources trying to realize the numbers they have forecasted. Projects have been undertaken, much of which have been contracted out to private industry, to address technological developments, resource assessment, policy and planning issues, institutional and legal barriers, and financial incentives.

The ERDA budgetary outlays for the geothermal research, development, and demonstration program for FY 1978 was \$68 million, an increase of \$19 million from FY 1977. Table 11 presents budget outlays and authority for geothermal energy from 1975 to 1979. Appendix F contains the entire ERDA budget for FY 76 through 1978.

Legislation, cost sharing programs, tax incentives, and the loan guaranty program are efforts to promote exploration and development of geothermal resources. A survey of these programs is outlined herewith to present the extent and means of the programs in operation.

Table 11

Federal Budget for Geothermal Energy 1975-1979

	Budget Outlays (million \$)	Authority (million \$)		
1975 (ERDA)	21	28		
1976 (ERDA)	30	32		
1977 (ERDA)	49	100 (50 GLGP)		

1978 (DOE) Total	93.5 (6.6) GLGP (5.0) IDC 81.9	$ \begin{array}{r} 126.2 \\ (15.0) \\ (5.0) \\ 106.2 \end{array} $
1979 (DOE) Total	134.9* (6.0) GLGP (10.0) IDC 118.9	145.7* (6.0) (10.0) 129.7
Non-federal support		
1975	10.7	10.9
1976	10.1	12.2
1977	5.8	5.9

* Excluding hydroelectric

GLGP - Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program

IDC - Expensing of intangible drilling cost

Note: Of the Department of Energy's first year budget, \$10.4 billion, about 6.5 percent is for geothermal energy. Source: Office of Management Budget, 1978, oral communication. I. The Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program preceded the cost sharing programs. The GLGP less-than-successful history is often cited as reason for implementing additional programs. The Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program is described in detail in Chapter III. In short, the government will guaranty 100 percent of a loan of up to 75 percent of total project costs. Limits of the guaranty are \$100 million per project and \$200 million per borrower.

II. The Geothermal Reservoir Case History Program, an "industry coupled" program, offers 30 to 50 percent of costs to purchase information regarding drillholes in geothermal areas. The purpose is to publish the information obtained, thereby improving availablity of technical information. The program's architects hope to reduce risk and thereby reduce costs of developing geothermal energy, and hope to stimulate exploratory drilling. Geophysical data, subsurface logging and coring data, flow and pressure test data will be obtained from the participants.

Request for Proposals (RFP) is the means of soliciting bids from industry to participate in the program. Six contracts have been awarded to the following firms:

 Union Oil Company of Los Angeles, Calif. to drill, test, and provide data from three 10,000 foot holes in the Cove Fort-Sulphurdale, Utah area. Estimated share by DOE: \$2,560,000 (The Geyser, Oct. 1977).

2) Getty Oil Company of Bakersfield, Calif. to drill
 a 6,000 foot exploratory well at (South) Roosevelt Hot Springs,
 Utah. Estimated share by DOE: \$396,000 (The Geyser, Oct. 1977).

3) Geothermal Power Company of Novato, Calif., to drill 15 heat gradient holes 300 to 500 feet, drill two 2000 foot observation holes, and drill three exploratory wells up to 7,000 feet in the Roosevelt Hot Springs area (northeast), Utah. Estimated share by DOE: \$710,500 (The Geyser, Oct. 1977).

4) Thermal Power Company of San Francisco, Calif., to provide data on existing wells in the dome fault at Roosevelt Hot Springs, Utah. Estimated share by DOE: \$282,000, 20 percent of Thermal's cost (The Geyser, Oct. 1977).

5) Seismic Exploration, Inc., of Salt Lake City, Utah, to obtain geophysical data north of the dome fault at Roosevelt Hot Springs, Utah. Estimated share by DOE: \$11,740 (The Geyser, Oct. 1977).

6) University of Denver, Denver, Colorado, to test and provide data from a two-phase flow in the wellbore on an existing well at Roosevelt Hot Springs, Utah. Estimated share by DOE: \$67,330 (The Geyser, Oct. 1977).

Private industry has expressed concern in turning over proprietary information to the government. Several factors account for their concern: private industry-government relationship and economic effects. Industry is concerned with government's involvement in developing energy resources. It may also prove to be an economic disadvantage to some firms, while an economic advantage to others. For example, if two firms have adjacent leases and one finances exploration with private funds only while the other uses government assistance, the economics for the latter improve substantially. If several million dollars has been spent in an area by one leaseholder and information on the area is publicized by the government, the competitive advantage is lost. A company holds exploration data proprietary to gain advantage in purchasing future lease offerings. The Reservoir Case History Program may, therefore, inhibit exploration in areas where data will be made public. Several firms have expressed interest in this program in comparison to the loan guaranty program.

III. The Department of Energy has other cost sharing programs in electric and nonelectric utilization of geothermal resources. The Division of Geothermal Energy of the San Francisco Operations Office has offered two Program Opportunity Notices (PON), and has plans for another PON in addition to two Program Research and Development Announcements

(PRDAs) for site specific engineering and economic studies of nonelectric applications.

The first nonelectric PON was offered in 1977, with a closing date of November 30, 1977. A final decision granting eight contracts, out of a total of 22 proposals, was reached in February, 1978. Under ERDA, \$1.5 million was allocated for this PON. Several of the grants were for space heating projects and one was for retrofit of a food processing plant.

The Geothermal Demonstration Plant (PON) estimated cost by DOE to be \$130 to \$150 million. The DOE share is expected to be 50 percent or less of the estimated cost. The closing date for the Geothermal Demonstration Plant Program Opportunity Notice was January 31, 1978. A decision is scheduled to be reached by September 30, 1978. The purpose is to support the design, construction, and demonstration of a power plant utilizing a liquid-dominated hydrothermal resource. It is hoped that the demonstration program will reduce reservoir uncertainty, demonstrate availability of the technology, and provide information on the performance and operation of the power plant and reservoir. ERDA proposed that the plant should be in operation by the end of 1982 and generate approximately 50 MW net electric power.

The Demonstration Program has been the subject of great debate in government and industry. The proponents of the

demonstration program feel that only a demonstration can provide the experience and data necessary to stimulate construction of power plants for utilization of geothermal resources. It is expected to be in operation by 1982. However, Magma Power Company expects to have its binary cycle power plant at East Mesa generating electricity in August, 1978.

The MIT Energy Laboratory Policy Study group has addressed government intervention in developing new energy technologies and the issues of funding a demonstration plant.

The MIT study concludes that:

"In most cases, the long-run commercial potential of new technology, when evaluated prior to the introduction decision, will be independent of possible federal interventions in the introduction stage. In most cases, the costs of the introduction stage (which often is not recovered) during that stage, are a small fraction of the total cost of the product after introduction, if, when examined at the end of its development, a technology appears to be commercial in the long run, it usually is introduced and "commercialized" by the private sector (MIT, 1976, p. 72). In most cases FRDA demonstration programs, therefore, simply do not have very much leverage. They may be useful, but they are not often likely to be decisive in determining the fate of a new technology" (MIT, 1976, pg. 73).

"Thus, ERDA's commercial demonstration programs can be viewed somewhat crudely as subsidies or offsets to the 'introduction stage'--i.e., the excess of cost over production revenues during the introduction stage" (MIT, 1976, p. 73). It is important to mention the effect of such a program on normal investment decisions of private industry. A firm may decide not to invest or take the stand of "wait and see" if a project will potentially be subsidized by the government. If a firm can halve its cost of a commercial power plant by obtaining government subsidy, it is reasonable to believe the firm would prefer it; however, it is not to say that they would not have found other means to finance the project. A firm gains a competitive edge if it receives the subsidy. If such projects are only feasible with a subsidy, then the demonstration will do little to promote geothermal power plant construction even if it resolves technical uncertainties: unless it is believed that it is only those issues that are inhibiting the development.

Several problems associated with the resource and power plants arise out of the fact that each project is site specific. If the demonstration program can be at all successful, it must address geothermal fluids and geological areas that are diverse in nature. The current PON was directed at "a hightemperature, low-to-moderate-salinity resource with a binary or flashed steam power conversion cycle" (DGE Annual Report, April 1977, pg. 127). This does not eliminate technical problems associated with geology and geochemistry of fluids in other locations. The PON clearly states that current

plans include only one demonstration plant but, according to government officials, they are considering funding a second demonstration plant. The controversy surrounding this program will continue for some time.

Another form of government incentives are tax treatments of geothermal resources: percentage depletion and write-offs of intangible drilling costs. Legislation is currently pending to allow for these but it has been forthcoming for some time now. The geothermal industry feels very strongly about acquiring these tax deductions and that these will stimulate the industry.

Reservoir indemnity insurance, as an incentive to developing the geothermal industry, is a topic generating a lot of discussion. Members of the geothermal industry feel this could minimize the problem of the reservoir uncertainties of life and capability which they believe are the main obstacles to development. Legislation is being drafted to provide for reservoir indemnity insurance. At this time, it is difficult to determine whether or not this will become a reality.

In summary, little has been achieved in developing geothermal resources, in view of its large potential.

THE GEOTHERMAL LOAN GUARANTY PROGRAM

Chapter III is devoted to the Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program and the specifics of its operation. Discussed are the objectives and purposes of the legislation, budgetary allocation, expectations, operation and management of the program, processing and reviewing of applications, current status, and problems associated with the program.

Legislation and Objectives

The Geothermal Energy Research, Development, and Demonstration Act of 1974 (P.L. 93-410, Appendix G) was passed to facilitate in the development of geothermal resource potential. Title I of the Act established the Geothermal Energy Coordination and Management Project to conduct resource inventory and assessment, research and development, "initiate a program to design and construct geothermal demonstrations plants", and provide for scientific and technical education programs through the National Science Foundation.

Title II provides for the establishment of a loan guaranty program, assistance in the payment of interest charges, and establishment of the Geothermal Resources Development Fund.

Title III, General Provisions, states the requirements for carrying out the stated objectives of the Act.

The Law states that the purposes of the loan guaranty program are:

- The determination and evaluation of the resource base (resource assessment),
- research and development with respect to extraction and utilization technologies,
- 3. acquiring rights in geothermal resources (lease acquisition), and
- development, construction, and operation of facilities for the demonstration or commercial production of energy from geothermal resources.

Under the terms of the Act, loan guaranties will be granted for up to 75 percent of project costs with the federal government guarantying up to 100 percent of the amount borrowed; the applicant contributes 25 percent equity. The amount to be guaranteed is limited to \$100 million per project and \$200 million per borrower.

The life of the program is 10 years, to terminate on Sept. 3, 1984, but all loans guaranteed up to that time will be honored according to the terms of the loan agreement. The maximum term for any loan guaranty is 30 years or "the expected average useful life of any major physical asset to be financed by such loan, whichever is less," (§790.6(h))

The loan guaranty program became effective June 25, 1976 as stated in the Rules and Regulations of the Federal Register of May 26, 1976 (10 CFR 790). See Appendix H.

As stated in the Rules and Regulations (10 CFR 790), the objectives of the loan guaranty program are:

1. To encourage and assist the private and public sectors to accelerate development of geothermal resources in an environmentally acceptable manner by minimizing a lender's financial risk.

2. To develop normal borrower-lender relationships in order that financing be made available without guaranties at some future time.

Priorities assigned to different types of projects are as follows:

- Projects with promise of rapid energy production from geothermal resources.
- Projects designed to demonstrate or utilize new technologies or produce advanced technology components.
- Projects that will demonstrate or exploit the commercial potential of new geothermal resource areas.
- 4. Lowest priority is given to projects initially proposing geological and geophysical exploration, or the acquisition of land or leases.

In addition, priority within each of these categories was given first to projects from which the Federal government receives royalty payments and second, to projects undertaken by small companies and private utilities.

A small utility is one whose total electric output did not exceed four million megawatt-hours; and, a small business is a concern independently owned and operated, is not dominant in its field of operation, does not have assets exceeding \$9 million, does not have net worth in excess of \$4 million, and does not have an average net income, after Federal income taxes, for the preceeding two years in excess of \$400,000 (average net income to be computed without benefit of any carryover loss). (\$790.5(i)&(j)).

According to the Rules and Regulations, some entities are not eligible for obtaining a loan guaranty: 1) A loan application which meets a lender's standards without a Federal guaranty will be regarded by the Administration as not eligible for a loan guaranty under this regulation (§790.4(c)). 2) Also ineligible are entities whose income is excluded from gross income for purposes of taxation as stated in Chapter I of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954. This would exclude publiclyowned electric utilities, including utilities owned by municipalities, and public utility districts. 3) a project for extraction or production of geothermal by-products or the disalination of geothermal brines is also ineligible.

こうためにないたいであったというないが、ここのであったが、 ちゃちょうかん ちょうかい しょうしんせい なんちょう

The "Technical Amendments to the Geothermal Energy Research, Development, and Demonstration Act," signed into law by President Carter on February 25, 1978 ameliorates several of the problems existing with the current law and regulation (see Appendix I for the text of these amendments).

The Amendments specifically address the inclusion of direct utilization of geothermal resources for new or existing facilities. In addition, it raises the maximum loan guaranty to \$100 million per project and \$200 million per borrower, pledges the "full faith and credit of the United States" to payment of the guaranties, establishes borrowing authority to meet default payments, and allows for interim payment of principal and interest to avoid default on worthwhile projects.

Budgetary Allocations

The Geothermal Resources Development Fund was set up to provide the necessary funds for carrying out the program, including any interestassistance to the applicants. There were no budgetary appropriations in FY 1976. The budgetary appropriations and dollars authorized to guaranty are as follows:

	Budget Appropriation	Loan Guaranties Budget Authorization
	(millions of dollars)	(millions of dollars)
FY77	30	200
FY78	<u>15</u>	100
Total	45	300

\$200 million was originally requested for FY78 but in light of the present status of the program, it was deemed unnecessary and an additional \$100 million was allowed. Currently there is about \$286 million authorized for guaranties. The decrease accounts for the 3 guaranties made for \$13.644 million.

A total amount of \$300 million is authorized for loan guaranties and \$45 million was appropriated for program costs including payment of interest, operating costs, and default payments. ERDA had requested backup funds in the ratio of 1 to 4 against the total expected amount of loan guaranties. This was reduced by the appropriations committee to 1:7. In other words, the amount of money appropriated will cover one failure for seven successful loans.

A detailed accounting of the Geothermal Resources Development Fund is provided in the Budget of the United States Government, Fiscal Year 1979, presented in Appendix J.

Current Status of the Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program

As of February, 1978, one year and eight months after the program became effective, nine applications have been submitted for loan guaranties. SAN originally expected 17 to 20 applications during FY77 (Annual Report), but received only six. For FY78, the USGS was told to expect 10 applications for their review, although SAN has estimated that 2 to 4 applications for electric generation (application may be for exploratory drilling, field development, power plant construction), and 1 to 2 for nonelectric utilization, totaling a possible six applications. A FY79 budget request was based on the assumption of receiving 20 applications per year.

Table 12 is a summary of applications, including a list of those "currently being prepared." Most of these applications have not yet been submitted as scheduled, but it is not all inclusive, as some applicants do not appear on the list. A total of 28 applications were projected by SAN for 1978 according to the list compiled in August, 1977. SAN now only expects a possible maximum of 10 applications in 1978.

Table 13 is a breakdown of the nine applications submitted to SAN. Republic Geothermal Inc.(RGI), of Santa Fe Springs, California was the first to be granted a loan guaranty. The loan was for \$9.03 million to finance the drilling of

Table 12

GEOTHERMAL LOAN GUARANTY PROGRAM APPLICATIONS

The second se

				EXPECT	ED DATE
_	PROJECT		AMOUNT	Sub-	Recommen-
APPLICANT	Location	Type	(SM)	mission	dation
I. Applications Received					
A. APPROVED					
Republic Geothermal	East Mesa, CA	Electric	9.03	10-76	Approved
Geothermal Food Processors	Brady Hot Springs,NV	Vegetable	2.80	3-77	Approved
Geothermal Kinetics/ McCulloch Oil Co.	Brawley, CA	Electric	1.75	2-77	Approved
B. AWAITING ADDITIONAL INFO	DRMATION				
Geothermal Resources	Geysers, CA	Electric	7.7	10-76	
GeoCal	Honey Lake, CA	Electric	2.27	10-76	
City of Burbank	Multi-site	Electric	25.0	3-77	
Diablo Exploration	New Mexico	Electric	21.8	3-77	
RFL-NCPA	Geysers, CA	Electric	14.5	9-77	
C. BEING PROCESSED		•			
RGI/MAPCO	Westmorland, CA	Electric	21.0	9-77	

48

II. APPLICATIONS CURRENTLY BEING PREPARED

				EXPECT	TED DATE
	PROJECT		AMOUNT	Sub-	Recommen-
APPLICANT	Location	Туре	(SM)	mission	dation
VIN	New Mexico	Power Plant	6.0	2 . 78	5-78
Geothermal Power Company	Utah	Electric	7.0	3-78	6-78
O'Brien Energy	Milford, UT	Electric	25.0	1-78	4-78
U.S. Geothermal	Broneau, ID	Electric	15.0	1-78	4-78
CU-4 Venture	Geysers, CA	Electric	18.0	1-78	4-78
Agriculture Group Ind.	Calistoga, CA	Hydroponics	2.0	11-77	2-78
Earth Energy	Geysers, CA	Electric	15.0	3-78	6-78
California Energy, Inc.	Geysers, CA	Electric	15.0	10-77	1-78
California Geothermal, Inc.	Geysers, CA	Electric	15.0	1-78	4-78
CU-3	Geysers, CA	Electric	12.0	12-77	3-78
CU-2	CA/UT	Power Plant	12.0	6-78	9-78
North State Growers	Susanville, CA	Non-electric	8.0	12-77	3-78
Technology International	Susanville Correc- tional Facility	Space Heating	0.8	1-78	4-78
Deuterium, Inc.	Geysers, CA	H ₂ S Scrubber	9.0	2-78	5-78
Geothermal Kinetics, Inc.	Powers Ranch, AZ	Electric	12.0	12-77	3-78
GEDCO/Thermal Power	Hawaii	Electric	25.0	6-78	9-78
NW Ground Covers	Klamath Falls, OR	Greenhouse	0.4	2-78	5-78
GeoCal	Honey Lake, CA	Hydroponics	2.5	11-77	2-78

Geothermal Kinetics, Inc.	Boggs Mountain, CA	Electric	8.0	2-78	5-78
RLK and Company	Timberline Lodge, OR	Space Heating	10.0	6-78	10-78
Republic Geothermal	Westmorland, CA	Electric	22.0	3-78	6-78
Argosy	Perrine Ranch, CA	Exploration	5.0	6-78	9-78
Republic Geothermal	East Mesa, CA	Power Plant	25.0	1-78	4-78
Geothermal Kinetics	ERDA Appl. #5, CO	Electric	5.0	12-77	3-78
Geothermal Kinetics	ERDA Appl. #6, MT	Electric	10.0	1-78	4-78
City of Susanville	Susanville, CA	Elec/Non-Elec.	.18.0	12-77	3-78
Geothermal Kinetics	ERDA Appl. #9, CA	Electric	7.0	4-78	7-78
Geothermal Kinetics	ERDA Appl. #10, ID	Electric	10.0	4-78	7-78
Technology International	Susanville, CA	Space Heating	2.0	?-78	?-78
Technology International	Hot Lake Resort, OR	Space Heating	1.0	?-78	?-78
Technology International	LeGrande, OR	Space Heating	6.0	?-78	?-78
Technology International	Boise, ID	Space Heating	10.0	?-78	?-78
Technology International	Vale, OR	Space Heating	10.0	?-78	?-78
Whitewater Geothermal	ID	Space Heat/	6.0	7-78	10-78
Geothermal Fisheries, Inc.	ID	Greenhouse Aquaculture	1.4	10-77	1-78
Garden Valley Geothermal	Garden Valley, ID	Space Heating	0.5	4-78	7-78

.

P.S. Ogden Power Company	Lakeview, OR	Space Heating	3.5	12-77	3-78
American Drilling and Grouting	New Mexico	Electric	9.0	1-78	4-78
III. POTENTIAL APPLICATIONS					
Geothermal Resources	Round Mountain, CA	Electric	15.0	mid-77	12-78
Geothermal Kinetics	ERDA Appl. #12, NM		8.0	early-78	mid-78
Geothermal Kinetics	ERDA Appl. #13, NV		12.0	early-78	mid-78
Geothermal Kinetics	ERDA Appl. #14, CA		9.0	early-78	mid-78
Diablo Exploration	Several projects			1978	1978
Aminoil	Several projects			1978	1978
Magma	Long Valley, CA	Electric	15.0	mid-77	1-78
Republic Geothermal	Imperial Valley, CA	Electric	15.0	mid-77	1-78
Coastal States Oil	CA	Electric	?	mid-77	late-78
Renewable Energy Systems	CA	Non-electric	?	mid-78	late-78
Morningside Heights	Boise, ID	Space Heating	2.0	mid-78	late-78
Sonadri	Carson City, NV	Electric	?	late-78	late-78
				late-78	

Source: San Francisco Operations Office, DOE, 1977.

Table 13

5 M 12 1 10 4 4 4 5 1 5

Applications Submitted for Loan Guaranties										
NUMBER	DATE RECEIVED	PROJECT	LOCATION	TYPE	TOTAL COST	LOAN AMOUNT	INTEREST RATE	LENDER	DATE TO HQ Date approved	TOTAL APPLICATION \$
1	10-6-76	Dry Creek Exploration (GRI) w/Chevron Oil	Geysers	Expl-53MW	13.499	7.500	120%P +1/20	Bank of America		\$7.500
2	10-26-76	GeoCal (GeoProducts)	Honey Lake	Expl-55MW	3.654	2.269	125%P	Bank of Montreal		9.769
3	10-26-76	R-1975 Geothermal Energy Drilling Program (RGI)	East Mesa	Expl-36MW	12.045	9.030	120%P +1/29	Bank of America	1/21/77 5/6/77	18.799
4	2-28-77	CU I Venture (McCulloch and Geothermal Kinetics)	Brawley	Expl-55MW	2.459	1.750	120%P	Bank of Montreal	8/6/77 9/30/77 (1/13/78)	20.549
5	3-2-77	So. Cal. Public Energy Corporation (Burbank)	24 sites	Expl-50MW Geo or 200 Hybrid	34.188 MW	25.000	6 1/2% to 1980 7% 1981-19	Dean Wit Trustee 85	ter,	45.549
6	3-4-77	Geothermal Food Processors	Brady Hot Springs	Food Dehy- dration Plant	3.815	2.,864	P+2%	Nevada Nat'l Ba	8/6/77 nk 9/30/77	48.128
7	3-8-77	Diablo Exploration	New Mex.	Exp1-50MW	29.000	21.800	8.5%	Kidder Peabody, Trustee		70.212
8	9-14-77	RFL-NCPA	Geysers	Expl-66MW Field Dev.	19.322	14.489	8.75%	Berg & C	0.	84.702
9	10-29-77	RGI/MAPCO Westmorland	Westmor- land	Expl-55MW Field Dev.	28.981	21.0	8.85%(?)	Bank of America		105.702

52 2 -4.5

eleven production wells and four reinjection wells at East Mesa in the Imperial Valley. RGI plans to develop the field and construct a 45 MW power plant on the site. The financing of the power plant will potentially be from another loan guaranty.

The second loan guaranty was granted to Geothermal Food Processors, Inc. (GFP), of Turlock, California. The project is for the design and construction of a vegetable dehydration plant at Brady Hot Springs, Nevada. Ten wells were previously drilled by Magma Power Company; four of these were considered useable for the project. According to GFP, utilizing geothermal fluids is replacing natural gas 100 percent, normally used for this type of venture. GFP expects to begin operation on September 1, 1978.

The third guaranty granted was for a joint venture between Geothermal Kinetics, Inc., of Phoenix, Arizona, and McCulloch Geothermal Corporation of Los Angeles, California (McCulloch Oil) called the CUI venture. The original application was for exploratory projects on three separate sites: Beryl and Lund in Utah, and South Brawley in the Imperial Valley, California. The Beryl and Lund projects were for completion of exploration work, drilling temperature gradient holes, and a test well at each site. The Brawley project was for drilling and testing of two wells. The loan guaranty granted was for the Brawley project only.

The Beryl and Lund sites were not approved, basically because there was a disagreement over the temperature of the resource. The USGS projected temperatures were not in agreement with those of the applicants. In summary, ERDA was not satisfied that the risk involved was low enough to warrant the loan guaranties.

This particular application has raised several issues and is of interest when evaluating the GLGP.

 Multiple site applications and whether or not DOE will accept these; and do the projects have to be related in order to incorporate them into one application.

2) What collateral is acceptable other than that directly associated with the project and how is the value of that collateral to be determined.

3. Differences of opinion between USGS and other consultants.

4. Most important of all, whether or not the GLGP is going to be used for exploratory projects. The GLGP is supposed to be used for exactly this purpose. If little or no risk is involved, then what purpose does the GLGP serve? Apparently the government places a probability on the risk and if it does not fall within their criterion, it is rejected. Neither the law nor the regulations has stated that the approval of a project will be judged on the projected risk associated with it. Reasonable assurance of repayment is a criteria, though the GLGP is supposed to assume risk, not dismiss it. How much risk should the GLGP assume?

5. CUI also raised the issue of who has the authority to "sign-off" on an application. The loan guaranty was originally approved on September 30, 1977, the last day of ERDA, by the Acting Administrator. There was an ensuing debate over this and was given final approval on January 13, 1978 by the DOE Deputy Secretary acting for the Secretary. This type of situation has done little to promote the program and the credibility of those involved and the government. (A DOE document assigning the duty to the Director of Procurement and Contracts Management had been issued on October 3, 1977.)

The Dry Creek/Chevron application (Dry Creek is a subsidiary of Geothermal Resources International) is still not complete. Dry Creek and Chevron have an agreement where Chevron would be the operator. Dry Creek is currently amending its application to deepen an existing well Chevron drilled. Delay was due to the difficulty Dry Creek had in obtaining proprietary data from Chevron. Chevron's concern was the protection of these proprietary data. This seems to have been resolved now and Dry Creek is hopeful for completion of the application.

GeoCal, a subsidiary of GeoProducts, submitted an application for development of a power plant at Honey Lake, California. There was a difference of opinion between the applicant and USGS concerning the temperature. The application is being held in obeyance but has been "informally rejected". GeoCal expects to submit an application for a hydroponics facility on the same property. GeoCal also submitted a proposal for the nonelectric Program Opportunity Notice (PON) (cost-shared program) which it did not receive. It was hoped that the amount of the PON would be used for partial financing of the hydroponics project and be deducted from the amount of the loan guaranty. There are conflicting opinions within SAN on the legality of such a procedure, although the regulations, §790.21(19) and §790.43(a), clearly allow it.

The Southern California Public Energy Corporation (City of Burbank, California) submitted an application for exploration and construction of an electric generating plant. A site has not yet been chosen and they would prefer to use a partially developed lease which would eliminate any of the leases they presently have access to. One possibility was a 500-750 MW hybrid power plant using geothermal (20-40 percent) and coal (60-80 percent). Burbank's demand is 250 MW and is seeking additional users to enter into an agreement; Pasadena, California is a possibility.

Diablo Exploration of Oakland, California submitted an application for exploration and eventual construction of a power plant in New Mexico. Diablo has an agreement with Public Service of New Mexico to sell electricity but is looking for an operator to conduct drilling and supply needed capital.

The Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), a group of ll municipalities, and Resources Fund Limited (RFL), have an application for a drilling program possibly leading to construction of two power plants at the Geysers. There is a legal dispute concerning the property. NCPA is working on another application for construction of power plants on federal leases held by Shell Oil Company. Shell and NCPA have entered into an agreement whereby Shell will supply steam. NCPA assumed the Technical Amendments would be signed into law and must also negotiate a contract to transmit the electricity with Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) of San Francisco, California.

Republic Geothermal (RGI) and Mapco, Inc. of Tulsa, Oklahoma, have submitted an application for exploration and potential construction of a power plant at Westmoreland in the Imperial Valley, California. This is the second application for RGI. The application is undergoing evaluation by the various consultants and was sent to Headquarters (HQ) in November, 1977 for preliminary review.

Application Process and Review

A set of application guidelines may be obtained from the GLGP office at the DOE San Francisco Operations Office (SAN). There have been three publishings of these guidelines; June, September, and December, 1976, with changes in each. An applicant or any interested party should obtain the most recent edition of the guidelines.

The guidelines include a general description of the program and the procedures for applying, a copy of P.L. 93-410, Rules and Regulations (10 CFR 790), an application form (Appendix K), and a description of the information required by the borrower and lender.

The SAN-GLGP staff assists the applicants in preparation of the application and makes a recommendation to the Manager of SAN for approval or nonapproval of the project. The GLGP staff is divided into five specialized areas: management, finance, marketing, geology, and legal.

The applicant supplies data including: a) environmental reports, b) geological, geophysical, and geochemical data, well data, c) utilization process, d) financial information about the firm, e) project economics, f) management capabilities of the firm, g) a milestone plan describing the project goals, h) marketability of the resource, and i) legal data concerning the projects assets, leases, pending litigation, patents, permits, and the structure of the organization. The lender supplies financial and management information, and legal documents: a) a description of the management experience of staff associated with the project, b) current audited financial statements, c) loan agreement, and d) lender's assessment of borrower's loan application.

These requirements are presented in detail in the application guidelines and regulations. Appendix L represents a draft of a Loan Guaranty Agreement.

Figure 3 represents the stages an application follows. The United States Geological Survey (U.S.G.S.) conducts an assessment of the resource and supervises field work if a guaranty is granted. The USGS evaluates the level of risk associated with a particular area. This evaluation is based on temperature at depth, permeability, and fluid chemistry when a well has been drilled. The USGS must decide whether or not data submitted by the applicant are complete or not for the evaluation.

The applications are sent to other consultants for technical, economic, and environmental evaluations:

- Idaho National Engineering Laboratory (INEL), Idaho Falls, Idaho - technical and economic evaluation.
- Oak Ridge National Laboratory, Oak Ridge, Tennessee environmental evaluation.




Source: San Francisco Operations Office, 1977.

- Stanford Research Institute, Wilsey & Ham, Arthur Young, or National Economic Research Assoc. (NERA) economic evaluation.

The consultants employed for the economic evaluation vary and additional firms are under consideration.

A loan application contains the following sections:

1. Recommendation Package

2. Staff Analysis

3. Loan Guaranty Agreement

4. Statement of Negative Determination

5. Administrator's Statement of Findings

6. Memo: Administrator to Manager

7. Application

8. General Overview of Project

9. Staff Summaries

legal environmental geo resource/utilization financial marketing management patents USGS report - resource assessment ORNL or USGS report - environment INEL (EG&E) report - technical and economic economic report supporting legal information After the consultants and GLGP staff submit their reports and evaluation of the project, the package undergoes a Senior Review by the SAN staff. Finance, Procurement, Environment, and General Counsel review the application, make comments, recommendations, and point out problems or the need for additional material.

After the "in-house review" is conducted, a recommendation is sent to the SAN Manager. The program package with the recommendation of the SAN Manager, is sent to Headquarters (HQ) in Washington. It is still not clear at what stage the package should be forwarded to HQ. SAN recently sent the fourth application to HQ in advance of the completion of the review, hoping to speed up the time spent in reaching a final decision.

Under ERDA, the Division of Geothermal Energy (DGE) managed the program. No application has undergone any review since the transition to DOE. The management of the program was changed to Resource Applications. They have not determined how the program will be handled and are still working up a workload schedule.

In DGE, the position of the Chief of the Loan Guaranty Branch was filled for the first application only (RGI). For the review of the second and third applications (CUI and GFP), the position was temporarily filled by a staff member from Solar, Geothermal, and Advanced Energy Systems.

A total of four applications were sent to HQ. The first three (RGI, CUI, and GFP) were sent from SAN with recommendations for approval. The fourth application was sent in November, 1977 before any recommendation was made or consultant's reports completed. Any questions concerning the application could be taken care of before SAN sent a recommendation.

The RGI, GFP, and CUI applications were sent to HQ and then distributed by one central staff person to HQ personnel. The fourth application was sent directly to persons reviewing the project. Basically, the copies were given to the following groups:

- Office of Energy Financing, Office of the Controller (OC)
- 2. General Counsel (GC)
- 3. Environment and Safety (AES)
- 4. Division of Geothermal Energy (DGE) of Solar, Geothermal, and Advanced Energy Systems (ASGA).

Within DGE, several staff members from various groups reviewed the applications, including: 1) Resource Utilization, 2) Resource Assessment, 3) Environmental, 4) Utilization Technology. Other DGE staff members were also asked to review the applications. General Counsel does a general legal evaluation including contractual agreements, titles, ownership

of assets and collateral, and National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) of 1969 issues. The Office of Energy Financing of Controller's Office (OC) determines the risk associated with the proposed project, whether the equity is sufficient and the applicant has incurred risk also. OC also determines whether there exists "reasonable assurance" that the loan can be repaid. If project assets or cash flows are insufficient for repayment, OC evaluates any additional collateral. Other areas examined by the various divisions determine whether or not there exist: a) environmentally acceptable means of exploration and development, an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) is prepared for this purpose, b) whether the resource is sufficient to support the proposed commercialization project, and c) technical feasibility of the proposed project.

These are some of the major areas examined but this list is not all inclusive of the types of questions raised during the reviewing of the applications. An application is not always in its completed form. Consultant reports and environmental impact reports may be delayed. These delays are not insignificant and add time to the review process.

The review was originally scheduled to take from 90 to 120 days (3-4 months). Applicants have expressed desires for this to be shortened, preferably to 3 months.

Table 14 represents the amount of time an application has taken from start to finish to process.

Table 14

Application Processing

	First contact to submission of application	SAN	HQ	Total		
East Mesa (Republic Geothermal)	6	4	3	13		
GFP	9	6	2	17		
CUI	_7	_5	_6	18		
Totals	22	15	11	48		
Average	7 1/3	5	3 2/3	16		
Average time spent in government - 8.66 months.						

Source: SAN, 1977.

Under ERDA, the Assistant Administrator for Solar, Geothermal, and Advanced Energy Systems (ASGA), the Assistant Administrator for Environment and Safety, Controller, and General Counsel (GC) had responsibility to agree to disagree with SAN's recommendation. The Administrator had the authority to overrule the above mentioned decisions and had final approval or disapproval authority for geothermal loan guaranties. All four parties in the past did not concur with the recommendation for approval by SAN on the three applications. Under DOE it is not yet clear who will have this authority. The program management is now with Resource Applications and the Director of Procurement and Contracts Management has authority for the final decision.

Prior to the ERDA-DOE transition, papers were being generated on how to more effectively process and review the applications and draft a policy and procedure for this purpose. The first loan guaranty was approved in May, 1977. And since that time, almost one year ago, it has not yet been resolved. The ERDA-DOE transition can account for some of the delay but primarily it is politics, power, and personalities involved. The role and responsibilities of the Controller, Assistant Secretary Environment, Assistant Secretary Energy Technology, Assistant Secretary Resource Applications, General Counsel and Director of Procurement and Contracts Management are not at all clear. Until this is resolved, the reviewing of any loan guaranty applications will be an extremely time consuming process.

In summary, several reasons exist for delays in the processing of the applications:

- There exists no formal procedure for reviewing the applications,
- USGS does not have the time, considering their workload, to meet the prescribed 3-week deadline (dependent on leasing schedule),

- 3. Some personnel at HQ and USGS do not give the loan guaranty program reviews equal consideration along with their other responsibilities.
- application quality varies extensively and often additional information is required, and
- 5. it has not been determined who has authority for the decision to approve or disapprove a loan guaranty.

Figure 4 illustrates the concurrence chain under ERDA and Figure 5 is the situation under DOE at the time this paper was written (March, 1978).

In addition, many policy issues regarding the GLGP have not yet been resolved.

- 1. What qualifies as the 25 percent equity share; is the market value of historic cost of any assets to be used in determining this?
- Resolving differences of opinion between SAN and HQ.
- 3. How to handle multiple-site applications.
- 4. Are lease acquisition and exploration (wildcatting) going to be allowed for loan guaranties?
- 5. Should greater responsibility be given to SAN?





SAN -San Francisco Operations Office

ASGA -Assistant Administrator for Solar, Geothermal, and Advanced Energy Systems AES -Assistant Administrator for Environment and Safety

Lined areas represent Headquarters, Washington, D.C.

89





SAN -San Francisco Operations Office AS/RA-Assistant Secretary Resource Applications AS/ET-Assistant Secretary Energy Technology AS/EV-Assistant Secretary Environment

Lined areas represent Headquarters, Washington, D.C.

EXTERNALITIES AFFECTING THE GEOTHERMAL LOAN GUARANTY PROGRAM

The Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program is directed at lowering the financial barriers to geothermal development. There exist several factors that have not allowed for capital flow into geothermal resource development. These factors, with time and experience, would probably be eliminated and definitely less constraining. Reservoir uncertainties, unproved technology, economic performance, and historically conservative attitudes of utilities and bankers have led to a high risk situation and a lack of confidence in the utilization of geothermal resources.

The Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program cannot be of service if the barriers to submitting an application for a loan guaranty are prohibitive. These problems have been recognized by the government and industry, but it is crucial to acknowledge the environment in which the loan guaranty is expected to function. Even with current or near current technologies, geothermal resources cannot be duly exploited without the elimination and streamlining of these "externalities."

If a firm cannot acquire leases and drilling permits, no amount of financial assistance will be of significance. The affects of these external factors on the Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program are outlined in this chapter.

General Overview

The author has determined the following areas which have had an impact on the performance of Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program.

- Government policy, attitude, political environment, delay in passing legislation.
- 2. Tax treatment: intangible drilling cost write-offs and depletion.
- 3. Legal issues: definition and ownership of the resource.
- 4. ERDA-DOE transition: organizational change impact on the GLGP.
- 5. Government supports affecting the GLGP; Demonstration and Reservoir Case History Programs.
- 6. Permit acquisition: time and expense.
- 7. Lease acquisition: acreage limitation, delays, bonus bidding, leasehold size, reclassification.
- 8. Environmental reporting requirements and regulations: federal, state, and local.
- 9. State and local development of legal and regulatory issues.
- Steam pricing: based on costs of alternative fuel prices.

11. Contractual agreements to sell electricity to utilities or to transmit electricity through utility systems.

12. Utility rate structure and regulatory constraints.

13. Cost factors.

- 14. Innovation, education, and general public awareness of geothermal resources.
- 15. Industry misconceptions of the GLGP: need for information dissemination.

Many of these items cited are of a more general nature in that they affect the geothermal industry whether or not there exists a loan guaranty program; however, some are specifically detrimental to the GLGP. The relationship between these factors and the GLGP illustrates their potential impact on the GLGP.

The ERDA-DOE Transition

The ERDA-DOE transition and reorganization (P.L. 95-91, Department of Energy Organization Act) of 10/1/77, has not yet been completed. Divisions within DOE are unsure as to which has authority and what functions it is expected to perform for the Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program.

Under ERDA, the Division of Geothermal Energy of the Solar, Geothermal, and Advanced Energy Systems Division, was responsible at Headquarters (HQ), Washington, D.C., for administering the review of applications from the San Francisco Operations Office. The Administrator of ERDA had final authority to sign for approval or disapproval of a loan guaranty. A DOE Interim Management Directive (IMD) dated Sept. 13, 1977, "DOE Organization" authorized the Director of Procurement and Contracts Management (PR) as the one who..."negotiates and administers all contracts and grants, cooperative agreements, and loan guarantees at headquarters and oversees those performed in the field." Another IMD dated October 3, 1977, "Continuity of Operations, Authority Delegations, and Order of Secretarial Succession in the Department of Energy," contained the following authority delegation to the Director of Procurement and Contracts Management:

"Enter into, approve, and take such other action as may be necessary and appropriate with respect to any contractual arrangement, interagency agreement, grant, loan guarantee, or other similar action committing the Department of Energy (DOE) to applicable laws, policies, regulations, and procedures. Such action shall include determinations and decisions except those determinations and decisions required by law or regulation to be made by other authority;..." Signed James R. Schlessinger, Secretary of Energy, effective October 1, 1977 (IMD No. 0204, U.S. DOE).

These delegations clearly stated that the Director of Procurement and Contracts Management has authority for the GLP. The DOE <u>Fact Book</u> of Organization and Functions published on September 13, 1977 states the Assistant Secretary for Resource Applications has "program responsibility." An ERDA division, Commercial Applications, now under DOE's

Resource Applications, employs a staff position of Chief, Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program, originally under DGE during ERDA.

The Secretarial delegation of authority to the Controller does not mention loan guaranty programs, however, the DOE Fact Book includes "administer financing studies for loan guarantees" as a function of this office.

It has not, as of the writing of this report, been determined what responsibilities for the Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program will be delegated to the following three divisions: Controller, Procurement, and Resource Applications (Commercial Applications). Each of these offices has generated proposals on how to deal with this. Resource Applications would like the Assistant Secretary (AS/RA) to be delegated the final authority. The loan guaranty approved on January 13, 1978, was signed by the Deputy Secretary of DOE and not by the Director of Procurement and Contracts Management; one wonders how effectively a program can function under such confusion.

In addition to the problem of defining roles and functions, some of the key personnel have changed even since October 1, 1977, DOE's birthday. Many of the Assistant Secretarial positions, including Resource Applications, were not confirmed by Congress until early 1978, several

months later. Changing staff and offices has afflicted the GLGP, not only in the ERDA-DOE changeover, but also before DOE.

The person having authority for approving has changed three times, although the Acting Administrator of ERDA signed for all three loan guaranties and the Deputy Secretary of DOE signed again for the CUI venture. The Manager of the San Francisco Operations Office has changed hands at least three times since June 1976, startup for the GLGP. The Director of DGE changed twice and the position of Chief, Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program, was vacated during the review process of two of the three applications and filled temporarily by a member of the staff of Solar, Geothermal, and Advanced Energy Systems. That position, now in Commercial Applications was returned to the original Chief of the Loan Guaranty Program.

The DOE organization has shifted program responsibility and therefore created confusion and lack of management for the program. The program has suffered in terms of time, and credibility or confidence by the applicants.

SAN has had to deal with new personnel, to educate and negotiate with each change, to familiarize them with the program. More destructive has been the lack of continuity and structure. With whom does the responsibility lie, to whom does the application get sent, with whom should SAN negotiate, who has to be satisfied at Headquarters? These questions have not been satisfactorily answered.

Leasing

Leasing activity has been hindered by government regulations and slow processing of lease applications.

Barriers to leasing include acreage limitations of 20,480 acre maximum per state, reclassification of overlapping noncompetitive lease applications, and regulations that allow for exploration without permits on unleased land. If noncompetitive lease applications overlap by 50 percent or more, the land is reclassified as a KGRA and thus cancels the applications and competitive bids must be made.

There exists means to circumvent some of these: land holding companies, (increase to 51,200 acres is pending), and irregular shaped acreage in lease applications. An operator takes a risk if he should do exploratory work on unleased property and as a result of his efforts the acreage is reclassified as a KGRA. It is now open to competitive bonus bidding, thereby the operator loses the economic advantage and increases competition for the property.

In addition, due to reclassification regulations, Gerald Kitchen of Amax, Inc., points out:

"... If an operator intends to include federal acreage in his land package, the reclassification problem requires that he puts the brakes on his exploration project--even on adjacent private lands--until the leases are issued." (Geothermal Resources Council Short Course No. 4, 1976).

In order to conduct exploratory work on a federal lease the operator must adhere to the various regulatory requirements involving permits and environmental reports. The procedures outlined here cover only the federal requirements; state and local regulations to obtain permits and submission of environmental reports must also be adhered to.

Environmental Regulations

Figure 6, Flow Chart of Critical Path in Geothermal Exploration, identifies the various agencies, and requirements for six phases of geothermal development. In order to conduct initial exploration prior to leasing, a pre-lease exploration permit must be acquired from the Bureau of Land Management (BLM). A firm files a Notice of Intent to Conduct Geothermal Resource Exploration in order to obtain the permit. The BLM must prepare an Environmental Analysis Record (EAR) and a post-lease Environmental Analysis (EA). An application for a Permit to Drill must be obtained from the USGS and a Plan of Operation is submitted for surface or well work.

Much delay and expense is involved in these requirements where the BLM and/or USGS has been slow to complete these requirements, resulting in more time lost and a potential increase in costs to the operator. Equipment and labor must be scheduled to conduct the work, making the streamlining of permitting requirements vital to development.

Figure 6. Flow Chart of Critical Path in Geothermal Exploration.

STATISTIC AND A STATISTICS AND A STATISTICS



Source: Howard, J.H., editor, Present Status and Future Prospects for Nonelectrical Uses of Geothermal Resources, 1975, p. 101. 82

"The lack of both environmental data and standards slows the environmental approval process. Moreover, the approval process is further slowed by lengthy, complex and often apparently inconsistent rules, laws, and regulations at federal, state, and local The overlay of jurisdiction of the responlevels. sible agencies further compounds the process, and has caused much unnecessary duplication of industrial effort in preparation of environmental state-The uncertainty of ultimate approval and ments. the time involved in obtaining approval have been cited by the industry as major deterrents to geothermal investment." (ERDA Vol. 2: Program Implementation).

In some geographic localities the number of permits required ranges from 40 to 70; a staggering amount of time and money is devoted to this. The applicants and potential applicants for a loan guaranty most often cite the environmental reporting requirements as the major problem area. Table 15, Federal Regulations Applicable to Geothermal Resource Development Projects, is a list of eight federal laws involving environmental, leasing, and various other regulations. It is hoped this list will impress the reader with the magnitude and complexity of the issue.

Demonstration Program

The Geothermal Demonstration Program is possibly affecting the GLGP by creating competition for applications. The demonstration program is possibly being used at the expense of the GLGP.

Table 15

Federal Regulations Applicable to Geothermal Resource Development Projects

- Geothermal Steam Act of 1970 (Public Law 91-581, 84 Stat. 1566).
- 2) Clean Air Act of 1970 (Public Law 91-604, 42 USC 1857 et seq.)
- 3) Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendement of 1972 (Public Law 92-500, 86 Stat. 861).
- 4) Norse Control Act of 1972 (Public Law 92-574, 86 Stat. 1234).
- 5) Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (Public Law 92-583).
- 6) Endangered Species Act of 1973 (Public Law 93-205, 87 Stat. 884).
- 7) Geothermal Energy Research, Development, and Demonstration Act of 1974 (Public Law 93-410, 88 Stat. 1079).
- Federal Nonnuclear Energy Research and Development Act of 1974 (Public Law 93-557, 88 Stat. 1878).
- Source: Guidelines to the Preparation of Environmental Reports for Geothermal Development Projects, February 1977.

いったい、ことがたいない、いいためではないとないないないないか。 あいかいたいたいがいたいとう たたいたいの あとうちゅう

These two programs are aiming toward the same goals using different means; and it may be that one is preferable for developing the resource. The loan guaranty program will have longer and further reaching impact than the demonstration program in that it develops the financial communities knowledge of the resource and the capital requirements. The Demonstration Program may make possible an otherwise uneconomic project but this does not necessarily encourage

additional power plants. If the project is uneconomic without federal subsidy, it will not be undertaken without these funds. If the project is economic without these funds but the obstacle is capital acquisition, the GLGP can be used in its place. The author doubts very much that any firm would use borrowed money when it can obtain 30 to 50 percent of the costs without having to pay them back. Unless power plants are economic, they will not be built no matter how many demonstration plants exist.

Several of the arguments in favor of the demonstration program over the GLGP for power plant construction are erroneous. The proported delay of a "decade or two," if the demonstration program was abandoned, has no substance and will not be the case.

The same holds true for the view that the GLGP "...will have little applicability as a financial vehicle for constructing power plants..." This was based on the thinking that only utility companies would be building power plants and did not need the guaranty to raise capital. It is now demonstrated that several small firms, in cooperation with the larger firms are applying for loan guaranties to construct power plants.

No loan guaranties have been granted as yet for this type of project but the prospect of this occuring is encouraging. If the government has enough faith in the

viability of such a project to give away tens of millions of dollars, one would think the government should risk at least the same amount for a loan guaranty where there exists an opportunity for repayment.

and a standard water a substantia a standard a standard a substantia a substantia a substantia a substantia a s Addarda substantia a The Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program has had to function and co-exist with these various "externalities." The impact of these factors needs to be recognized. The situation must be corrected if we expect the program to have any impact on developing geothermal resources. Much has been devoted to the more obvious and conventional barriers in the literature. The ERDA-DOE transition, low priority among DOE staff, and demonstration program are less known factors, whose impact is as great or greater in damaging the performance of the program.

EVALUATING THE GEOTHERMAL LOAN GUARANTY PROGRAM: ATTITUDES AND PERSPECTIVES

The perspective of industry, lending institutions, and the utilities of the GLGP are vital to its success and implementation of any change in the operation or requirements. Views generally held by these groups are presented here. With each geographic location, within each company, depending on the resource and the utility, views of the GLGP differ. Some see it as a tool for exploration and others believe its only viable use will be in the construction of power plants. Others feel that exploration and wildcatting should not be a part of the program, citing its high risk and the availability of capital for exploration through other means.

Discussed here are the perspectives of the industry first, which are separated into two main groups: large integrated firms including major oil companies, and smaller independent firms. These two groups vary in their analysis of the program.

Secondly, utility companies are discussed, whose views vary depending on their need and size. Thirdly, lending institutions, who generally are in agreement about the program. Finally, the author will evaluate the program from an outsider's vantage point having been exposed to all of the above mentioned groups.

Industry Evaluation

It is generally agreed that not much has happened in the development of geothermal energy. The industry believes that intangibles and depletion write-offs and better federal leasing practices will stimulate development of geothermal resources. Geothermal drilling funds compete with oil and gas funds, where favorable tax writeoffs exist. However, legislation is pending to allow for IDC's.

The U.S. House of Representatitives, Sub-committee on Energy Research, Development, and Demonstration held hearings and solicited comments from the industry regarding the Loan Guaranty Program. The general consensus of opinion was favorable and enthusiastic with respect to the need for the program.

The larger firms never saw it as a viable tool for themselves, they cite the following reasons for this: the 25 percent equity requirement is unappealing, political

climate and fear of defaulting being bad public relations. The large firms are prime rate borrowers which represents cheaper capital than the Loan Guaranty Program could offer.

To the smaller firm, the Loan Guaranty Program may offer cheaper money, permits retention of full control and ownership of interests. This may also have a positive effect on the firms' rate of return. Many feel that without the GLGP they would not be able to go ahead with projects. The high leverage, long-term loans are attractive to these firms.

The larger firms are becoming involved in the GLGP, through contracts to supply the resource and/or by agreeing to be the operator, while the smaller firms make the applications for a loan guaranty. This arrangement has not yet been worked out in a loan guaranty but the industry is hopeful that DOE will approve. The large firms do not care for building and operating a power plant and have little desire to become involved in the "utility business." The following remain obstacles for this type of arrangement: price of electricity, price of steam, transmitting the electricity, utility involvement and possibly purchase. Enthusiasm in no way resolves these problems.

According to the industry representatives and lenders contacted, the guidelines are clearly written and easy to understand. No one had any difficulty with these, but found that the newest edition was an improvement over the previous ones.

One of the problems in getting people to respond to inquiries regarding the program is that they have not thoroughly familiarized themselves with the program. Only the applicants have been able to respond directly to these aspects of the program. Much of the industry is becoming familiarized with the program through the efforts of lenders in promoting the program. Many firms are not yet at a point where they feel advantage can be taken of the program.

There exists a diversion of opinion on what is the best use for loan guaranties. The law provides that all phases of development, including lease acquisition, exploration, field development, and power plant construction can qualify for a loan guaranty. Some believe its best use is for capital intensive construction and not exploration, while others feel it is most useful in exploration. Those who believe the GLGP should be used for wildcatting, usually smaller firms holding leases, are not pleased with priorities the regulations have set.

High risk and high drilling costs are associated with exploration ventures. One view is that, due to high risk and the incurred costs, no loan guaranties should be made for this purpose; it would end up subsidizing the industry because of the little possibility for repayment. The other view is that this is exactly what the program's function should be.

The high risk and costs are exatly what is inhibiting new discoveries and without discovery, the exploitation of geothermal resource potential is impossible. Developing proven resources is less risky and will be undertaken by resource firms if there is a purchaser for the resource. Guarantying exploration activity will probably mean greater probability of default; but that this should be the purpose of the program. They feel that if the government is not willing to accept the risks, then the program will fail. Possibly a limited dollar amount should be placed on guaranties for exploration but these activities need to be guaranteed.

This divergence of opinion and philosophy surrounding the use of loan guaranties also exists between SAN and HQ. Section 201(d) of P.L. 93-410 requires that there exists "reasonable assurance of repayment of the loan." Repayment may be from projectassets or other collateral, or funds generated from cash flows associated with the project. The "reasonable assurance of repayment" presents another variance in interpretation between SAN and HQ. SAN believes the GLGP is to assume greater risk than normally undertaken in business ventures while HQ has a more conservative interpretation of the allowable risk for granting loan guaranties.

Basically, it is agreed that the GLGP will assist the smaller firms and not the larger integrated firms who have little or no financial problems.

Applicants agree that the government and GLGP staff have learned a lot in a short time but are not yet proficient in handling the various types of projects and financial arrangements. The GLGP is inefficient compared to inhouse financing by a firm and the cost is greater. However, the GLGP lowers the risk substantially to the borrower and this has great appeal.

Problems associated with the GLGP from the applicants' point of view are:

- 1. Cost of preparing an application
- 2. Reviewing time

- 3. Environmental requirements
- 4. 25 percent equity (for some)

5. Consultants may be incompetent and possibly delay review

The need to shorten the time in reviewing an application is vital. The cost of an application, \$40,000-\$100,000 and more, is too high. Information and environmental reports ordinarily not needed add to the high costs. As the process is streamlined and requirements defined and understood, this cost will likely be reduced. But, even with the high cost, all agree they will use the GLGP again.

In summary, the industry generally believes that the GLGP will be used by smaller firms which have trouble raising capital.

Utility Evaluation

The utility industry has its specific considerations when evaluating the GLGP. The utility business is a regulated industry and the rate structure and capital availability does not allow for participation in the GLGP. Utilities are not interested in using the Loan Guaranty Program as they have not committed themselves to geothermal energy. Lack of confidence in the reservoir, capital allocated for conventional fossil-fueled plants, high risk, all contribute to the policies of the utility industry. They are, however, interested in making contractual agreement for purchasing electricity with possibly purchasing the power plant after it has been proven.

Some utilities prefer to finance projects entirely with sale of revenue bonds and maintain a low debt/equity ratio. However, several municipal utilities have shown interest in the GLGP (Susanville, Burbank, and NCPA). Their interest in the GLGP arise because of the lower risk and high leverage but are not interested in making a profit, only in supplying customers with a cheaper source of power. NCPA believes it can offer a lower price when generating its own electricity.

The utility industry is also divided into two camps. Depending on demand, location, alternative energy sources and economics each utility considers the GLGP. Of those spoken to, none except the three municipal utilities of Burbank, Susanville, and NCPA is likely to use the program.

Lending Institutions

Commercial banks and brokerage firms are very interested in lending with the GLGP. Figure 7 is a breakdown of types of institutions and their interest in loan guaranty programs. Commercial banks do not like to engage in long-term (greater than 10 years) debt financing. Projects such as power plant construction will have to be financed with a long-term debt. Therefore, the secondary capital market, security brokers, are interested in purchasing this long-term debt from the banks and selling them on the open market as a government security.

The GLGP is very attractive to the financial community and feel the greatest problems are in the time consuming and delaying negotiations and review processes.

The GLGP is looked upon as any other type of finance and investment arrangement would be and the loan is analyzed using the same criteria as those without a government guaranty. Financial institutions assess the project as they would any other investment in terms of risk and meeting necessary goals for project success. None were willing to finance a geothermal project without the guaranty. Lenders agree that the GLGP is a tool for the smaller firms. The banks are fully aware

Figure 7. Lending Institutions and Their Interest in ERDA's Loan Guaranty Programs.

	Primary Lenders	Concuit to Secondary Market	Secondary Market Purchasers	No Interest
Commercial Banks	×			
Savings & Loan Associations			x	
Mutual Savings Banks			x	
Credit Unions			x	
Life Insurance Companies	. X		×	
Private Pension Funds			x	
State & Local Government Employee Retirement Funds			x	
Other Insurance Companies	x			
Finance Companies				×
Real Estate Investment Trusts				x
Open-end Investment Companies				x
Money Market Funds				×
Security Brokers and Dealers	x	×		
Individuals			x	

Source:

Smith, Russell, et al, Financial Incentives Research and Lending Market Impact Analysis, 1977, p. 3-9.

that they risk little or nothing in terms of dollars. They feel responsible and would not lend on a project they knew was going to default; but there is nothing to stop them from doing this under the GLGP.

Author's Evaluation

The program has not met its original expectations, nor has it met the objectives for which it was instituted. There remains about six more years but if the slow start and poor preparation are indications of what will be for the remainder of the GLGP, the industry will not respond.

The GLGP may make an unprofitable project profitable because of the high leverage and retention of full interest. The program is useful for those types of projects and also for a smaller firm that cannot raise the needed capital internally. It can be especially significant for field development and power plant construction where large sums of money are needed.

The financial community will not make a loan on these projects without the guaranty. The market for the GLGP is excellent and several banks are very interested in promoting the program.

The program has a number of enormous problems which must be alleviated before there will be an increase in the number of applicants.

The lack of response to the program may be attributed to elements directly related to it: a) operating procedures, b) rules and regulations, c) application requirements, d) cost in dollars and time in preparing an application, e) processing and reviewing procedures, f) lack of well-defined criteria for obtaining a guaranty, and g) different interpretations and philosophies among DOE divisions. More significant are the external factors that have hindered the development of the geothermal industry, regardless of the availability of loan guaranties: legal, institutional, technical, economic, and political barriers. The uncertainties associated with the resource due to lack of historical experience and the problems in developing a new industry have affected, to some degree, the utilization of the loan guaranty program. The environmental regulations and reporting requirements do not prevent or limit the use of the program but impedes efficiency, is time consuming, and constrain geothermal resource exploration and development regardless of available financing. If these procedures are not streamlined and made more efficient, the industry will neither realize its potential nor meet the goals the federal government has set. The loan guaranty program is impeded by the general lack of activity in the industry due to these obstacles and not necessarily by the lack of desire or need to use such a program.

The processing and reviewing of loan guaranty applications has been a major problem for the program. There is a great need to establish a process of reviewing and approving applications. The reviewing has been a time-consuming effort and no procedure has been implemented to expect an improvement will be forthcoming. SAN and HQ are not in agreement of what each other's role should be in the program. It has not yet been determined which divisions of DOE will have responsibilities for loan guaranties. Some personnel at HO believe that they need to review the applications because the SAN review is inadequate. They feel that the applications sent to HQ do not supply sufficient data and many questions need to be answered before they can make any recommendations. Although the applications are reviewed at HQ, it has not yet been established whether or not their concurrence with the recommendation from SAN is necessary for approval. It is also necessary to establish the authority who has final approval and whether non-concurrence by another party can be overruled.

Since only three applications have undergone this review, it is difficult to be conclusive in making a determination on the adequacy of SAN's review. Two applications were put into one review package, CUI and GFP, and apparently these were rushed in order to finish the process before the ERDA-DOE transition. Therefore, the quality of the senior staff review may have suffered.

The SAN staff had to look at new issues not previously encountered. The legal review staff had no previous dealings with title search, leasing practices, environmental legalities, corporate issues, etc. The staff was geared to procurement and government contracts and not the workings of a loan guaranty program. This seems to be a problem at all levels. It is a new type of program and has never been used before the GLGP. Procedures defining the purpose and scope of the review had not been drafted. Preparation for the review of loan guaranty applications was either minimal or non existent. Time lost here has also added to the overall ineffectiveness of the program.

The quality of the applications and the information submitted have been a big problem. This can account for some of the lost time in reviewing applications. The applicants, not always familiar with geothermal resources, come from different industries. They do not always have expertise available for the technical or resource information and therefore do not always know what is required. Many of the applicants are not engineers or scientists, nor are they competent in the finance and banking aspects. Applicants may try to submit less than is required. The GLGP represents, for some, an easy way to make money, and are trying to put together deals to take advantage of the program. This is
a problem for the program and unless applications for legitimate projects are submitted by responsible parties, the program will have little impact or credibility. The applicant may not understand what is needed or may wish to hold back information. For this reason, the quality of applications is highly variable.

There is also a need for a policy on the stage of exploration at which an application should be submitted. The applicants should be aware of what type of exploration is acceptable for obtaining a loan guaranty.

The USGS staff works very closely with SAN and has had no contact with HQ. In discrepancies concerning resource assessment between the applicant and USGS, the USGS assessment is honored. Professional disagreement among geologists, geophysicists, etc., is not uncommon and this problem has not been resolved with respect to the GLGP. Consideration is being given for using private industry for this job. There exists feeling in government and industry that the USGS is not the most efficient means of handling the evaluation and that they do not deal with risk and business decisions much needed in the evaluation.

いたい、 たいかいませんがい たんがたい しょうにんきょう いたやき いたいでんかん かんたいがん かかかくない かんたいがん たいできょう インド・ディー

Time constraints have also posed a problem for USGS. The workload at the USGS is heavy and it does not allow enough time for the GLGP to be completed in the time SAN would like,

three weeks; when leasing schedules come up time is more constrained according to the USGS.

Several issues evolve around the use of consultants. The consultants had to demonstrate their capabilities, but it is not clear which of them will be used. The information required for submission to the consultants and what was expected in return seems to have been a problem. The possibility of using private industry to do all of the reviewing is being contemplated. A policy must be established on possible conflicts of interest in this regard.

Because priority is given to small firms, according to the U.S. Department of Commerce's publication of government procurements (February 1978), "\$21 million in guaranties is reserved exclusively for small companies," but not limited to this amount. This raises the issue of who will be the benefactor of the loan guaranty program. The question of whether the small independent firm or the large integrated firm acquiring loan guaranties is most efficient and necessary. The implications of each are different as is their impact on the development of the geothermal industry. The question of if the program increases competition by lowering the barriers to entry is outside the scope of this paper, but must be considered by government agencies, especially in light of other guaranty programs. The GLGP program has not

been in operation long enough to see where it will be most used and by whom.

Problems and ensuing delays have affected the Dry Creek, GeoCal, Burbank, Diablo, and NCPA applications. The author has drawns some conclusions about the fate of these applications based on personal contact with some of the parties and the author's own analysis of the situation. It is doubtful that the GeoCal, Diablo or NCPA/RFL applications will be completed. Long delays for Dry Creek and Burbank are eminent. In summary, considering the status of these applications and the length of time they have been at SAN, none seem very promising.

Problems of the GLGP

Numerous issues concerning the GLGP and therefore its ability to have an impact on geothermal development are listed below:

- Mismanagement of the program, lack of financial and legal expertise.
- Promotion, education, and, in general, public relations for increasing interest need to be further exploited.
- 3. Differences of opinion between consultants.
- 4. Differences of opinion between HQ and SAN.
- 5. Lack of communication between HQ and SAN.

- 6. Friction and areas of conflict between SAN and HQ.
- 7. High cost of application (\$40,000-\$100,000 and higher).
- 8. Time in reviewing applications.
- 9. Lack of established and standardized procedures for reviewing applications.
- 10. Equity: What qualifies and determination of value of property (leases) and other assets.
- 11. Quality of applications.
- 12. Changing staff.
- 13. Long concurrence chain.
- 14. Industry concern about proprietary information and loan being non-recourse, associated only with the assets of the projects.

Where are the Applicants?

Some feel that it is only a matter of time before the GLGP "takes off," while others think this program is not what is needed because the firms who have the capital and expertise to develop the resource will not use the GLGP.

The following are cited as reasons for the lack of response to the program:

- 1. equity is difficult to raise for some applicants,
- 2. reluctance to get involved with federal government,
- 3. high cost of applications,

waiting to see response to applications pending, and
 concern about nonrecourse and proprietary data.

The author feels these arguments lack substance. The well-established resource companies have enough capital sunk into leases to constitute the equity requirement. Response to cost-shared programs is far greater and this involves disclosure of proprietary data. It seems if money is free, the incentive is greater.

There exist many situations external to the program itself that are obstacles to its impact. The potential for such a program seems greater than its actual performance, although these problems may not have received the amount of deserved attention until such a need arose. Possibly the GLGP has had an impact on some of these "external" factors and thereby will promote development of geothermal resources.

The GLGP is a subsidy for the industry. The government is helping to promote private industry by committing themselves to repay loans in default. It is extremely attractive economically and financially. The firm does not have to use its own funds for a project financed in this way. This allows capital flow into other projects and also reduces the risk to the firm. The program has not brought about any developments or projects that would not have been financed by other means, although the GLGP may have speeded up the process.

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program has not had an impact on developing geothermal resources in the short term, although it could potentially stimulate development of geothermal energy. The impact could be more than the addition of electricity, it could mean increased awareness of the potential and utilization of the resource, improvements in technical areas, and the lessening of the reliance on fossil-fuels, especially petroleum.

With only three loan guaranties approved and an additional six, of which five have been at SAN for over a year, the impact and activity are minimal. The program was off to a bad start from the beginning and problems have continued hindering its performance. The staff had little or no prior exposure to geothermal resources and the GLGP was the first loan guaranty program for energy resources. The preparation for implementing the program was not sufficient. Government officials claims this was due to the newness of the program, needed flexibility, and unknowns concerning applicants, projects, and needs.

The use of this type of support is increasing and needs to be examined for its potential success and impact on the development of energy resources and technologies. External factors, operation and management of these programs will determine their ability to meet the expected objectives and goals.

The Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program has not met the expected \$200 million per year in loan guaranties or 20 applications per year expected to be received by the San Francisco Operations office in Oakland, California administering the program. Table 12, Geothermal Loan Guaranty Applications, was used for budgetary purposes and is very optimistic. Some of the applications may never be submitted; applicants have many prerequisites prior to submission of the application. If the applications are submitted, it does not insure a loan guaranty will be granted or that the project is feasible. A false, optimistic impression of the use of the program may be gotten from this list.

The GLGP is plagued by the general state of the industry, the lack of activity, and the many legal, institutional, and technical barriers.

The GLGP may have negative impact on geothermal development. The GLGP may delay the normal process of exploration

and development by offering more attractive financing arrangement. If a firm can use borrowed money with a lower risk, possibly they would delay a project until such time that they could obtain a federal loan guaranty.

The GLGP may also make it more difficult to obtain capital by conventional means. If lenders can make loans with federal guaranties, they may be reluctant to make them without the guaranty. The author understands that at this time lenders have stated they will not make loans for geothermal projects but possibly the GLGP would delay the establishing of lending without guaranties. This could be of significance especially if the program is extended beyond 1984.

The introduction of other loan guaranty programs, with greater budget appropriations, may increase the competition to obtain loans under the GLGP.

The GLGP may be having an indirect impact on geothermal development. By its very existence, it is generating greater interest and industry may be taking a closer look at the resource than before. The GLGP may also lower the barriers to entry and increase competition by increasing the number of firms in the geothermal industry.

The low priority afforded geothermal resources and the GLGP in government and private sectors contributes to the

lack of response to the program. A need for promotion and education of the GLGP exists. Apparently SAN did not conduct a mass mailing of the newer guidelines, as some industry representatives did not receive them. A mass mailing of the guidelines would be an effective way to educate the industry and promote the program. This need is often demonstrated by the misconceptions held about the GLGP. These include: a) uncertainty that this is a non-recourse loan, one associated only with the assets of a particular project, b) concern about maintaining proprietary information confidential, and c) belief that only leases with deep wells will be considered for a loan guaranty.

If the latter is correct, it is in complete noncompliance with the law (P.L. 93-410) which specifically states lease acquisition and exploration, including thermal gradient and geophysical surveys, are allowable under the GLGP. The GLGP rules and regulations are not consistent with the purpose outlined in the legislation (P.L. 93-410). This act did not assign priorities and clearly stated the GLGP was to be used for lease acquisition and wildcatting. The author believes these will not be approved for loan guaranties by HQ.

The Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program differs from the demonstration program in that the capital subsidy is free

for a demonstration and not for a loan guaranty. The loan guaranty is directed at capital markets in trying to bring about a normal environment for lending in geothermal utilization. The objectives of the GLGP and the demonstration program is similar in that they are both directed at stimulating the industry but it remains as seen and is debatable which will prove more effective. There also exist differences between the two which are suppoed to serve different objectives. The proponents of the demonstration plant believe it will be a prelude to the GLGP, as it is believed the Reservoir Case History Program will also function.

It is the opinion of the author that if the construction of power plants using geothermal resources is profitable, private industry will build them; and if it proves to be unprofitable, they will not. The demonstration program does little to improve the economics and also accomplishes little toward resolving the legal, political, and institutional problems that plague the industry. It also does not obliterate barriers to capital formation in this industry. Even if technical and reservoir uncertainties are laid to rest, many issues must be resolved before we will see large scale use of geothermal resources. The author proposes that given the abatement of the institutional barriers, the granting of tax subsidies, the streamlining of environmental

requirements and leasing procedures, the industry would stand on its own without the direct subsidy a demonstration plant represents.

If projects economics are more attractive and competition increases for capital--if management can get a higher rate of return from coal leases and still exploit their geothermal leases with lower risk and little of their own money--firms will begin to use to GLGP. Once one firm uses it and thereby gain a competitive advantage, others will follow.

The impact of the GLGP on geothermal exploration and development has been negligible so far. In order to evaluate the impact of the GLGP, it should be determined whether or not projects financed with a federal loan guaranty would have been undertaken without the guaranty. It must also be determined what is meant by impact and the significance of any change in status. It may be that any additional use of geothermal energy with the use of the GLGP constitutes an impact. The author is of the opinion that most of the projects undertaken with a GLGP would have, at some later time, been done without a federal loan guaranty.

Beside speeding up the small amount of activity in the industry, the GLGP has had a positive impact on lenders. The GLGP has made the financial community aware of the

potential market for capital in geothermal and become familiar with the resource and its unique qualities.

The impact of the GLGP on geothermal exploration and development will continue to be negligible until the problems surrounding the program and the resource are aleviated.

Conclusions

It is this author's opinion that if the government really wants to promote geothermal development, it should stop creating new programs until either improvements or termination of the ones already existing occur. The federal government, through the Department of Energy, should cease subsidizing the industry. If the legal and institutional barriers were lowered, capital flow into geothermal would be evident. Capital availability would be in the more conventional manner and not through government programs. Government intervention has made it uneconomic for firms to dare invest their own equity in a venture when their competition is being subsidized.

Government activity in geothermal should be limited to research and development for exploration methods, drilling technology, data management and dissemination, leasing, streamlining regulations, and promoting formulation of state and local legislation. Business and government do not operate with the same objectives and constraints. Government

actions can be attributed to political ambitions, national interest, and social benefit; this is not to say that industry disregards these facts but more often seeks larger market shares, integration, increased profits, prestige, and more often deals with real risk situations and real dollars.

Let government support research aggressively, especially on unconventional sources of energy. But the government should "keep out of the development and production phases of energy supply."

Recommendations

The author has attempted to make recommendations believed to be helpful in making the GLGP a better program and attracting applicants. The author proposes these be implemented for the remaining life of the program and that it not be extended beyond September 3, 1984. Several issues must be resolved and policies formulated. These issues are presented herewith in order to stimulate discussion hopefully leading to their resolution.

1. Promotion, public relations, and education need to be further exploited.

SAN conducted seminars for potential borrowers and lenders almost two years ago, during the summer of 1976; possibly this should be repeated. Emphasis at conferences,

seminars, etc., should be on how an applicant can meet the criteria, what the requirements are, and problems, not simply a general overview. Specifics must be addressed. There should be a mass mailing of promotional material and application guidelines. Misconceptions could be eliminated through this means.

2. A schedule of events should be outlined by which SAN will have increased authority and also reduces the number of people reviewing the applications. Review conducted by SAN staff and outside consultants, and then only by the Office of the Controller and possibly General Counsel at HQ would reduce review time substantially. The proximity of the reviewers would also facilitate the process.

3. A policy should be formulated determining what stages of geothermal development the GLGP will be used for: lease acquisition, exploratory drilling, development drilling, or power plant construction. A percentage of available dollars of budgetary authority should be allocated to each category in order to reach an optimal solution that will generate the greatest benefit for the given level of cost. Alternative non-electric utilization could possibly be part of an application if temperatures prove to be insufficient for electric generation.

4. There is too little communication between SAN and HQ. SAN should be advised of all policy decisions and discussion concerning the GLGP. Areas of conflict and the friction and competitive attitude between the two over this program must be eliminated. This has slowed down any progress toward resolving the problems the program has.

5. Policy issues must be decided in the following areas:

- a. Multiple site applications: do these have to be related projects or dependent?
- b. Will market value or cost of leases and other assets qualify as the equity share?

6. Establish procedures and guidelines for reviewing at HQ. The same staff should see all applications; they should not be "farmed out" to different staffs with each application.

7. Concurrence and final approval authority must be assigned. This authority should be given to the Deputy Secretary or some other staff who would be able to overrule a nonconcurrence of the Assistant Secretaries. The author does not believe all parties need to concur with a recommendation in order to reach a final decision on a project.

8. The Division of Geothermal Energy should disassociate itself from the GLGP. Only those divisions who were given

の日本のないないないで、「大学のない」

authority under DOE organization can work to change and improve the program and therefore should be the only ones involved in this process.

9. The Institutional Barriers Panel of the Geothermal Advisory Council should concern itself with the larger problems of legal issues, leasing policies, legislation, and environmental regulations which would also impact the GLGP. There is little or nothing they can or should do with the GLGP. Too many issues need resolving before major institutional changes can occur.

10. A policy decision on the resolution of differences of opinion between SAN, HQ, applicants, and consultants is needed. If a project is rejected on the basis of a poor evaluation of the project in any one area (i.e., management, economics, technical, reservoir temperature, etc.), a third evaluation should be made by an outside party, not by the government's or applicant's consultants.

II. A policy on conflict of interests with respect to applicants and consultants. For example, if a private firm is enlisted to evaluate an application and an employee or client has interests or the firm applying for a loan guaranty, another consultant should be sought.

12. Consultants to be used for evaluating applications must be chosen and be consistent with each one. Private firms may be engaged for this rather than the USGS and ORNL.

The use of the USGS seems questionable considering their time and workload constraints within which they work. It is also suggested that private industry be engaged because they have better access to information and deal with risk and investment as an everyday occurrence. Private industry deals and thinks in terms of real dollars and government has less tendency toward this.

The Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program has until September, 1984, about five and one-half years, to get organized and have an impact on geothermal exploration and development. If change in policy and review procedures and the organizing of DOE do not take place soon, the GLGP will never "take off." The author does not foresee an increase in the number of applications or loan guaranties in the next year or two. This is due to the fact that organization and implementation take a long time in the federal government and preparation of applications is also a time consuming endeavor.

Loan guaranties are a new form of government support in the energy field and many issues warrant further investigation: the impact on capital markets and investments, the effect on allocation and development of resources, interest rates, and competition.

そうちょうとうないでは、これではないというないできょうないできょうないというというないできょうかい いちょうかい ひょうちょう

REFERENCES

- Aidlin, Joseph W., United States law as it affects geothermal development, Proceedings: Second United Nations Symposium on Development and Use of Geothermal Resources, May 1975.
- Barnea, Joseph, Multipurpose geothermal resource development-an overview, Proceedings: Second U.N. Symposium on Development and Use of Geothermal Resources, May 1975.
- Barr, Ronald C., Geothermal energy and electrical power generation, Proceedings: Second U.N. Symposium on Development and Use of Geothermal Resources, May 1975.
- Barrager, Stephen M., and Daniel J. Quinn, Economic analyses of geothermal energy development in California, Stanford Research Institute, Vol. 2. Cost/Benefit Analysis of Government Program Alternatives Regarding Hot Water Geothermal Power, US DOE Contract NO EY-76-C-03-0115-108, CA, May 1977.
- Bierman, Sheldon, and Gaillard T. Hunt, ERDA leaves it lay, The Nation, November 12, 1977, pg. 487-489.
- Bierman, Sheldon, Geothermal energy and the bulk electric power and petroleum industries, Draft, Volumes I, II, III, IV, NSF Grant No. Apr 75-18321-A02, February 1977.
- Bierman, Sheldon, Innovation versus monopoly: geothermal energy in the west, Final Report, US ERDA, Division of Geothermal Energy, July 1977.
- Birsic, Rudolph J., More about geothermal steam or the hottest energy prospect ever, Fullerton, CA, Oct. 1976.
- California State Division of Conservation, Draft report of the state geothermal task force, Sacramento, CA, Nov. 2, 1977.

Eaton, William W., Geothermal energy, U.S. ERDA, Washington, D.C.

Friedman, E., and S. Pond, Legal and institutional impediments to geothermal energy resource development, a bibliography, Mitre Corporation for ERDA-DGE/2268-1, McLean, VA, March 1977.

- Geothermal Resources Council, Proceedings: direct utilization of geothermal energy: a symposium, San Diego, CA, Jan. 31-Feb. 2, 1978.
- Geothermal Resources Council, Proceedings: special short course No. 4, Denver, CO, April 8-9, 1976.
- Geothermal Resources Council, Proceedings: geothermal resources: survey of an emergency industry, Houston, TX, Dec. 12-13, 1977.
- Greider, Robert, Status of economics and financing of geothermal energy power production, Proceedings: Second U.N. Symposium on Development and Use of Geothermal Resources, May 1975.
- Greider, Robert, Economic considerations for geothermal exploration in the western United States, Proceedings: symposium on geothermal energy and Colorado, Colorado Geological Survey, 1974, pgs. 45-60.
- Howard, J.H., Editor, Present status and future prospects for nonelectrical uses of geothermal resources, Lawrence Livermore Laboratory, Univ. of California/Livermore, CA, Oct. 3, 1975 (NATO CCMS Report No. 40, Prepared for ERDA).
- Kitchen, Gerald J., Geothermal leasing practices, Proceedings: Geothermal Resources Development Institute, Salt Lake City, UT, January 27-28, 1977.

- Knutsen, Corey A., Benefits of stimulating geothermal energy development with tax and research subsidies, Pacific Northwest Laboratories, ERDA Contract E(45-1)-1830, August 1976.
- Koenig, James B., Anderson, David N., and Huttrer, Gerald W., Exploration and development of geothermal resources in the United States, Proceedings: Second U.N. Symposium on Development and Use of Geothermal Resources, May 1975.
- Mahoney, Denis J. and A. Charles Bargert, Economic impact of geothermal development, Sonoma & Lake Counties, CA, Spring 1977.
- Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Government support for the commercialization of new energy technologies, MIT Energy Laboratory, Policy Study Group, Cambridge, MA, Nov. 1976.

- McCabe, B.C., Aidlin, J.W., and Falk, Harry W. Jr., Practical aspects of a viable geothermal energy program, Proceedings: Second U.N. Symposium on Development and Use of Geothermal Resources, May 1975.
- McNamara, Jack, Horizontal divestiture and the geothermal industry: a case of mistaken identity, mimeographed.
- Morrison, Richard, A comparative study of selected federal government guarantee programs, Presidential Interchange Executive, Office of Commercialization, ERDA, December, 1976.
- Olson, Harry J. and William M. Dolan, Geothermal energy--an industry appraisal, Mining Congress Journal, March 1976, pg. 18-21.
- Palmer, J.D., Howard, J.H., and D.P. Lande, editors, Geothermal development of the Salton Trough, California and Mexico, Lawrence Livermore Laboratory, Univ. of California, Livermore, CA, April 1, 1975.
- Post, Lee, Preliminary Boise geothermal energy systems plan, City of Boise Energy Task Force, Boise, ID, April 1977.
- Ramachandran, G., Economic analyses of geothermal energy development in California, Stanford Research Institute, Vol. 1, Menlo Park, CA, (US DOE Contract No. EY-76-C-03-0115-108), May 1977.
- Rocky Mountain Mineral Law Foundation, Proceedings: Geothermal Resources Development Institute, Salt Lake City, UT, January 27-28, 1977.
- Sacarto, Douglas M., State policies for geothermal development, National Conference of State Legislatures, Denver, Colorado, 1976.
- San Diego Gas and Electric, Heber geothermal demonstration plant fact sheet, San Diego, CA, January 3, 1978.
- Schlauch, Paul J., Geothermal resources joint ventures, Proceedings: Geothermal Resources Development Institute, Salt Lake City, UT, Jan 27-28, 1977.

Smith, J.L., C.F. Isselhardt, and J.S. Matlick, Summary of 1976 geothermal drilling--western United States, Geothermal Energy Magazine, Vol. 5, No. 5, May 1977, pg. 8-17.

Smith, Russell F., Bryant, Patricia S., Conr, Edward E., and Paul C. Kouchoukos, Financial incentives research and lending market impact analysis, Bradford National Corporation, Prepared for ERDA, N.Y., N.Y., August 1977.

Stone, Christopher, and McNamara, John, Geothermal energy and the law, Vol. II: A Preliminary Analysis of Federal Tax Reform on Geothermal Energy Development in the United States, Draft Report, Univ. of Southern California Law Center, Los Angeles, CA 1975.

Tarlock, Dan A., and Walter, Richard L., An environmental overview of geothermal resources development, Proceedings Geothermal Resources Development Institute, Salt Lake City, UT, Jan 27-28, 1977.

Trower, E. Dale, An overview of the California permitting process, Proceedings: Geothermal Resources Development Institute, Salt Lake City, UT, Jan. 27-28, 1977.

U.S. Congress, Public Law 95-91, Department of Energy Organization Act, August 4, 1977.

U.S. Congress, Public Law 91-581, 91st Congress, S. 368, Geothermal Steam Act of 1970, December 24, 1970.

U.S. Congress, House of Representatives, Loan guaranties for new energy technologies - capital formation, Committee on Science and Technology, No. 94-1170, May 16, 1976.

U.S. Congress, House of Representatives, Geothermal energy research, development, and demonstration act of 1974, Oversight Heating-Loan Guaranties Hearing before the Subcommittee on Energy Research, Development, and Demonstration of the Commitee on Science and Technology, Ninety-fourth Congress, First Session, Oct. 1, 6, 1975.

U.S. Congress, House of Representatives, Energy from geothermal resources, Report prepared by the Congressional Research Service, Science and Astronautics Subcommittee on Energy, 93rd Congress, 2nd Session, 1974.

- U.S. Congress, House of Representatives, Loan guarantees for demonstration of new energy technologies, Report No. 94-1170, May 16, 1976.
- U.S. Congress, House of Representatives, Hearing before the Subcommittee on energy research, development, and demonstration of the committee on science and technology, Oversight Hearings on Public Law 93-410, January 20, 1976.
- U.S. Congress, United States Senate, Petroleum Industry involvement in alternative sources of energy, Committee on Energy and Natural Resources, Subcommittee on Energy Research and Development, Publication No. 95-54, September 1977.
- U.S. Congress, United States Senate, Loan guarantees and the federal budget, Committee on the Budget, Staff Working Paper, Draft, November 23, 1976.
- U.S. Congress, United States Senate, Geothermal energy act, Hearing before the Subcommittee on Water and Power Resources of the Committee on Interior and Insular Affairs on S.2465, November 7, 1973.
- U.S. Congress, United States Senate, The potential for energy production from geothermal resources, Subcommittee on Water and Power Resources, 93rd Congress, 1st Session. 1974.
- U.S. Congress, United States Senate, Geothermal energy development, Hearing before the subcommittee on Energy Research and Water Resources of the Committee on Interior and Insular Affairs, Idaho Falls, ID, October 17, 1975.
- U.S. Congress, General Accounting Office, Problems in identifying, developing, and using geothermal resources, RED-75-30, March 6, 1975.
- U.S. Dept. of Energy, Interim Management Directive, DOE Organization, Serial No. 27, IMD No. 0102, September 30, 1977.
- U.S. Department of Energy, Interim Management Directive, Authority delegations, and order of secretarial succession in the department of energy, Serial No. 33, IMD No. 0204, October 3, 1977.

•

- U.S. Department of Energy, Budgetary implications of the President's energy policy, overview, and perspective, April 20, 1977.
- U.S. Department of Energy, Loan guaranty programs: energy applications, prepared by Harbridge House, Inc., 1976.
- U.S. Department of Energy, Approval procedure for department of energy loan guaranties, Interim Management Directive, 1977.
- U.S. Department of Energy, Institutional barriers to geothermal energy development, A report by the Institutional Barrier Panel of the Geothermal Advisory Council, June 30, 1976.
- U.S. Department of Energy, Institutional barriers to geothermal energy development, Second report of the Institutional Barrier Panel of the Geothermal Advisory Council, Dec. 21, 1976.
- U.S. Department of Energy, Executive Office of the President, Energy policy and planning, DOE Activation Task Force, Organizational Integration Working Group, September 13, 1977.
- U.S. Department of Energy Research and Development Administration, Division of Geothermal Energy, Definition report, Geothermal Research, Development, and Demonstration Program, Washington, D.C., October 1975.
- U.S. Department of Energy Research and Development Administration, Division of Geothermal Energy, Guidelines to the preparation of environmental reports for geothermal development, February 1977.
- U.S. Department of Energy Research and Development Administration, Geothermal loan guaranty application guidelines, San Francisco Operations Office, Oakland, CA, December 1976.

- U.S. Energy Research and Development, Division of Geothermal Energy, First annual report, ERDA 77-9, April 1977.
- U.S. Energy Research and Development Administration, A national plan for energy research, development, and demonstration: creating energy choices for the future, Volume 2: Program Implementation, ERDA 76-1, 1976.

- U.S. Energy Research and Development Administration, Minutes, Advisory Committee on Geothermal Energy, Open Meeting, Washington, D.C., Jan. 10, 1977.
- U.S. Energy Research and Development Administration, Minutes, Advisory Committee on Geothermal Energy, Open Meeting, Southern California Energy Program Office, Los Angeles, CA, Sept. 16, 1976.
- U.S. Department of the Interior, Geological Survey, USGS assistance on the ERDA geothermal loan guaranty program, Interagency agreement, Reston, VA, Aug. 1977.
- U.S. Department of the Interior, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Geothermal handbook, Geothermal Project, Office of Biological Services, NP-21172, June 1976.
- Ward, Robert P., Financial and marketing requirements for geothermal development, MBA Thesis, U.C., Berkeley, June 1977.
- Weinstein, David, Gordon, Theodore, J., Maslan, Frank, Legal aspects of geothermal energy development, Proceedings: Second U.N. Symposium on Development and Use of Geothermal Resources, May 1975.
- White, D.E. and Williams, D.L., Editors, Assessment of geothermal resources of the United States, Dept. of the Interior, Geological Survey, Circular 726, 1975.
- Woods, John, Financing the geothermal industry under the geothermal loan guaranty program, Bank of Montreal, 1977 (mimeographed).

BIBLIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

- * Abbott, Robert, 1977, Earth Energy, Inc., San Francisco, California.
 - Barnes, Burton, 1977, DOE, Division of Geothermal Energy, Washington, D.C.

Barr, Ronald, 1977, Earth Power Corporation, Tulsa, Oklahoma.

Bernard, Peter, 1977, DOE, San Francisco Operations Office, Oakland, California.

* Bloom, Larry, 1977, Federal Financing Bank, Treasury Department, Washington, D.C.

Boren, Ken, 1977, GeoCal, Geo Products Corporation, Oakland, California.

- * Bowen, Richard, 1977, RLK and Company, Portland, Oregon.
 - Brechtal, Susan, 1977, DOE, San Francisco Operations Office, Oakland, California.

Bresee, James, 1977, DOE, Division of Geothermal Energy Washington, D.C.

Bromberg, Kenneth, 1977, DOE, San Francisco Operations Office, GLGP, Oakland, California.

Brubaker, Gerald, 1977, Council on Environmental Quality Washington, D.C.

Butler, David, 1977, Chevron Resources Company, San Francisco, California.

Castellanos, Peter, 1977, Diablo Exploration, Oakland, California.

Chew, Laurie, 1977, Bank of America, Los Angeles, California.

* Corman, Dale, 1978, O'Brien Resources, Kentfield, California.

Crane, David, 1977, DOE, Office of the Controller, Washington, D.C.

Crosby, Gary 1978, Phillips Petroleum, Del Mar, California.

Cullen, Joe, 1977, DOE, San Francisco Operations Office, GLGP, Oakland, California.

* Telephone communication.

 Dieckman, John, 1978, Getty Oil Company, Bakersfield, California.

Dolan, William, 1978, Amax Exploration, Inc., Denver, Colorado.

* Falcone, Dominic, 1977, Geothermal Resources International, Inc., Marina del Ray, California.

Falick, Larry, 1977, DOE, Commercial Applications, Washington, D.C.

* Floyd, Acy, 1977, Southern California Public Energy Corporation, Burbank, California •

Forsberg, Kristine, 1977, DOE, Division of Geothermal Energy, Washington, D.C.

Fri, Robert, 1977, Attorney-at-Law, Washington, D.C.

Garson, Henry, 1977, DOE, Washington, D.C.

- Greider, Robert, 1977, Thermex, Intercontinental Energy Corporation, Denver, Colorado •
- * Harvego, Lloyd, 1978, California Department of Water Resources, Sacramento, California .

Heinzelman, Claire Carlson, 1977, Thermal Power Company, San Francisco, California .

- Howell, David, 1978, Republic Geothermal, Inc., Santa Fe Springs, California.
- Ingraham, Norman, 1977, Northern California Power Agency, Santa Clara, California •
- Isherwood, William, 1977, U.S. Geological Survey, Palo Alto, California •

Isselhardt, Courtney, 1978, Republic Geothermal, Inc., Santa Fe Springs, California.

* Jenkins, Claude, 1978, Aminoil, Santa Rosa, California.

Kuhn, Edwin (A1), 1977, DOE, Office of Conservation and Solar Application, Washington, D.C.

LeGrown, Joe, 1977, DOE, San Francisco Operations Office, Oakland, California.

* Telephone communication.

Long, William, 1977, Amax Exploration, Denver, Colorado.

- * Lyon, Ken, 1978, Morrison-Knutsen, Boise, Idaho.
- * Martinez, Art, 1978, Public Service Company of New Mexico, Albuquerque, New Mexico.
- * McNamara, John, 1977, Univ. of Southern California, Los Angeles, California.

Myerson, Edward, 1977, DOE, Commercial Applications, Washington, D.C.

- * Nash, Ray, 1978, Geothermal Food Processors, Inc., Turlock, California.
 - Nash, Ed, 1978, U.S. General Accounting Office, Los Angeles, California.
 - Nastich, Diane, 1977, DOE, San Francisco Operations Office, GLGP, Oakland, California.
- * Newton, Christopher (Kit), 1977, Pacific Gas and Electric, San Francisco, California.

O'Donnell, Mike, 1978, Geothermal Kinetics Inc., Phoenix, Arizona.

Otte, Carel, 1978, Union Oil Company, Los Angeles, California.

* Perry, Bernard, 1978, Southern California Edison, Rosemead, California.

Ponder, Stephen, 1978, Thermogenics, Inc., San Francisco, California.

* Porter, Keith, 1978, Sierra Pacific Power Company, Reno, Nevada

Randall, Walter, 1978, Geothermal Resources International, Inc. Marina del Ray, California.

- * Richards, Dick, 1978, Sierra Pacific Power Company, Reno, Nevada
- * Rodzianko, Paul, 1978, Geothermal Energy Corporation, New York, New York.

* Telephone communication.

Rogers, Herbert Jr.,	1978,	Rogers	Engineering,	San	Francisco,
California .					

Root, Thomas, 1977, O'Connor and Miller, Denver, Colorado.

- Rudisill, Jacob, 1977, Thermal Power Company, San Francisco, California •
- Russell, Rollin, 1978, McCulloch Geothermal Corporation, Los Angeles, California.
- Salisbury, John, 1978, DOE, Division of Geothermal Energy, Washington, D.C.
- Silverman, Mark, 1977, DOE, San Francisco Operations Office, GLGP, Oakland, California.
- * Singer, David, 1977, Deuterium, Inc., White Plains, New York. Stone, Reid, 1977, U.S. Geological Survey, Palo Alto, California.
- * Thomas, Craig, 1978, Merrill Lynch, San Francisco, California.

Toms, Ron, 1977, DOE, Division of Geothermal Energy, Washington, D.C.

- * Twogood, Donald, 1978, Imperial Valley Irrigation District, Imperial, California .
- * Valeo, Jim, 1978, Salomon Brothers, San Francisco, California.
 Vickers, Edward, 1977, Bank of America, San Francisco, California.
 Weaver, J.P., 1978, ZIA Corporation, Long Beach, California.

Woods, John, 1977, Bank of Montreal, San Francisco, California.

* Telephone communication.

LIST OF APPENDICES

		Page
Α.	GAO Questionnaire	128
в.	Designated KGRA's	136
c.	Lease Sales as of December 31, 1977	141
D.	Drilling in the Western United States 1975-77	148
Е.	Firms Invovled in Geothermal Development	155
F.	ERDA Budget for FY 76-78	159
G.	Geothermal Energy Research and Development, and Demonstration Act of 1974 (P.C. 93-410)	162
н.	Geothermal Loan Guaranty Program Rules and Regulations	174
I.	Amendments to the Geothermal Research, Development, and Demonstration Act	183
J.	Geothermal Resources Development Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 1979	187
к.	Loan Guaranty Application Form	191
L.	Loan Guaranty Agreement	195

大学校会社会

APPENDIX A

÷

3

GAO QUESTIONNAIRE

- 1. Do you believe the development of geothermal resources in the
 - U. S. is proceeding at a reasonable rate?
 - 1. / / Yes
 - 2. 17 No
 - 3. 77 No opinion
 - If no,
 - // Too slow
 - ∫] Too fast
- 2. Through legislation in 1074 and 1975, ERDA was assigned the responsibility for accelerating the development of geothermal resources in the U.S. To what degree has ERDA achieved this goal?
 - $/\overline{/}$ To a great extent
 - // To a moderate extent
 - $/\overline{7}$ To a slight extent
 - /7 No progress
 - / / ERDA really can't accelerate development
 - // No opinion

- 3. What "should be" the Federal Government's primary role in developing geothermal energy? (Select the one which best represents your thoughts)
 - a. have primary responsibility for demonstration, technology development, and commercialization of geothermal resources. More concern being given to national energy needs than to economic feasibility.
 - b. /// be a partner in geothermal development with other levels of Government and private infustry. Sharing in the responsibility for demonstration, technology development and commercialization of geothermal resources.

- c. // have a supportive position. Assisting private industry upon request or when the need for assistance is identified. Having an active role in geothermal development primarily by providing an environment conducive to commercialization by making regulatory changes and providing certain financial incentives.
- d. // have only a regulatory role. Establishing a well-defined framework within which private industry must operate. Leaving all other aspects of development to the private sector.
- e. // not become involved in geothermal development. Let private industry develop geothermal resources on its own.
- f. / No opinion
- 4. Responsibility for geothermal resource assessment in the United States resides with the U. S. Geological Survey (USGS). How effective has USGS resource assessment work been?
 - / / Very effective
 - $\overline{//}$ Moderately effective
 - / Slightly effective
 - // Not effective
 - /// Shouldn't be USGS responsibility
 - /7 No opinion
- 5. If you have had prior experiences with oil and gas resource development, how would you compare or rate USGS' assessment work in these areas with its geothermal assessments?
 - 1/7 Superior to oil and gas effort
 - // Same as oil and gas efforts
 - // Inferior to oil and gas efforts
 - /7 No opinion

6. ERDA has_projected 3,000 megawatts of electric power production from geothermal resources by 1985. What is your opinion of the potential for electric power production from geothermal by 1985 and 2000?

	1985		2000
<u> </u>	0 - 1000 MW	\square	0 - 1000 MW
<u>/</u> 7	1,001 - 2000 MW		1,001 - 3,000 MW
\square	2,001 - 4,000 MW	\square	3,001 - 6,000 MW
\square	4,001 - 6,000 MW	\Box	6,001 - 10,000 MW
\square	6,001 - 10,000 MW	\square	10,001 - 100,000 MW
\square	10,001 or more MW	<u> </u>	100,001 - 200,000 MW
\square	No opinion	\square	200,001 or more MW
		\Box	No opinion

- 7. What do you anticipate the contribution from your leases will be to this electric power production by 1985 _____MW, and by 2000 _____MW?
- 8. Below are listed some of the major problems identified by various studies as issues delaying the development of geothermal resources Please indicate how these issues impact on your development of geothermal resources.

Issue

Land leasing (acreage limitation, unitization, etc.) Permitting problems (drilling) Environmental (reporting, environmental technology) Technical barriers (hardware for power conversion, scaling, etc.) Tax laws (intangible drilling costs, depletion) Financial uncertainty & risk (capital, bank loans) Resource uncertainty (reservoir life, etc.) Exploration (finding the resource) Electric utilities (reluctancy to develop or support) Water use (obtaining water and pollution problems) Economics (geothermal not competitive with other energy sources)

	Signifes	Moder - Icantly	S11 when	Vot at	No 0,011	uo _{fus} ,
)						
)						-
						-
ļ						

- 9. Who (what) do you use as your primary source of information to keep abreast of current geothermal developments and advancements?
- 10. Do you believe there is a need for increased information dissemination by the Federal Government on new technologies and what the Federal Government is doing to advance geothermal?
 - // Considerable, hardly any information currently available
 - // Some, sufficient trade journals, etc., available
 - // Not at all enough is available
 - /7 No opinion
- 11. What was the primary reason you or your company leaded geothermal lands?
 - a. /// development electric power production
 - b. /// development nonelectric applications
 - c. /7 investment
 - d. /// to explore and then lease to a developer
 - e. // other (specify)

(Check more than one if necessary)

a. /7 dry stean

b. // hot water

c. / hot dry rock

d. <u>/</u> geopressured

e. // nagma

f. // other (specify)

g. $\boxed{7}$ don't know

13. Please list how many acres of land your company has for geothermal development and approximately what percentage of these lands are within known geothermal resource areas (KGRA).

	Acreage	% within KGEA's
Federal		
State		
Private		
Other (specify)		
Total		

14. Approximately how much money have you or your company spent for geothermal development (excluding lease payments) in 1975, 1975, and 1977?

Amount	<u>1975</u>	<u>1976</u>	<u>1977</u>
Nothing	\square	\square	\square
Less than \$10,000	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	\square
\$10,000 to \$99,999	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	\square
\$100,000 to \$299,999	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	\square
\$300,000 to \$499,999	\Box	<u> </u>	<u> </u>
\$500,000 to \$999,009	<u> </u>	\Box	\square
\$1 million to \$3 million	\square	\square	\Box
Over \$3 million	\square	<u> </u>	<u> </u>

- 15. Approximately how much money has been budgeted for 1970 (excluding lease payments)?
 - // Nothing
 // Less than \$10,000
 // \$100,000 \$299,999
 // \$300,000 \$499,099
 // \$500,000 \$999,999
 // More than \$1 million
- 16. Do you think there is a need for ERDA's geothermal loan guarantee program?
 - [7] Critical
 [7] Moderate
 [7] Moderate
 [7] Slight
 [7] No need
 [7] Not familiar with program
 [7] No opinion
- 17. Are you or your company unable to raise capital to finance development of geothermal resources?
 - // Yes // No

18. Are you or your company planning to apply for a loan guarantee?

- <u>//</u> Yes // No
- /// Uncertain
- 19. Federal regulations allow lessees to pool their resources,

referred to as unitization, for geothermal resource development. Do you plan to pursue unitization with other lessees to develop your geothermal leases?

// Yes /// No /// Not needed

20. Below are listed the various states of geothernal resource development ment. Since you are a lossee of geothernal lands, you have made it through the initial stage of development. Please indicate the stage of development you've reached on the majority of your land in each category by placing a check in the appropriate space.

		Type of Geothermal Lands						
		Faderal	State	Private	Other			
a.	Land held with no additional development							
ь.	Geological, geophysical, and geochemical testing being conducted or accomplished							
c.	Exploratory drilling underway or completed							
d.	Preparing or completed environ- mental reports and processing	<u></u>						
e.	Production wells being drilled or completed							
f.	Fower plants underway or completed							
8•	Nonelectric uses underway or completed		<u> </u>					

21. How many exploratory wells have you drilled on all your leases?

$$\frac{1}{7} \quad 0 = 2$$

$$\frac{1}{7} \quad 3 = 5$$

$$\frac{1}{7} \quad 5 = 7$$

$$\frac{1}{7} \quad 7 = 9$$

$$\frac{1}{7} \quad 10 \text{ or over}$$

- 22. Do you think there is a need for ERDA to demonstrate the commercial viability of geothermal energy through selected demonstration projects?
 - /// Critical need /// Moderate need /// Slight need /// No need /// No opinion

We realize that this questionnaire cannot provide information in the depth as that obtained from a personal interview or through narrative responses. Therefore, if you feel that there are issues raised in this questionnaire which need further clarification or if you have any additional comments you feel would be of interest to the Congress or any of the items within the questionnaire or related topics not covered, please feel free to express them. Any further information you can give us will be greatly appreciated.

Thank you.

いいのでは、「ないない」では、「ないないないない」では、「ないない」では、「ないない」では、ないないない」では、

APPENDIX B

140

1. B. W. C.

DESIGNATED KGRA'S

KNOWN GEOTHERMAL RESOURCES AREAS (KGRA'S) AS CLASSIFIED BY THE INDICATED AREA GEOLOGISTS WESTERN AND CENTRAL REGIONS

136

WESTERN REGION

Alaska Area Geologist, Anchorage, Alaska

Alaska		No. of Acres
1.	Geyser Spring Basin	20, 960
2.	Okmok Caldera	44,800
3.	Pilgrim Springs	22,400
		88,160

Pacific Area Geologist, Menlo Park, California

Arizona

1.	Clifton	780
2.	Gillard Hot Springs	2,920
		3,700

California

1.	Beckwourth Peak	2558
2.	Bodie	640
3.	Brawley	28,886
4.	Coso Hot Springs	56,880
5.	Dunes	7,680
6.	East Mesa	38,365
7.	Ford Dry Lake	7,687
8.	Géysers-Calistoga	374,910
9.	Glamis	25, 505
10.	Glass Mountain	33,287
11.	Heber	58, 568
12.	Knoxville	14,702
13.	Lake City-Surprise Valley	72,940
14.	Lassen	78,642
15.	Little Horse Mountain	1,196
16.	Love Lady Ridge	6,239
17.	Mono-Long Valley	460,256
18.	Randsburg	12,880
19.	Saline Valley	3,200
20.	Salton Sea	95,824
21.	Sespe Hot Springs	7,034
22.	Wendel-Amedee	17,932
23.	Witter Springs	18,152
		1,423,963

Idaho		No. of Acres
1.	Bruneau	5,120
2.	Castle Creek	79,722
3.	Crane Creek	4,342
4.	Island Park	28,539
5.	Mountain Home	9,520
6.	Raft River	30,209
7.	Vulcan	3,836
8.	Yellowstone	14,164
		175,452
Nevada		
1.	Baltazor ·	5,617
2.	Beowawe	33,224
3.	Brady-Hazen	98,508.22
4.	Colado	640
5.	Dixie Valley	38,347.71
6.	Darrough Hot Springs	8,363.18
7.	Double Hot Springs	29,326
8.	Elko Hot Springs	8,960
9.	Fly Ranch	20,758.66
10.	Fly Ranch Northease	7,680
11.	Gerlach	26, 326
12.	Gerlach Northease	7,971
13.	Hot Springs Point	8,549
14.	Kyle Hot Springs	2,561
15.	Leach Hot Springs	12,846.21
16.	Moana Springs	5,120
17.	Monte Neva	10,302
18.	Pinto Hot Springs	8,015
19.	Ruby Valley	5,743
20.	Rye Patch	801
21.	Salt Wells Basin	19,232
22.	San Emidio Desert	7,678
23.	Silver Peak	5,117
24.	Soldier Meadow	5,966
25.	Steamboat Springs	8,911.12
26.	Stillwater-Soda Lake	225,260
27.	Trego	7,013
28.	Wabuska	11,520
29、	Warm Springs	3,812
30.	Wilson Hot Springs	
		635,462.10

N. 20 . 14 .

į,

うい ちゅうほう 三世の

Oregón		No. of Acres
1.	Alvord	176,835
2.	Belknap-Foley Hot Springs	5,066
3.	Breitenbush Hot Springs	13,445
4.	Burns Butte	640
5.	Carey Hot Springs	7,579
6.	Crump Geyser	85,663
7.	Klamath Falls	50,300
8.	Lakeview	12,165
9.	McCredie Hot Springs	3,659
10.	Mount Hood	8,671
11.	Newberry Crater	31,284
12.	Vale Hot Springs	22,998
13.	Summer Lake Hot Springs	13,631
200		431,936

Washington

1.	Kennedy Hot Springs	3,311
2.	Mount St. Helens	29,754
3.	Indian Heaven	2,547
24		35,612

CENTRAL REGION

Central Rocky Mountain Area Geologist, Denver, Colorado

Colorado

1. Alamosa County	6,761
2. Mineral Hot Springs	5,765
3. Poncha	3,200
4. Valley View Hot Springs	5,099
	20,825

Utah

1.	Cove Fort-Sulphurdale	24,874
2.	Crater Springs	17,321
3.	Lund	3,840
4.	Monroe-Joseph	16,364
5.	Navajo Lake	2,522
6.	New Castle	2,636
7.	Roosevelt Hot Springs	29, 791
8.	Thermo Hot Springs	26,019
u .		123,367

Northern Rocky Mountain Area Geologist, Casper, Wyoming

Montar	<u>na</u>	No. of Acres
1.	Boulder Hot Springs KGRA	. 6,34 3
2.	Corwin Springs	20,349
3.	Marysville	19,20 0
4.	Yellowstone	12,763
		58,655

Southern Rocky Mountain Area Geologist, Roswell, New Mexico

New Mexico

いていたいなり、なまたのでもないの

ີ 10 ຄື 10 ຄື 20 ແລະ 20 ຄື 20 ຄື

and the second of the second second

1.	Baca Location No. 1	16 8,7 61
2.	Gila Hot Springs	3,202
3.	Kilbourne Hole	25,134
4.	Lightning Dock	23,552
5.	Lower Frisco Hot Springs	5,760
6.	San Ysidro	1,915
7.	Socorro Peak	89,715.81
8.	Radium Springs	9,813
		327,852.81

GRAND TOTAL NUMBER OF KGRA'S

3,324,984.91

APPENDIX C

のため

LEASE SALES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1977

NONCOMPETITIVE GEOTHERMAL LEASING HONTRLY SUMMARY STATUS REPORT

	APPLICATIONS								LEASES						
	FILED			1	A1	AWAITING(1) ACTION		-	ISSUED			ACRES			
STATE	BUN	75	SUBTOTAL	VITHDRAM	BEJECTED	BLH	75	OTHER	REFUSED	BLM	P 5	SUETOTAL	BLN	F S	SUBTOTAL
ALASKA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
ARIZONA	57	67	124	5	34	17	55	0	8	4	1	5	5,228	1,920	7,148
CALIFORNIA	674_	397	1,071	344	287	260	169	0	1	10	0	10	17,098	0	17,078
COLORADO	86	73	159	58	15	<u> </u>	34	0	2	43	0	43	50,245	0	50,245
1DAHO	564	317	861	193	152	164	208	26	26	111	1	112	188,564	2,560	191,124
MONTANA	33	55	88	42	25	1	11	. 3	0	6	0	6	10,687	0	10,687
NEVADA	1,399	13	1,412	466	312	129	15	0	78	409	3	412	724.876	4,434	729,309
NEW MEXICO	574	42	616	284	64	146	27	0	10	85	0	85	153,742	0	153,742
OREGON	657	378	1,035	249	262	189	218	12 -	0	102	3	105	140,248	5,709	145,957
UTAH	497	106	603	122	141	57	35	14	16	208	10	218	367,754	12.806	380,559
WASHINGTON	0	277	277	86	49	42	100	0	0	0	0	0	0	9.	0
WYOMING	19_	121	140	45	16	56	19	c	0	0	4	4	0	7,48	7,448
EASTERN STATES	0	12	12	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	11	11	0	19,744	19,744
TOTALS	4,560	1,858	6.418	1,894	1,358	1,068	891	55	141	978	35	1,011	1,658,422	54,621	1,713,041
(1) Applicatio	as avail	ing acti	on for the	following r											

and the solution

and the second second

23 Awaiting KCRA report from USCS 10 Pre-lease plan of development 336 Pending preparation of EAR (BLN only)

891 Avaiting comment of other agencies 35 Lesse forwarded for signsture 669 Processing (Adjudication) - BLM

(2)	203 Leases	relinquished or terminated partially relinquished	(335,554	Acres Acres
	Total		(Acres

=) ●) 9.170

			APPLICATION	S AWAITING	ACTION		As of Dec	amber 31, 1977
STATE	AWAITING KGRA Report from USGS	AMAITING PRE LEASE PLAN OF DEV. FROM APPLICANT	PENDING PREP OF EAR (BLH ONLY)	AWAITI OF OTH AGENCI Other	NG CONNENT IER IES IFS	LEASE FOR SIGNATURE BY APPLICANT	PROCESSING (ADJUDICATION) BLM	TOTALS
ALASKA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
ARIZONA		0	16	0	55	0	1	72
CALIFORNIA	13	0	21	0	169	0	226	429
COLORADO	0	0	0	0	34	0	7	41
IDAHO	2	0	123 .	0	208	24	41	398
HONTAHA		0	0	_0	. 11	3	1	15
NEVADA	0	0	10	0	15	0	119	166
NEW HEXICO	0	0	96	0	27	0	50	173
OREGON	55	0	109	0	218	7	80	419
UTAR	3	10	2	0	35	1	55	106
MASHINGTON	0	0	0	0	100	0	42	147
VYONING	0	0	9	0	19	0	47	
BASTERN STATES	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
SUB TOTAL	23	10	386	0	891	35	669	
TOTAL								2 01/

NONCONPETITIVE GEOTHERNAL LEASING NONTHLY SUBMARY STATUS REPORT

2,014

As of: December 31, 1977

STITERINAL LEASE SALE SUBMARY

													34, 12//
Lesso Sale Jata	Puda No.	- Mitanat	Ved No.	te bid On Acroage	Velt	Accepted Acrees	Longes Longes (No.)	Acreage Dater Leses	Total of Accepted High Side	Bighest Per Acro Bid	Average Price Per Acre	Righ Måder (a)	No. of Dide Received
1/22/74 Reposts, Calif.	18	6,723	12	8,733	10	7,969	10	7,969	\$5,045,247	\$1, 3 67.52	\$ 433.10	Shail Rij Co. Thormquaics, Inc. Wiss. Gli Co. Signal Gil Co. Occidental Pot.	42
1/22/74 Nort Norn; Sallf,	14	38,369	5	9,210	5	9,210 .	5	9,210	653,133	169.79	70.31	Negan Power Co. Republic Con- thermal, Inc.	5
1/22/74 House Long Valley, Calif.	7	13,715	3	5,403	3	5,483	3	5,483	632,618	290.90 	215.41	Chovron 011 Co. Getty 011 Co. Republic Goo- thermal, Inc.	19
5/29/74 Geyeste, Calsf. (Reeffered)	1	**	2	796	2	786	2	796	2,273,000	3,282.74	2,894.40	Ratemas Co. Occidental Pet.	•
6/4/74 Boot Name, Calif, (Reefformf)	•	38,500	1	2,560	1	2,560	1	2,360	8, 371	3.17	3.27	Republic Con- thermol, Inc.	1
6/27/74 Yele, Ore,	1	2,347	1	1,347	1	1,347	1	1,347	13,831	10.26	30.26	Republic Geo- thermal, Inc.	•
7/30/74 Recovelt Ret Retinge, Utab	12	23,391	11	23,392	12	23,392	12	23, 592	677,189	128.03	37,49	Union Oil Ch. Phillips Pet. Co Getty Oil Co.	. 29

1

feren fals fere	Suis Do.	a Charol Antongo	tes No.	te 316 Ca Acronga	thaice No.	Accepted Acreage	Lasses Issued (No.)	Acrospa Dader Looso	Total of Accepted High Dide	Bighoot Por Acro Bid	Average Price Per Acto	Righ Bidder(e)	To, of Dido Received
9/11/74 Brody-Boose, Noveda	•	12,606	3	6,735	•	4,234	2*	4,254''	29,109	10.15	6.97	Gaothernal Resources, Int'l Nages Power Co. Southern Duisen Production Co.	•
12/14/74 Dervers, Ber.	•	36,538	5	11,828	3	11,828	5	11,828	671,257	203.77	56.74	Chevres 011 Co. Gotty 011 Co.	12
12/18/74 Set Springs Point, Nev,	• •	5,341	2	4,781	2	4,701	2	4,701	240,894	53.84	51.24	Chovres 011 Co.	•
/2/18/74 Brody-Basun, Bey,	•	8,274	2	5,074	2	3,074	1	5,074	68,9 12	20.00	17.52	Raturnes Co.	3
1/28/75 Cliften, Aria,	1	780	•	•	•	٠	•	•	•	-	•	-	0
3/3/75 Cove-Port- Sulpherdale, Ptab	10	23,099	,	19,409	•	39,409	9	19,409	2,676,123	361.87	137.66	American Gau- thermal Bacgy Inc. Union Oti Co.	11
4/8/75 Fly Reads, Nov.	7	34,479	•	0,751	•	0,751	•	8,751	41,290	7.77	4.71	Returns Co. Sun Dil Co. Colvert Drilling Co.	5

2

*.3 eccepted units evabland into one leave

Lesse fale Bate	Dait	e Offered	Red	to 164 On	Tale	a Acceptaí	Lasers	Arreage Under	Total of Accepted	Rightet Per Acre	Average Price Per		To. of Bide
and RORA	He.	Acress	No.	Acresse	30.	Acreege	(No.)	Leses	Righ Side	854	Acro	Righ Bidder(s)	locetved
5/13/75 Ellbourne Bole, New Maxico	12	24,278	,	18,477	•	18,477		18,477	\$ 359,643	\$ 31.26	.19.47	ineierhe Preiection Co.	12
5/20/75 Alamese County, Minoral Springs Penchs and Valley View, Colorado	•	11,271	3	5,836	3	5,836	3	5,034	13,577	3.17	2.79	Phillips Pet. Co. Asochutz Corp.	3
S/22/75 Mickey Bot Byringe, Gro.	14	30,348	•	14,999	3	7,520	3	7,520	44,213	10.25	5.00	Al-Aquitane Exploration LTD. Phillips Pot. Co. Getty 011 Co.	13
S/29/75 Alverd Hot Springs, Ore.	14	26,930	•	12,643	•	12,643	•	12,643	90,714	17.90	7.18	Republic Cos- thermal, Inc. Chevron Oil Co.	•
6/3/75 Borga Lobs, Hot Springs, Oregon	16	35,405	•	17,809	3	11,019	3	11,019	44,678	29.50	4.03	MAPCO, Inc. (Twise) Getty Dil Co. Southern Whith Production Co. Whith Oil Co. of California	21

anos Sale Data and ECRA	Dašti Ro,	Offered Acreage	Watt	te Did On Acrooge	Daite No.	Ascepted Acres()	Lasse Tasud (No.)	Acroops Duder Lesse	Total of Accepted Righ Bide	Bighart For Acro Bid	Average Price Per Acre	Tigh Didder(a)	No. of Dido Received
i/11/75 Chermo, Land, iotros-Jesoph, lesservalt (heeffored) mi Cove Pert- hulphurdele ' (heeffored), Itah	18	30,348	3	6,762	3	6,762	5	6,762	29,495	15.12	4.36	Chovens Oll Cs. Therman Cs. Vectors Geo- thermal, Int. Gary W. Seltser	•
i/10/75 Iountain Ioun - Irunaan, Idubo	S	7,676	2	2,600	2	2,600	2	2,600	5,330	2.13	2.13	Anochuts Corp.	2
1/23/75 Lake City- Hutyrise Felley, Calif.	16	34,591	3	10,304	5	20,584	3	10,584	194,533	21.53	12.71	Getty 011 Co. Dew Chemical Co. Southern Union Production Co.	•
5/26/75 Stilluster- Jois Lake, Fevada	n	47,157	•	13,259	•	13,259	•	13,266	241,711	45.12	10.23	Phillips Pet. Cu Chevron Oil Co. Union Oil Co. of Califernia Whillips Pet. Cu & Chevren Oil	7

Lonce Sale Date and KGRA	<u>Veit</u> No.	e Offered Acresge	Del.	Acresge	Unit No.	Accepted Acreage	Lesses Issued (No.)	Acreage Under Leave	Total of Accepted Righ Bids	Higheet Per Acre Bid	Average Price Fer Acre	Righ Bidder(s)	No. of Bide Receive
6/31/75 Crump Ceyours, Oregon	10	35,974	4	9,462	•	9,462	4	9,462	37,016	5.12	3.91	Chevron Otl Co.	•
9/23/75 Stamboot Springs, Vabuato and Fly Lanch, Hevada	7	12,916	•	7,188	•	7,188	•	7,188	109,152	32.31	15.19	Phillips Pet. Co. and Culf Oil Co. (Toint Bid), Southern Union Production Co.	•
9/25/75 Vale Not Springs, Oregon	•	12,574	3	7,046	3	7,046	3	7,046	60,177	16.16	11.38	Union 011 Co., Geothermal Resources International	•
11/3/75 Castle Crock, Idaho	9	20,924	•	18,364	•	18,364	9	18, 364	158,932	35.60	8.65	Rency P. Anochuts Geothermal Resource International, Inc. Anachuts Corp. Dow Chemical Co. Philipe Pet. Co.	21
1/20/76 71y Banch Gorlach San Buidio, Boyada	17	33,524	3	10,106	5	10,106	5	10,106	146, 732	28.47	14.52	Sonoce Rmorgy Development Co. Chevron Vil Co.	6
2/3/76 Crater Springs, Lund, Honros- Joseph and Thermo, Utab	10	36,956	13	29,949	13	29,949	13	29,969	96,689	7.28	3.22	Goothermal Resources International, Inc. Chevron Dil Co. Charles L. Golding Southern Union Production Co. Republic Goothermal, Inc.	23

Lasye Sale Data	Unite	offered	Uni	s Bid on	Unite	Accepted	Losses Issued	Acruage Under	Total of Accepted	Highest Per Acre	Average Price Per		No. of Bide
and KGRA	so.	Acreage	No.	Acreage	No.	Acreage	(No.)	Louse	Nigh Bide	Bid	Acre	Righ Bidder(s)	Received
1/3/76 Still Websr- Soda Lake- Wilson Not Springs, Herada	16	35,192	1	1,294	1	1,294	1	1,294	4, 776	3.69	3.69	Chevron Oll Co.	1
4/20/76 Derrough Hot Fpring, Disis Valley, Silver Peak, Hevada	19	45,642	•	17, 340	•	17, 340	•	17, 340	174, 312	20.09	10.05	Republic Geo. Funcco Emergy Al Aquitaine Explor. Nagma Power	11
5/18/76 Lightning Dock New Nezico	•	13,371	•	9,023	4	9.023	•	9,023	41,550	0.11	4.60	Amag Empior., Inc. Phillips Pet. Co. Earth Power Co.	7
6/13/76 Become Brafy- Rapen, B.S. Point & San Buidio Desert Bevada	27	52,098	7	13,698	7	13.690	7	13,698	92,345	12.91	6.75	Bo. Union Prod. Co. W.O & Ruth R. Darley Union-Magna	7
6/23/76 Crune Crock Castle Rock Mountain Rome Idaho	5	9,043	2	3,911	2	3,941	2	1,381	27,006	17.28	6.85	Laurs J. Spangler So. Union Prod. CD.	2

Loope Sale Data and RGMA	Dait	Offered Acreage	Uni No.	Acreage	Units No.	Accepted	Lesues Issues (No.)	Acreage Under Leese	Total of Accepted Righ Bide	Righast Per Acre Bid	Average Price Per Acre	Righ Bidder (e)	No. of Bide Received
0/18/76 Houte Hermis Colado Raby Valley Ryo Patch, Hormis	•	12.047	2	3, 220	2	3,220	2	3.220	377, 349	101.20	96.13	Union Oil Co.	•
9/23/76 Summar Lake, Oregon	•	7, 521	2	4,674	2	4,674	2	4, 674	13.393	3.91	2.07	So Union Frod. Co. Chevron Oil Co.	2
10/13/76 Leach Hot Spring Colado Nevada	•	12,995	•	12,005	•	12,006	·	12, 596	34,145	7.90	4.20	Aminoil USA Inc. Getty Oil CD.	•
10/27/76 San Yeide Rilbourne Hele Lightning Dock Hew Mexico	11	11,423	5	5.065	3	5,065	3	5,065	13, 352	3.27	2.63	Philips Pet Co. Aminoil USA Inc.	5
11/17/76 Raft River Idaho	2	4, 001	•	0	0	0	0	. 0	0	0	0	NO BIDE	0

Lease Sale Date and KGRA	Unit No.	s Offered Acrease	Unit No.	a Bid On Acresse	Unit	Accepted Acreage	Leases Issued (No.)	Acreage Under Lease	Total of Accepted Righ Bide	Highest Per Acre Bid	Average Price Per Acre	High Bidder(s)	No. of Bids Received
12/14/76 Kyle, Nevada	4	8,204	1	2,400	1	2,400	1	2,400	5,114	3.38	3.38	Chevron 011 Co.	1
1/16/77 Boulder, Montana	1	1,608	0	0	o	0	c	0	0	0	0	NO BIDS	0
4/15/77 Alamosa County Mineral Hot Springs, Valley View, Colorado	5	6,235	0	C	0	0	0	o	0	0	0	NO BIDS	c
5/17/77 Pinto Hot Spgs. Warm Spgs. Nev.	5	9,287	1	1,312	1	1,312	1	1,312	11,282	8.60	8.60	Getty 011 Co.	1
5/25/77 Baca No. 1 New Mexico	17	29,375	11	18,050	11	18,050	11	18,050	574,425	133.76	31.82	Amex Exp. Inc. Phillips Pet. Co. Aminoil USA	22
6/9/77 Burns Butte, Oregon	1	640	0	0	0	0	0	o	0	0	0	NO BIDS	0
7/19/77 Balta Zar and Dixie Valley KGRA, Nevada	13	21,235	10	14,254	10	14,254	10 .	14,254	240,031	40.67	16.84	Earth Power Republic Geo. Millican Oil	17
9/14/77 Geysers Calistoga KGRA's California	3	2,937	2	2,857	2	2,857	2	2,957	780,451	603.00	273.18	Shell 011 Co. *	5

As of December 31, 1977

												An of Decemb	er 31, 1977
Lease Sale Date	Unite	Offered	Unit	ta Bid On	linec	Accepted	Leases Issued	Acreage Under	Total of Accepted	Highest Per Acre	Average Price Per		No. of Rids
and KGRA	No.	Acreage	No.	Acreage	NO.	Acreage	(No.)	Lease	High Bids	610	ACTE	High Bidder(8)	Received
9/20/77 Redium Springe San Ysidro 6 Baca No. 1, <u>Hew Mexico</u>	12	17,968	8	11,197	8	11,197	8	11,197	233,618	37.51	20.86	Chevron USA, Inc. Texaco, Inc. Aminoil USA, Inc. Amax Expl., Inc.	15
9/27/77 Cove Fort, Sulphurdale, Crater Springs, Honroe-Joseph, Newcastle & Thermo Hot Spring, Utah	9	16,308	7	12,788	7	12,788	6	11,138	668,826	156.35	52.30	Union Oil Co. W. H. Hunt Aminoil USA, Inc.	25
11/17/77 Raft River, Htn. Home, Idaho	11	21,020	4	6,986	•	6,986	3	5,103	30,453	5.10	4.36	Union Oil Co. of Calif. 5 Magna Energy, Ind Raft River Elec. Coop.	•
11/29/77 Socorro Peak 6 Lightning Dock, New Nexico	19	34,654	10	18,820	10	18,620	0	0	281,171	60.05	14.94	Hoover H. Wright Aminoil USA Sunoco Energy Dev. Corp.	18

												As of Det	cember 31, 1977
Lease Sale Dat and KGRA	No.	ts Offered Acresse	Un i No .	te Bid On Acreage	<u>Unit</u> No.	s Accepted Acreage	Leases Issued (No.)	Acreage Under Lease	Total of Accepted High Bids	Highest Per Acre Bid	Average Price Per Acre	Nigh Bidder(s)	No. of Bids Received
12/13/77 Brady Masen Salt Wells Basin, Nevada	22	49,314	7	14,117	7	14,117	0	0	200,671	52.66	14.21	Thermal Power Co. Phillips Pet. Co. Supron Energy Corr James R. Keighley Magma Power Co. 4 Union Oll Co. of Calif.	10
TOTALS	523	1,001,305	248	466,257	2 39	448,721	218	412,251	18,573,512	K/A	41.39	N/A	449

APPENDIX D

Sec. Sec.

Adding the

the manual for and the second

DRILLING IN THE WESTERN UNITED STATES 1975-77

State	Region	Area	Operator	Wells	Prod.	Susp.	Adb.	Footage
California	Imperial Valley	Brawley East Mesa East Heber	Union Republic Geothermal Republic Geothermal	3 3 1	3 3 0	0 0 1	0 0 0	19,337 25,030 11,015
		Heber	Chevron	3	0	3	0	10,374
	The Geysers	(Main Geysers)	Union	10	0	0	1	81,208
		Castle Rock	Pacific Energy	3	9	1	1	31,991
		Spring	Burmah (Aminoil)	8	1	1	0	60,279
		0 [2]	Shell	3	7	0	0	23,894
	Lake County	Crump Geyser	San Juan	1	3	0	1	7,510
Nevada	Churchill Co.	Brady H.S.	Magma	2	0	0	0	7,915
	Eureka Co.	Beowave	Magma	1	2	0	1	5,447
	Lyon Co.	Fernley	Magma	1	0	0	1	3,668
	Eureka Co.	Hot Springs Pt	Chevron	1	0	1	0	2,335
	Washoe Co.	San Emidio	Chevron	1	0	1	0	4,013
Idaho	Cassia Co.	Raft River	Ida, Nat. Eng. Lab.	2	2	0	0	10,077
Utah	Beaver Co.	Roosevelt H.S.	Phillips	6	5	1	0	31,198
New Mexico	Jemez Mts.	Valles Caldera	Union	2	1	0	1	12,507
Hawaii	Is. of Hawaii	Pahoa	Hawaii Geothermal Pro	j. <u>1</u>	1	0	0	6,445
				5.2				

Summary by States, 1975 Geothermal Drilling, Western U.S.

Source: Geothermal Energy Magazine, June 1976.

Operator	Wells Drilled	Producible	Suspended	Abandoned	Observation	Total Footage Drilled
Union	15	13	0	2		113,052
Burmah (Aminoil)	8	7	1	0		60,279
Republic Geothermal	4	3	1	0		36,045
Pacific Energy	3	1	0	2		31,991
Phillips	6	5	1	0		31,198
Shell	3	3	0	0		23,894
Magma	4	2	0	2		17,030
Chevron	5	0	0	0	5	(16,722) <u>1</u> /
Ida Natl. Eng. Lab.	2	2	0	0		10,977
San Juan	1	0	0	1		7,510
Hawaii Geothermal Pro	j. <u>1</u>	<u> </u>	0	<u>0</u>		6,445
Totals	46	37	2	7		338,421
$\underline{1}$ / Observations holes			(7)			(355,143)

Summary by Operator, 1975 Geothermal Drilling, Western U.S.

بالمراج الهما

مانتيار بالا ورام الها

)

T. S. M. M.

Source: Geothermal Energy Magazine, June 1976.

149

294

State	Region	Area	Operator	Wells	Prod.	Susp.	Abd.	Obs.	Footage
		Noctmorland	Republic Geothermal	6	6	0	0	0	40,916
Calif.	Imperial	Resultor rand	Union	2	2	0	0	0	16,411
	Valley	Brawley	Magma Power	2	2	0	0	0	41,851
		East Mesa	Magina rower	5	2	0	0	3	29,633
		Heber	Chauron	ī	0	0	0	1	7,089
				14	14	0	0	0	122,675
	The Geysers	Main Geysers		2	2	0	0	0	30,967
			Aminoli Desifis Enongu	ĩ	ī	0	0	0	10,550
			Pacific Energy	1	ī	Ō	0	0	10,153
		_	McCulloch	2	ī	2	0	0	21,963
		Castle Rock	Aminoil	3	î	ō	Ō	0	5,626
			Shell	1	ō	ĩ	Ō	0	11,561
		Middletown	Aminoil	1	ŏ	ī	ō	Ó	9,232
			Chevron	1	0	ō	ĩ	õ	8.250
			Shell	1	0	1	ī	Ō	10,431
		Cloverdale	Shell	1	0	ñ	ñ	ŏ	6,660
		Mt. Konocti	Magma Power	1	0	1	ň	ž	5.868
		Calistoga	AMAX	3	0	<u>,</u>	Ň	ň	6,920
	Mono Co.	Long Valley	Republic Geothermal	1	0	. 0	õ	ı,	1,352
	Invo Co	Coso Hot Springs	Battelle Pac. NW Lab.	1	U	0	0	5	7 342
Nounda	Churchill	Desert Peak	Phillips	2	2	0	Ű	2	11 654
Nevaua	County	Stillwater	Union	• 3	0	I	ů,	3	5 680
	Landor Co	Beowave	Chevron	1	0	0	1	0	5 942
•	Lanuer CO.	Klamath Falls	Thermal Power	1	0	0	0	U	5,044
Oregon	Klamath Co.	Riamach faito	Idaho Nat. Eng. Lab.	2	2	0	0	0	8,991
ldano	Cassia Co.	Rait River	Idaho Nat. Eng. Lab.	2	0	0	0	2	3,100
	Ada Co.	Borse	Phillins	1	1	0	0	0	7,513
Utah	Beaver Co.	ROOSEVEIL	Thermal Power	2	2	0	0	0	7,362
		Gause Domb	Union	1	0	0	1	0	1,151
	Millard Co. Iron Co.	Cove Fort Beryl Junction	McCulloch	2	0	1	1	0	17,921

Summary by States, 1976 Geothermal Drilling, Western U.S.

Source: Geothermal Energy Magazine, May 1977.

Same into the second

A. 2. 24 M. 44 1



Operator	Wells Drilled	Produ- cible	Sus- pended	Aban- doned	Obser- vation	Total Footage Drilled
Union	25	18	0	1	6	181,524
Aminoil	6	3	3	0	0	54,491
Republic Geothermal	7	6	1	0	0	47,836
McCulloch	3	1	1	1	0	28,074
Shell	3	1	0	2	0	24,307
Chevron	3	0	2	0	1	22,001
Magma	3	2	1	0	0	21,511
Phillips	3	3	0	0	0	14,855
Thermal Power	3	2	0	1	0	13,204
Idaho Nat. Eng. Lab.	4	2	0	0	2	12,179
Pacific Energy	1	1	0	0	0	10,550
Amax	3	0	0	0	3	5,868
Battelle Pac. NW Lab	_1	0	<u>o</u>	<u>0</u>	1	1,352
Total	65	39	8	5	13	437,752

Summary by Operator, 1976 Geothermal Drilling, Western U.S.

and the south

Instant

Source: Geothermal Energy Magazine, May 1977.

d Harac

<u>ىلەرمەتلەر ئەتلەر ئەممەمەت ، بالار</u>

Summary by States, 1977 Geothemral

Drilling, Western U.S.

State	Region	Operator	Wells	Prod.	Injections	Sus.	Absd.	Obs.	Footage
Calif.	Imperial Valley	Union Chevron Republic Magma	1 1 5 1	1 4	1	1			9,609 7,930 29,421 3,095
	The Geysers	Union McCulloch Aminoil Shell Republic	16 2 11 7 1	13 1 5 2		1 1 2 1 1	2 4 4		65,843 50,850 7,376
	Inyo Co.	CER Corp	1			1			4,845
Nevada	Pershing Co. Churchhill Co	Phillips .Chevron Oxy Geotherma	1 1 1			1 1		1	1,853 4,975 3,000
Utah	Iron Co. Beaver Co.	McCulloch Thermal Power Republic Geothermal	1 1 1			1 1 1			5,867 6,107 7,288
Idaho	Washington Co Owyhee Co.	Phillips Phillips	1 1			1 1			8,001 9,340
New Mexico	Sandoval Co.	LASL	2						1,735

a stand of the stand of the

Stor Bearing

in the second with the second with the second se

Source: Courtney Isselhardt, Republic Geothermal, Inc., (draft) 1978.

152

and a fair to be and a real of the second of a second of a second of the second of the second of the second of



Summary by Operator, 1977 Geothermal Drilling, Western U.S.

Source: Courtney Isselhardt, Republic Geothermal, Inc., (draft) 1978.

Ð

APPENDIX E

FIRMS INVOLVED IN GEOTHERMAL DEVELOPMENT

Oil Companies: majors and independents

Union Oil of California

Chevron Oil Company - Standard Oil of California -Chevron Resources Company

Natomas

Phillips Petroleum Company

Aminoil

Petro-Lewis

Shell Oil Company

Gulf Oil Company

Occidental Petroleum

Sun Oil

Mapco, Inc.

Getty Oil

McCulloch Oil

Geothermal Enterprises:

Thermogenics, Inc. Thermal Power Company Geothermal Resources International, Inc. Earth Power Corporation Magma Power Company Thermex Republic Geothermal, Inc. Geothermal Kinetics, Inc.

Hunt Energy Corporation

Geothermal Enterprises continued

Thermal Resources, Inc.

Diablo Exploration

California Energy Co., Inc.

Others: Large Integrated Firms

Anadarko Production Co.

Amax Exploration, Inc.

Anschutz Corp.

Dow Chemical Co.

Morton-Norwich Products

Utah International, Inc.

Municipalities:

Burbank

Susanville

Northern California Power Agency

Engineering Firms:

Ben Holt Co.

Bechtel Corporation

Morrison-Knudsen

Rogers Engineering

VTN Consolidated

Utilities

こうちょう ちょうしん ちょうちょう ちょうちょう ちょうちょう ちょうちょう ちょうちょう しょうしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう

Pacific Gas and Electric, San Francisco, California. Pacific Power and Light, Portland, Oregon. Sierra Pacific, Reno, Nevada. Utah Power and Light

San Diego Gas and Electric, San Diego, California.

Public Service of New Mexico, Albuquerque, New Mexico.

Southern California Edison, Rosemead, California.

California State Department of Water Resources, Sacremento, California.

Imperial Irrigation District, Imperial, California.

Arizona Public Service, Phoenix, Arizona.

APPENDIX F

-- -

ERDA BUDGET FOR FY 76-78

ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION

FY 1978 BUDGET REQUEST

ENERGY RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT AND DEMONSTRATION PROGRAMS

		BUDGET OUTLAYS (IN MILLIONS)							
					1978				
		1976	1977	January	February	April			
I.	Energy RD&D Programs								
	Conservation	\$ 45	\$ 125	\$ 139	\$ 244	\$ 249			
	Fossil Energy	242	445	500	519	531			
	Solar Heating and Cooling	15	61	61	86	90			
	Solar Electric and Other	48	122	173	164	170			
	Geothermal Energy	30	49	68	68	78			
	Fusion Power Development	211	328	431	392	392			
	Liquid Metal Fast Breeder Reactor	441	595	.736	651	589			
	Nuclear Fuel Cycle and Safeguards	143	300	491	474	458			
	Other Fission	85	117	135	135	146			
	Special Foreign Currency Funds	0	2	3	3	3			
	Subtotal	1,260	2,144	2,737	2,736	2,706			
II.	Supporting Research								
	Environmental and Biomedical Research	142	181	198	200	201			
	Basic Energy Sciences	118	137	162	162	162			
	Subtotal	260	318	360	362	363			
111.	Financial Incentive Activities								
	Geothermal Resources Development Fund	0	4	7	7	7			
	Alternative Fuels Demonstration Program	0	0	3	3	3			
	Subtotal	0	4	10	10	10			
	Total Energy Research, Devel. & Demo. Prog.	\$1,520	\$2,466	\$3,107	\$3,108	\$3,079			

Source: Budgetary Implications of the President's Energy Policy, April 20, 1977, Overview and Perspective. $\left(\right)$

ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION

i kreker i ser og det s

FY 1978 BUDGET REQUEST

		BUDGET AUTHORITY (IN MILLIONS)							
		·····			1978.				
		1976	1977	January	February	April			
I.	Energy Research, Development & Demonstration								
	Conservation	s 76	\$ 161	\$ 158	\$ 318	\$ 325			
	Fossil Energy	426	483	598	640	657			
	Solar Heating and Cooling	39	86	45	90	96			
	Solar Electric and Other	76	204	260	215	224			
	Geothermal Energy	31	55	88	88	101			
	Fusion Power Development	246	428	513	433	433			
	Liquid Metal Fast Breeder Reactor	505	686	855	656	483			
	Nuclear Fuel Cycle & Safeguards	167	357	636	611	587			
	Other Fission	84	140	148	148	161			
	Special Foreign Currency Funds	7	0	2	2	2			
	Subtotal	1,657	2,600	3,303	3,201	3,069			
11.	Supporting Research								
	Environmental and Biomedical Research	156	189	210	215	216			
	Basic Energy Sciences	132	156	175	175	175			
	Subtotal	288	345	385	390	391			
111.	Financial Incentive Activities								
	Geothermal Resources Development Fund	0	30	30	30	30			
	Alternative Fuels Demonstration Program	0	0	295	300	300			
	Subtotal	0	30	325	330	330			
	Total Energy Research, Devel. & Demo. Prog.	\$1,945	\$2,975	\$4,013	\$3,921	\$3,790			

Source: Budgetary Implications of the President's Energy Policy, April 20, 1977, Overview and Perspective.

APPENDIX G

GEOTHERMAL ENERGY RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT,

AND DEMONSTRATION ACT OF 1974 (P.L. 93-410)



Public Law 93-410 93rd Congress, H. R. 14920 September 3, 1974

An Act

To further the conduct of research, development, and demonstrations in geothermal energy technologies, to establish a Geothermal Energy Coordination and Management Project, to provide for the carrying out of research and development in geothermal energy technology, to carry out a program of demonstrations in technologies for the utilization of geothermal resources, to establish a loan guaranty program for the financing of geothermal energy development, and for other purposes.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of America in Congress assembled.

SHORT TITLE

SECTION 1. This Act may be cited as the "Geothermal Energy Research, Development, and Demonstration Act of 1974".

FINDING8

SEC. 2. The Congress hereby finds that-

(1) the Nation is currently suffering a critical shortage of environmentally acceptable forms of energy;

(2) the inadequate organizational structures and levels of funding for energy research have limited the Nation's current and future options for meeting energy needs;

(3) electric energy is a clean and convenient form of energy at the location of its use and is the only practicable form of energy in some modern applications, but the demand for electric energy in every region of the United States is taxing all of the alternative energy sources presently available and is projected to increase: some of the sources available for electric power generation are already in short supply, and the development and use of other sources presently involve undesirable environmental impacts;

(4) the Nation's critical energy problems can be solved only if a national commitment is made to dedicate the necessary financial resources, and enlist the cooperation of the private and public sectors, in developing geothermal resources and other nonconventional sources of energy:

(5) the conventional geothermal resources which are presently being used have limited total potential; but geothermal resources which are different from those presently being used, and which have extremely large energy content, are known to exist;

(6) some geothermal resources contain energy in forms other than heat; examples are methane and extremely high pressures available upon release as kinetic energy;

(7) some geothermal resources contain valuable byproducts such as potable water and mineral compounds which should be processed and recovered as national resources:

(8) technologies are not presently available for the development of most of these geothermal resources, but technologies for the generation of electric energy from geothermal resources are potentially economical and environmentally desirable, and the development of geothermal resources offers possibilities of process energy and other nonelectric applications;

(9) much of the known geothermal resources exist on the public lands;

Geothermal Energy Research, Development, and Demonstration Act of 1974. 30 USC 1101 note.

30 USC 1101.

88 STAT. 1079 8° STAT. 1060

39-247 O

Pub. Law 93-410

(10) Federal financial assistance is necessary to encourage the extensive exploration, research, and development in geothermal resources which will bring these technologies to the point of commercial application;

- 2 -

(11) the advancement of technology with the cooperation of private industry for the production of useful forms of energy from geothermal resources is important with respect to the Federal responsibility for the general welfare, to facilitate commerce. to encourage productive harmony between man and his environment, and to protect the public interest; and

(12) the Federal Government should encourage and assist private industry through Federal assistance for the development and demonstration of practicable means to produce useful energy from geothermal resources with environmentally acceptable processes.

DEFINITION8

30 USC 1102.

SEC. 3. For the purposes of this Act-

(1) the term "geothermal resources" means (A) all products. of geothermal processes, embracing indigenous steam, hot water, and brines, (B) steam and other gases, hot water and hot brines. resulting from water, gas, or other fluids artificially introduced into geothermal formations, and (C) any byproduct derived from them

(2) the term "byproduct" means any mineral or minerals which are found in solution or in association with geothermal resources and which have a value of less than 75 percent of the value of the geothermal steam and associated geothermal resources or are not, because of quantity, quality, or technical difficulties in extraction and production, of sufficient value to warrant extraction and production by themselves:

(3) "pilot plant" means an experimental unit of small size used for early evaluation and development of new or improved processes and to obtain technical, engineering, and cost data;

(4) "demonstration plant" means a complete facility which produces electricity, heat energy, or useful hyproducts for commercial disposal from geothermal resources and which will make a significant contribution to the knowledge of full-size technology, plant operation. and process economics; (5) the term "Project" means the Geothermal Energy Coordi-

nation and Management Project established by section 101(a):

(6) the term "fund" means the Geothermal Resources Development Fund established by section 204 (a); and

(7) the term "Chairman" means the Chairman of the Project.

TITLE I-GEOTHERMAL ENERGY COORDINATION AND MANAGEMENT PROJECT

ESTABLISHMENT

30 USC 1121.

Membership.

SEC. 101. (a) There is hereby established the Geothermal Energy Coordination and Management Project.

(b) (1) The Project shall be composed of six members as follows: (A) one appointed by the President :

108 STAT. 1080 C8 STAT. 1081

(B) an Assistant Director of the National Science Foundation:

(C) an Assistant Secretary of the Department of the Interior; (D) an Associate Administrator of the National Aeronauti

and Space Administration;

September 3, 1974

Pub. Law 93-410

(E) the General Manager of the Atomic Energy Commission; and

(F) an Assistant Administrator of the Federal Energy Administration.

(2) The President shall designate one member of the Project to serve as Chairman of the Project.

- 3 -

(3) If the individual appointed under paragraph $(1)(\Lambda)$ is an officer or employee of the Federal Government, he shall receive no Compensation. additional pay on account of his service as a member of the Project. If such individual is not an officer or employee of the Federal Government, he shall be entitled to receive the daily equivalent of the annual rate of basic pay in effect for level IV of the Executive Schedule (5 U.S.C. 5315) for each day (including traveltime) during which he is engaged in the actual performance of duties vested in the Project.

(c) The Project shall have overall responsibility for the provision of effective management and coordination with respect to a national geothermal energy research, development, and demonstration program. Such program shall include-

(1) the determination and evaluation of the resource base;

(2) research and development with respect to exploration, extraction, and utilization technologies;

(3) the demonstration of appropriate technologies; and
(4) the loan guaranty program under title I1.
(d) (1) The Project shall carry out its responsibilities under this section acting through the following Federal agencies :

(A) the Department of the Interior, the responsibilities of which shall include evaluation and assessment of the resource base, including development of exploration technologies;

(B) the National Aeronautics and Space Administration, the responsibilities of which shall include the provision of contract management capability, evaluation and assessment of the resource base, and the development of technologies pursuant to section 102(b);

(C) the Atomic Energy Commission, the responsibilities of which shall include the development of technologies; and

(D) the National Science Foundation, the responsibilities of which shall include basic and applied research.

(2) Upon request of the Project, the head of any such agency is authorized to detail or assign. on a reimbursable basis or otherwise, any of the personnel of such agency to the Project to assist it in carrying out its responsibilities under this Act.

(e) The Project shall have exclusive authority with respect to the establishment or approval of programs or projects initiated under this Act, except that the agency involved in any particular program or project shall be responsible for the operation and administration of such program or project.

PROGRAM DEFINITION

30 USC 1122.

SEC. 102. (a) (1) The Chairman, acting through the Administrator of the National Aeronautics and Space Administration, is authorized and directed to prepare a comprehensive program definition of an integrated effort and commitment for effectively developing geothermal energy resources. Such Administrator, in preparing such comprehensive program definition, is authorized to consult with other Federal gencies and non-Federal entities.

80 Stat. 461; 83 Stat. 863.

164

88 STAT. 1001

88 STAT. 1082

Pub. Law 93-410

Transmittal to President and Congress. Interim reports.

Inventory schedule and objectives, transmittal to President and Congress. (2) The Chairman shall transmit such comprehensive program definition to the President and to each House of the Congress. Interim reports shall be transmitted not later than November 30, 1974, and not later than January 31, 1975. Such comprehensive program definition shall be transmitted as soon as possible thereafter, but in any case not later than August 31, 1975.

(3) As part of the comprehensive program definition required by paragraph (1), the Chairman, acting through the Geological Survey, shall transmit to the President and to each House of the Congress a schedule and objectives for the inventorying of geothermal resources.

(b) The National Aeronautics and Space Administration is authorized to undertake and carry out those programs assigned to it by the Project.

RESOURCE INVENTORY AND ASSESSMENT PROGRAM

30 USC 1123.

SEC. 103. (a) The Chairman shall initiate a resource inventory and assessment program with the objective of making regional and national appraisals of all types of geothermal resources, including identification of promising target areas for industrial exploration and development. The specific goals shall include—

(1) the improvement of geophysical, geochemical, geological, and hydrological techniques necessary for locating and evaluating geothermal resources;

(2) the development of better methods for predicting the power potential and longevity of geothermal reservoirs;

(3) the determination and assessment of the nature and power potential of the deeper unexplored parts of high temperature geothermal convection systems; and

(4) the survey and assessment of regional and national geothermal resources of all types.

(b) The Chairman, acting through the Geological Survey and other appropriate agencies, shall—

(1) develop and carry out a general plan for the orderly inventorying of all forms of geothermal resources of the Federal lands and, where consistent with property rights and determined by the Chairman to be in the national interest, of non-Federal lands;

(2) conduct regional surveys, based upon such a general plan, using innovative geological, geophysical, geochemical, and strata, graphic drilling techniques, which will lead to a national inventory of geothermal resources in the United States;

(3) publish and make available maps, reports, and other documents developed from such surveys to encourage and facilitate the commercial development of geothermal resources for beneficial use and consistent with the national interest;

(4) make such recommendations for legislation as may from time to time appear to be necessary to make Federal leasing policy for geothermal resources consistent with known inventories of various resource types, with the current state of technologies for geothermal energy development, and with current evaluations of the environmental impacts of such development; and

(5) participate with appropriate Federal agencies and non-Federal entities in research to develop, improve, and test technologies for the discovery and evaluation of all forms of geothermal resources, and conduct research into the principles controlling the location, occurrence, size, temperature, energy content, producbility, and economic lifetimes of geothermal reservoirs.

Pub. Law 93-410

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

5 -

88 STAT. 1083

SEC. 104. (a) The Chairman, acting through the appropriate Fed- 30 USC 1124. eral agencies and in cooperation with non-Federal entities, shall initiate a research and development program for the purpose of resolving all major technical problems inhibiting the fullest possible commercial utilization of geothermal resources in the United States. The specific goals of such programs shall include-

(1) the development of effective and efficient drilling methods to operate at high temperatures in formations of geothermal interest;

(2) the development of reliable predictive methods and control techniques for the production of geothermal resources from reservoirs:

(3) the exploitation of new concepts for fracturing rock to permit recovery of contained heat reserves;

(4) the improvement of equipment and technology for the extraction of geothermal resources from reservoirs;

(5) the development of improved methods for converting geothermal resources and byproducts to useful forms;

(6) the development of improved methods for controlling emissions and wastes from geothermal utilization facilities, including new monitoring methods to any extent necessary;

(7) the development and evaluation of waste disposal control technologies and the evaluation of surface and subsurface environmental effects of geothermal development :

(8) the improvement of the technical capability to predict environmental impacts resulting from the development of geothermal resources, the preparation of environmental impact statements. and the assuring of compliance with applicable standards and criteria;

(9) the identification of social, legal, and economic problems associated with geothermal development (both locally and regionally) for the purpose of developing policy and providing a frame-work of policy alternatives for the commercial utilization of geothermal resources;

(10) the provision for an adequate supply of scientists to perform required geothermal research and development activities; and

(11) the establishment of a program to encourage States to establish and maintain geothermal resources clearinghouses, which shall serve to (A) provide geothermal resources developers with information with respect to applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules, and regulations, (B) coordinate the processing of permit applications, impact statements, and other information which geothermal resources developers are required to provide. (C) encourage uniformity with respect to local and State laws, rules, and regulations with respect to geothermal resources development, and (D) encourage establishment of land use plans. which would include zoning for geothermal resources development and which would assure that geothermal resources developers will be able to carry out development programs to the production stage.

(b) The Chairman, acting through the appropriate Federal agencies and in cooperation with non-Federal entities, shall implement a coordinated program of research and development in order to demonrate the technical means for the extraction and utilization of the source base, including any byproducts of such base, and in order to

accomplish the goals established by subsection (a). Research authorized by this Act having potential applications in matters other than geothermal energy may be pursued to the extent that the findings of such research can be published in a form for utilization by others.

- 6 -

DEMONSTRATION

3C USC 1125.

SEC. 105. (a) The Chairman, acting through the appropriate Federal agencies and in cooperation with non-Federal entities, shall initiate a program to design and construct geothermal demonstration plants. The specific goals of such program shall include—

(1) the development of economical geothermal resources production systems and components which meet environmental standards;

(2) the design of plants to produce electric power and, where appropriate, the large-scale production and utilization of any useful byproducts;

(3) the involvement of engineers, analysts, technicians, an managers from industry field and powerplant development, which shall lead to the early industrial exploitation of advanced geothermal resources;

(4) the provision for an adequate supply of trained geothermal_ engineers and technicians;

(5) the provision of experimental test beds for component test ing an evaluation by laboratories operated by the Federal Government, industry, or institutions of higher education:

(6) the construction and operation of pilot plants; and

(7) the construction and operation of demonstration plants.

(b) In carrying out his responsibilities under this section, the Chairman, acting through the appropriate Federal agencies, and in cooperation with non-Federal entities, may provide for the establishment of one or more demonstration projects utilizing each geothermal resource base involved, which shall include, as appropriate, all of the exploration, siting, drilling, pilot plant construction and operation, demonstration plant construction and operation, and other facilities and activities which may be necessary for the generation of electric energy and the utilization of geothermal resource byproducts.

(c) The Chairman, acting through the appropriate Federal agencies, is authorized to investigate and enter into agreements for the cooperative development of facilities to demonstrate the production cenergy from geothermal resources. The responsible Federal agency may consider—

(1) cooperative agreements with utilities and non-Federal governmental entities for construction of facilities to produce energy for commercial disposition; and

(2) cooperative agreements with other Federal agencies for the construction and operation of facilities to produce energy for direct Federal consumption.

(d) The responsible Federal agency is authorized to investigate the feasibility of, construct, and operate, demonstration projects without entering into cooperative agreements with respect to such projects, if the Chairman finds that—

(1) the nature of the resource, the geographical location, the scale and engineering design of the facilities, the techniques of production, or any other significant factor of the proposal offers opportunities to make important contributions to the general

Cooperative agreements.
September 3, 1974

knowledge of geothermal resources, the techniques of its development, or public confidence in the technology; and

(2) there is no opportunity for cooperative agreements with any utility or non-Federal governmental entity willing and able to cooperate in the demonstration project under subsection (c) (1), and there is no opportunity for cooperative agreements with

other Federal agencies under subsection (c) (2). (e) Before favorably considering proposals under subsection (c). the responsible Federal agency must find that-

(1) the nature of the resource, the geographical location, the scale and engineering design of the facilities, the techniques of production, or any other significant factor of the proposal offers opportunities to make important contributions to the general knowledge of geothermal resources, the techniques of its development, or public confidence in the technology;

(2) the development of the practical benefits as set forth in paragraph (1) are unlikely to be accomplished without such cooperative development; and

(3) where non-Federal participants are involved, the proposal is not eligible for adequate Federal assistance under the loan guaranty provisions of title 11 of this Act.

(f) If the estimate of the Federal investment with respect to contruction and operation costs of any demonstration project proposed o be established under this section exceeds \$10,000,000, no amount may be appropriated for such project except as specifically authorized by legislation hereafter enacted by the Congress.

(g)(1) At the conclusion of the program under this section or as Federal prosoon thereafter as may be practicable, the responsible Federal agencies perty interests, shall, by sale, lease, or otherwise, dispose of all Federal property interests which they have acquired pursuant to this section (including mineral rights) in accordance with existing law and the terms of the cooperative agreements involved.

(2) The agency involved shall, under appropriate agreements or Project tyother arrangements, provide for the disposition of geothermal resource products, disbyproducts of the project administered by such agency.

SCIENTIFIC AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION

SEC. 106. (a) It is the policy of the Congress to encourage the 30 USC 1126. development and maintenance of programs through which there may be provided the necessary trained personnel to perform required geothermal research, development, and demonstration activities under sections 103, 104, and 105.

(b) The National Science Foundation is authorized to support programs of education in the sciences and engineering to carry out the policy of subsection (a). Such support may include fellowships, trainceships, technical training programs, technologist training pro-

grams, and summer institute programs. (c) The National Science Foundation is authorized and directed to coordinate its actions, to the maximum extent practicable, with the Project or any permanent Federal organization or agency having jurisdiction over the energy research and development functions of the United States, in determining the optimal selection of programs of education to carry out the policy of subsection (a).

disposal.

Dosal.

88 STAT. 1086

Pub. Law 93-410

(d) The National Science Foundation is authorized to encourage, to the maximum extent practicable international participation and cooperation in the development and maintenance of programs of education to carrying out the policy of subsection (a).

TITLE II-LOAN GUARANTIES

ESTABLISHMENT OF LOAN GUARANTY PROGRAM

30 USC 1141.

SEC. 201. (a) It is the policy of the Congress to encourage and assist in the commercial development of practicable means to produce useful energy from geothermal resources with environmentally acceptable processes. Accordingly, it is the policy of the Congress to facilitate such commercial development by authorizing the Chairman of the Project to designate an appropriate Federal agency to guarantee loans for such purposes.

(b) In order to encourage the commercial production of energy from geothermal resources, the head of the designated agency ψ authorized to, in consultation with the Secretary of the Treasury, guarantee, and to enter into commitments to guarantee, lenders against loss of principal or interest on loans made by such lenders to qualified borrowers for the purposes of—

(1) the determination and evaluation of the resource base;

(2) research and development with respect to extraction m' utilization technologies;

(3) acquiring rights in geothermal resources; or

(4) development, construction, and operation of facilities for the demonstration or commercial production of energy from geothermal resources.

(c) Any guaranty under this title shall apply only to so much of the principal amount of any loan as does not exceed 75 percent of the aggregate cost of the project with respect to which the loan is made.

(d) Loan guaranties under this title shall be on such terms and conditions as the head of the designated agency determines, except that a guaranty shall be made under this title only if—

(1) the loan bears interest at a rate not to exceed such annual per centum on the principal obligation outstanding as the head of the designated agency determines to be reasonable, taking into account the range of interest rates prevailing in the private sector, for similar loans and risks by the United States;

(2) the terms of such loan require full repayment over a period not to exceed thirty years, or the useful life of any physical asset to be financed by such loan, whichever is less (as determined by the head of the designated agency):

(3) in the judgment of the head of the designated agency, the amount of the loan (when combined with amounts available to the qualified borrower from other sources) will be sufficient to carry out the project; and

(4) in the judgment of the head of the designated agency, there is reasonable assurance of repayment of the loan by the qualified borrower of the guaranteed indebtedness.

(e) The amount of the guaranty for any loan for a project shall not exceed \$25,000,000, and the amount of the guaranty for any combination of loans for any single qualified borrower shall not exceed \$50,000,000.

(f) As used in this title, the term "qualified borrower" means any public or private agency, institution, association, partnership

Terms and conditions.

Limitation.

"Qualified borrower."

いたが、それの時代は、1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には、1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には 1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年には1999年に

corporation, political subdivision, or other legal entity which (as determined by the head of the designated agency) has presented satisfactory evidence of an interest in geothermal resources and is capable of performing research or completing the development and production of energy in an acceptable manner.

PAYMENT OF INTEREST

SEC. 202. (a) With respect to any loan guaranteed pursuant to this title, the head of the designated agency is authorized to enter into a contract to pay, and to pay, the lender for and on behalf of the borrower the interest charges which become due and payable on the unpaid balance of any such loan if the head of the designated agency finds—

(1) that the borrower is unable to meet interest charges, and that it is in the public interest to permit the borrower to continue to pursue the purposes of his project, and that the probable net cost to the Federal Government in paying such interest will be less than that which would result in the event of a default; and

(2) the amount of such interest charges which the head of the designated agency is authorized to pay shall be no greater than the amount of interest which the borrower is obligated to pay under the loan agreement.

(b) In the event of any default by a qualified borrower on a guaranteed loan, the head of the designated agency is authorized to make payment in accordance with the guaranty, and the Attorney General shall take such action as may be appropriate to recover the amounts of such payments (including any payment of interest under subsection (a)) from such assets of the defaulting borrower as are associated with the project, or from any other surety included in the terms of the guaranty.

PERIOD OF GUARANTIES AND INTEREST ASSISTANCE

SEC. 203. No loan guaranties shall be made, or interest assistance contract entered into, pursuant to this title, after the expiration of the ten-calendar-year period following the date of enactment of this Act.

GEOTHERMAL RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT FUND

SEC. 204. (a) There is established in the Treasury of the United States a Geothermal Resources Development Fund, which shall be available to the head of the designated agency for carrying out the loan guaranty and interest assistance program authorized by this title, including the payment of administrative expenses incurred in connection therewith. Moneys in the fund not needed for current operations may, with the approval of the Secretary of the Treasury, be invested in bonds or other obligations of, or guaranteed by, the United States.

(b) There shall be paid into the fund the amounts appropriated pursuant to section 304(c) and such amounts as may be returned to the United States pursuant to section 202(b), and the amounts in the fund shall remain available until expended, except that after the expiration of the ten-year period established by section 203, such amounts in the fund which are not required to secure outstanding Contract authority. 30 USC 1142.

88 STAT. 1087

30 USC 1143.

Establishment. 30 USC 1144. Pub. Law 93-410

September 3, 1974

guaranty obligations shall be paid into the general fund of the Treasury.

- 10 -

(c) Business-type financial reports covering the operations of the fund shall be submitted to the Congress by the head of the designated agency annually upon the completion of an appropriate accounting period.

TITLE III-GENERAL PROVISIONS

PROTECTION OF ENVIRONMENT

30 USC 1161.

88 STAT. 1088

Financial re-

ports, submittal to

Congress.

SEC. 301. In the conduct of its activities, the Project and any participating public or private persons or agencies shall place particular emphasis upon the objective of assuring that the environment and the safety of persons or property are effectively protected; and the program under title I shall include such special research and development as may be necessary for the achievement of that objective.

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Reports to President and Congress. 30 USC 1162. SEC. 302. (a) The Chairman of the Project shall submit to the President and the Congress full and complete annual reports of the activities of the Project, including such projections and estimates as may be necessary to evaluate the progress of the national geothermal energy research, development, and demonstration program and to provide the basis for as accurate a judgment as is possible concerning the extent of which the objectives of this Act will have been achieved by June 30, 1980.

(b) No later than one year after the termination of each demonstration project under section 105, the Chairman of the Project shall submit to the President and the Congress a final report on the activities of the Project related to each project, including his recommendations with respect to any further legislative, administrative, and other actions which should be taken in support of the objectives of this Act.

TRANSFER OF FUNCTIONS

30 USC 1163.

SEC. 303. (a) Within sixty days after the effective date of the law creating a permanent Federal organization or agency having jurisdiction over the energy research and development functions of the United States (or within sixty days after the date of the enactment of th? Act if the effective date of such law occurs prior to the date of th enactment of this Act), all of the research, development, and demonstration functions (including the lean guaranty program) vested in the Project under this Act, along with related records, documents, personnel, obligations, and other items to the extent necessary or appropriate, shall, in accordance with regulations prescribed by the Office of Management and Budget, be transferred to and vested in such organization or agency.

(b) Upon the establishment of a permanent Federal organization or agency having jurisdiction over the energy research and development functions of the United States, and when all research and development (and other) functions of the Project are transferred, the members of the Project may provide advice and counsel to the head of such organization or agency, in accordance with arrangements made at that time.

September 3, 1974 - 11 -

Pub. Law 93-410

AUTHORIZATIONS OF APPROPRIATIONS

SEC. 304. (a) For the fiscal years ending June 30, 1976, and Septem- 30 USC 1164 ber 30, 1977, 1978, 1979, and 1980, only such sums may be appropriated as the Congress may hereafter authorize by law.

(b) There are authorized to be appropriated to the National Aeronautics and Space Administration not to exceed \$2,500,000 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1975, for the purpose of preparing the program definition under section 102(a).

(c) In addition to sums authorized to be appropriated by subsection (b), there are authorized to be appropriated to the fund not to exceed \$50,000,000 annually, such sums to carry out the provisions of the loan guaranty program by the Project under title II.

Approved September 3, 1974.

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:

HOUSE REPORTS: No. 93-1112 (Corm. on Science and Astronautics) and No. 93-1301 (Comm. of Confirmence). SENATE REPORT No. 93-849 accompanying S. 2465 (Comm. on Interior and Insular Affairs) CONGRESSIONAL RECORD, Vol. 120 (1974): July 10, considered and passed House. July 11, considered and passed Senate, amended, in lieu of S. 2465. Aug. 20, Senate agreed to conference report.

Aug. 21, House agreed to conference report.

88 STAT. 1089

APPENDIX H

and the second second

1

GEOTHERMAL LOAN GUARANTY PROGRAM RULES

AND REGULATIONS

rules and regulations

This section of the FEDERAL REGISTER contains regulatory documents having general applicability and legal effect most of which are keyed to and codified in the Code of Federal Regulations, which is published under 50 titles pursuant to 44 U.S.C. 1510. The Code of Federal Regulations is sold by the Superintendent of Documents. Prices of new books are listed in the first FEDERAL **REGISTER** Issue of each month.

Title7-Agricultige -AGACULTURAL MARNETING CHAPTER STRVICE (STANDARUS, INSPECTION, MARKETING PRACTICES), DEPART. MENT OF AGRICULTURE

PART 28 COTTON CLASSING Revision in Fees Correction

In FR Dod. 76-14839 appdaring di page 20680 in the issue of Thurstay, May 20, 1978, the following corrections should be made:

I. On Ange 20682 in the second column, in item no. 5 the third line should read, "method for either zero or" and the seventh line should read six specimens from a blended".

2. On page 20683 in item no. 24(a) in the third column the third line should read, "100-grain spectmen".

Title 10--Energy

CHAPTER III-ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION

PART 790-GEOTHERMAL ENERGY RE-SEARCH, DEVELOPMENT, DEMONSTRA-TION AND PRODUCTION

Federal Guarantees on Loans

On October 28, 1975, the Energy Research and Development Administration (ERDA) published in the FEDERAL REG-ISTER (40 FR 50100) a proposed regulation concerned with enabling lenders to obtain Federal guarantees on loans to qualified borrowers for purposes related to the commercial development of practical means to produce electric power and other forms of useful energy from geothermal resources in an environmentally acceptable manner.

Generally, the proposed regulation provided priorities and criteria which ERDA intends to apply to the consideration of applications for, and granting or denial of, Federal loan guarantees. Further the regulation provided illustrations of information to be developed by the borower and the lender, and to be supplied to ERDA, including a detailed description of the project for which the and guaranty are required and an affirmation by the lender supporting the necessity for the Federal guaranty.

In addition, the regulation contained illustrations of cost items which would be acceptable for inclusion in the computation of the aggregate cost of a project.

Interceted persons and Federal agencles were asked to comment and a period extending from the date of publication of the proposed regulation to December 12, 1975, was allocated for such purpose. Ap-

proximately sixty responses to the request for comments were received from the public and other Federal agencies. Generally, these comments were directed to the subject of eligible loans and priorities; definitions; loan guaranty criteria; supporting information; project costs illustrations; and, environmental considerations.

The comments, which were thoughtful and provocative, were considered thoroughly and many of them are incorporated in this final regulation. Section 790.4(b) was amended to provide a preference for small public and private utilities and small independently owned and operated businesses (as defined in §§ 790.5 (i) and (j)), and § 790.32(f) was inserted to permit the Administrator to allocate a portion of the amounts available for guarantees to such borrowers. A new section, § 790.46, was inserted to provide for future coordination between ERDA and the Department of the Interior regarding matters involving the loan guaranty program and lease administration under the Geothermal Steam Act of 1970. Another section, § 790.47, was established to provide borrowers and lenders with an ability to appeal decisions of the Manager to ERDA's Board of Contract Appeals. The requirement at § 790.20 in the proposed regulation for lenders to have available during preliminary discussions with the Manager an assessment of all aspects of the borrower's loan application was amended to provide at § 790.21(a)(23) for the submission of such information together with other information submitted with the guaranty application. In addition, a number of other changes have been made to improve clarity.

Therefore, ERDA herewith publishes this Part 790 under which it will administer its geothermal loan guaranty program. Part 790 is added to 10 CFR Ch. III to read as follows:

Subpart A-General Provisions

- Scc. 790.1 Purpose.
- 790.2 Objectives
- 700 3 Effective date.
- 790.4 Eligible loans and priorities.
- 790.5 Definitions.
- 790.0 Loan guaranty criteria.
- 790.7 Interest assistance.
- 700.8 Default payment.
- Period of guarantees and interest 700.9 ausistance. 790.10
 - Information for Governors. Subpart B----Applicatitons

Filing.

- 790.20 70.21 Supporting information.
- 700.22 Project cost illustrations.
- Environmental considerations, 700.23 790.24 Mandatory purchase of flood insur
 - ance.

Subpart C-Servicing and Closing

- Sec. 790.30 Loan servicing by lender.
- User charge. 790.31
- 790.32 Geothermal resources development fund.
- 790.33 Project monitoring.
- 790.34 Loan disbursements by lender.
- Satisfactory documentary evidence 790.35
- Withdrawal of guaranty. 790.36 790.37
 - Default and demand.
- 700 38 Preservation of collateral.
- Treatment of payments. 790.39 790.40
- Assignment and incontestability. 790.41
- Survival of guaranty agreement. 790.42 Security with respect to borrower's
 - assets.
- 700 49 Other federal assistance
- 790.44 Patent and proprietary rights.
- 790.45 Closing., 790.46
 - Suspension, termination, or cancellation of operations or production on Federal land administered by the Secretary of the Interior.

790.47 Appeals.

AUTHORITY: Sec. 105(a) of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974, Pub. L. 93-438; Title I of the Geothermal Energy Research, Development, and Demonstration Act of 1974 Pub. L. 93-410; E.O. 11834 dated January 15 1975.

Subpart A-General Provisions

§ 790.1 Purpose.

The purpose of this regulation is to set forth policies and procedures under which lenders may obtain a Federal guaranty on loans related to the commercial development of practicable means to produce, with environmentally acceptable processes, useful energy from gotherma' resources.

§ 790.2 Objectives.

The objectives of the Federal geothermal loan guaranty program are: (a) to encourage and assist the private and public sectors to accelerate development of geothermal resources with environmentally acceptable processes by enabling th Administrator of the Energy Research and Development Administration (ERDA), in the exercise of reasonable judgment, to minimize a lender's financial risk that is associated with the introduction of new geothermal resources and technology; and, (b) to develop normal borrower-lender relationships which will in time encourage the flow of cred. so as to assist in the development of geothermal resources without the need for Federal assistance.

§ 790.3 Effective date.

This regulation is effective June 25, 1976.

§ 790.4 Eligible loans and priorities.

(a) The Administrator may enter inte agreements to guaranty lenders against

the loss of principal and accrued interest on loans made by such lenders to qualified borrowers. Any such agreements shall be made subject to the application of priorities and preferential considerations for guarantees as set forth in paragraph (b) of this section and subject to criteria in § 790.6. Such agreements can be entered into only for the purposes of:

(1) Determination and evaluation of the commercial potential of geothermal resources:

(2) Research and development with respect to geothermal extraction and utilization technologies, including but not limited to the mitigation of adverse environmental effects;

(3) Acquisition of rights in geothermal resources; or,

(4) Development, construction, and operation of equipment or facilities for the demonstration or commercial production of energy (e.g., electric power, industrial or agricultural processes, or space heating) from geothermal re-SOUTCes.

(b) In complying with the objectives of the Federal geothermal loan guaranty program, the Administrator will give first priority consideration to those applications for projects having a plan of operations which show promise of quickly resulting in the development of useful energy from geothermal resources. Second priority consideration will be given to those applications for projects designed to demonstrate or utilize new technological advances or engage in the production of advanced technology components. Third priority will be given to projects that will demonstrate or exploit the commercial potential of new geothermal resource areas. The Administrator will give lower consideration to applications involving projects that initially propose geological and geophysical exploration, or the acquisition of land or leases. Within each category of priority as described herein, the Administrator will give preferential consideration to those applications in which the lender is providing a portion of the loan for which a guaranty is not requested. Additional preferential consideration within each priority category will be given to those applications involving, (1) projects from which the Federal government will receive royalty payments, and (2) projects to be carried out by small public and private utilities and small independently owned and operated businesses

(c) A loan application which meets a lender's standard without a Federal guaranty will be regarded by the Administrator as not eligible for a loan guaranty under this regulation. No loan shall be guaranteed if the income from such loan or the income from obligations issued by the holder of such loan is excluded from gross income for the purposes of Chapter I of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954. In addition, a project which is devoted exclusively to the extraction or production of reothermal byproducts as defined in § 790.5(b), or is devoted exclusively to the desalination of geothermal brines will be regarded by the Administrator as not eligible for a Federal loan guaranty under this regulation. ment manufacturing, research and devel-

§ 790.5 Definitions.

For purposes of this regulation:

(a) "Geothermal resources" means (1) all products of geothermal processes, embracing indigenous steam, geopressured fiulds, hot water, and brines, (2) steam and other gases, hot water and hot brines resulting from water, gas, or other fluids artificially introduced into geothermal formations, and (3) any byproduct derived from them:

(b) "Byproduct" means any mineral or minerals or gases which are found in solution or in association with geothermal or geopressured resources and which have a value of less than 75 percent of the value of the geothermal steam and associated geothermal resources or are not, because of quantity, quality, or technical difficulties in extraction and production, of sufficient value to warrant extraction and production by themselves;

(c) "Administrator" means the Administrator of the U.S. Energy Research Development Administration and (ERDA) or a representative authorized by the Administrator;

(d) "Manager" means the Manager of ERDA's Ban Francisco Operations Office, 1333 Broadway, Oakland, California 94616, or a representative authorized by the Manager;

(e) "Lender" means any legal entity formed for the purpose of or engaged in the business of lending money and having the capability of servicing the loan. Examples of lenders include, but are net limited to, commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, insurance companies, factoring companies, investment banking organizations, institutional investors, partnerships, venture capital investment companies, trusts, individuals, or entities designated as trustecs acting on behalf of bondholders or other lenders:

(f) "Qualified borrower" (hereinafter referred to as the borrower) means any public or private agency, institution, joint venture, limited partnership, association, cooperative, partnership, corporation, individual, political subdivision, or other legal entity having authority to enter into a loan agreement. Examples of borrowers include, but are not limited to, leaseholders, landowners, public and private electric utilities. reservoir developers, drillers, suppliers, component and equipment manufacturers, research and development firms, engineers, patent holders, and licensees:

(g) A "loan" is an obligation involving borrower and a lender, evidenced in a writing, making available to the borrower money at a specified rate of interest for a limited period of time. The loan instrument may not be capable of conversion into an equity relationship with the borrower:

(h) "Project" means an undertaking by the borrower which when completed will result in an identifiable product, system, major component or study for which a market potentially exists. Examples of a project include, but are not limited to, test and production well drilling, power plant construction, equip-

opment, construction of transmission lines from a geothermal power plant, and other ventures to utilize geothermal heat to serve as an energy source for nonelectric applications, such as crop drying and greenhousing:

(1) A "small public or private electric utility, including its affiliates", is, as provided in 13 CFR 121.3-10(d) (11), a business concern primarily engaged in the generation, transmission and/or distribution of electric energy for sale whose total electric output for its preceding fiscal year did not exceed four million megawatt-hours; and,

(j) A "small business, including its affiliates", is, as provided in 13 CFR 121.3-11(a), a concern which is independently owned and operated, is not dominant in its field of operation, does not have assets exceeding \$9 million, does not have net worth in excess of \$4 million, and does not have an average net income, after Federal income taxes. forthe preceding two years in excess of \$400,000 (average net income to be computed without benefit of any carryover loss).

§ 790.6 Loan guaranty criteria.

In addition to meeting the requirements for eligibility set forth in § 790.4 (a), a guaranty may be made only if the following conditions are met as determined by the Administrator upon the written recommendation by the Manager:

(a) The application is signed by an authorized official of the lender and the borrower:

(b) The loan is to be made to a qualified borrower;

(c) Except as provided in § 790.43, the guaranty as to principal shall apply only to so much of the principal amount of the loan as does not exceed 75 percent of the estimated aggregate cost of the project with respect to which the loan is made. However, there is no prohibition against the guaranty boing equal to 100% of the loan to be made by the lender:

(d) The lender has set forth reasons why the loan would not be made to the without a Federal loan borrower guaranty;

(c) There is satisfactory evidence demonstrating that the lender is competent to administer loan terms and conditions, and is competent to administer terms and conditions in the guaranty agreement that are applicable to the lender;

(f) When the maximum permissible guaranty is requested as provided in paragraph (c) of this section, the lender has set forth those reasons it is unwilling to undertake a loan having less than the maximum permissible guaranty so as to permit the Manager to evaluate whether the preferential consideration provided in § 790.4(b) is applicable;

(g) The loan bears interest at a rate not to exceed an annual percent on the principal obligation outstanding as the Administrator determines, in consultation with the Secretary of the Treasury. to be reasonable, taking into account the range of interest rates and lending practices prevailing in the private sector for

FEDERAL REGISTER, VOL. 41, NO. 103-WIJNESDAY, MAY 26, 1976



similar loans and risks by the United States. However, it is expected that the borrower and lender whi negotiate a mutually acceptable interest rate that recognizes the benefits to the lender from a Frederal guaranty;

(h) The terms of such loan require full repayment over a period of no more than thirty years, or no longer than the expected average useful life of any major physical asset to be financed by such loan, whichever is less, as determined by the Administrator.

(i) The amount of the loan together with other funds available to the borrower will be sufficient to carry out the project:

(j) There is reasonable assurance of payment of interest and repayment of the guaranteed portion of the loan by the qualified borrower, such as evidence that there exists or will exist a market for the project's product or results that is sufficient to enable the borrower to repay the loan:

(k) The amount of a guaranty for any loan for a project does not exceed \$25,-000.000:

(i) The total dollar amount of guarantees made under this regulation for any combination of outstanding loans to any single qualified borrower does not exceed \$50,000,000;

(m) The project is to be performed in the United States, its territories or possessions, or on property owned or leased by the United States outside the United States, its territories or porsessions;

(n) The project is technically feasible and uses environmentally acceptable processes;

(o) There is sufficient evidence, such as is provided in a plan of operations, that the borrower will initiate and complete the project in a timely and efficient manner;

(p) There is a sufficiency of encouraging geophysical, geological, hydrological and geochemical data;

(q) The borrower agrees to make available on a timely basis any technical or economic information as specified in the guaranty agreement, and, subject to provisions in § 790.33 and § 790.20(b) (ii), further agrees to the use of such information for public discemination purposes;

(r) There is satisfactory evidence of the borrower's interest in geothermal resources;

(s) There is satisfactory evidence that the borrower is capable of completing the project in an acceptable manner;

(t) The project, whether conducted on Federal. State-owned, or private land, will be carried out with full regard to the use of environmentally acceptable processes in such a manner as to mitigate adverse environmental impact to the maximum extent practicable;

(u) The environmental risks of the project have been evaluated in accordance with § 790.23;

(v) The terms and conditions set forth in the loan agreement are acceptable to the Administrator; and,

(w) The borrower and any non-guaranteed lender agree in writing that: (1) the terms and conditions set forth in a non-guaranteed loan agreement relating to the project shall be neceptable to the Administrator, and (3) the non-guaranteed loan shall be subardinate to the guaranteed loan.

§ 790.7 Interest assistance.

With respect to any loan guaranteed pursuant to this regulation, the Manager may enter into an interest assistance contract with the borrower to pay, and to pay the lender for and on behalf of the borrower the interest charges which become due and payable on the unpaid balance of any such loan if the Manager finds:

(a) That the borrower is unable to meet interest charges, and that it is in the public interest to permit the borrower to continue to pursue the purposes of the project, and that the probable net cost to the Federal government in paying such interest will be less than that which would result in the event of a default;

(b) The amount of such interest charges which the Manager is authorized to pay is no greater than the amount of interest which the borrower is obligated to pay under the loan agreement; and

(c) The borrower agrees to repayment of interest charges paid by the Federal government including the payment of interest on such charges at an annual rate to be set by the Manager in consultation with the Department of the Treasury and stated in the interest assistance contract, and to the payment of any deferred user charge provided in f 790.31(b).

§ 790.8 Default payment.

In the event of any default by a borrower in making a payment in accordance with the loan agreement with respect to any loan guaranteed pursuant to this regulation, and except as provided in § 790.7, the Administrator will, as provided in § 790.37, authorize the Manager to make payment of principal and accrued interest in accordance with the guaranty. Thereupon, the Attorney General of the United States shall take such action as may be appropriate to recover the amounts of such payments (including any payment of interest under § 790.7) from such assets of the defaulting borrower as are associated with the project, (including patent and proprietary rights resulting from the project as provided in # 790.44) or from any other surety or security bond by or included in the terms of the guaranty. Any recovery achieved by the Attorncy General which exceeds the amount paid to the lender in accordance with the guaranty agreement or interest assistance contract shall be returned to the borrower, unless the guaranty agreement provides otherwise.

§ 790.9 Period of guarantees and interest assistance.

No loan guaranty agreements will be made or interest assistance contracts entered into after September 3, 1934. Guaranty agreements in effect at that time will continue until the term of the loan is completed or until the guarantee portion of the loan is repaid in full with accrued interest, whichever occurs firs. Interest assistance contracts in effect on September 3, 1984, will remain effect thereafter until the contract terexpires or the contract is terminated in accordance with its provisions.

§ 790.10 Information for Governors.

The Administrator will, as appropriate, meet with Governors of directly affected. States, regional associations of Governors, or heads of State agenc. and commissions responsible for energy or environmental matters for the purpose of:

(a) Discussing the status of project: guaranteed under this regulation;

(b) Identifying means to remove or mitigate legal and regulatory barriers to the accelerated use of geothermal 1 sources: or

(c) Evaluating plans to encourage growth in the geothermal industry.

Subpart B-Applications

§ 790.20 Filing.

(a) An application for a loan guaranty made under this regulation must signed by the prospective borrower and lender or their authorized representatives and jointly submitted to the Manager who is responsible for processinthe application. Information regarding the filing of applications may be obtain from the Manager.

(b) (1) Frior to receipt of a guarar application, the Manager is authorized to conduct preliminary discussions with prospective lenders or borrowers wishing to obtain information or advice regarding eligibility for a loan guarant and compliance with filing instructional including the submission of supporting information as illustrated in § 790.21.

(2) Subject to requirements of L. and this regulation, trade secrets, commercial and financial information, gee logical, geophysical and geographical in formation and data (including manaconcerning wells which the borrov of makes available to ERDA during the preliminary discussion or at any other tim: throughout the duration of the projon a privileged or confidential basis, will be so treated by ERDA and will not be publicly disclosed without the prior write ten approval of the borrower. In order to assist ERDA in carrying out this provision, information deemed by the berrower or lender to fall within one of the foregoing categories shall be identify and appropriately marked by the borrower or the lender.

(c) A guaranty application may he submitted for a project that is divided into stages or milestones which are utilized as the basis for assessing the practicability of proceeding to a subsequenphase. However, in the event of fails to proceed to a subsequent phase, the Government's liability, under the guaranty agreement, will extend only to the amounts disbursed by the lender and

214.



§ 790.21 Supporting information.

(a) The lender and borrower shall provide information in support of the application such as prescribed by the Manager. The following items illustrate the range of information which may be needed, (dependent upon the type, complexity and cost of the project) so as to enable the Manager to prepare a recommendation for the Administrator's determination, as provided in § 790.6.

(1) Full description of the scape, nature, extent and location of the proposed project;

(2) A written affirmation by the lender supporting the necessity for a Federal loan guaranty;

(3) Evidence of the borrower's previous and current interest in exploiting the potential of geothermal resources;

(4) Evidence supporting the borrower's ability to complete the project; (5) Interest rate to be charged by the

lender: (6) Period and amount of the loan

and the percent of the project cost to be guaranteed:

(7) A detailed budget-type breakdown of both the estimated aggregate cost of the project and the amount to be borrowed;

(8) Evidence showing that the amount of the loan together with equity or other financing will be sufficient to carry out the project:

(9) The borrower's plan to pay interest charges and repay the loan, including assumptions regarding marketability of the project's results or product:

(10) The aggregate amount of guaranty commitments and/or guaranteed loans outstanding made to the borrower under the provisions of this regulation;

(11) Where relevant to the purpose of the loan guaranty, a copy of the borrower's title or lease agreement to the property, supported by title opinion or other locally acceptable evidence of the borrower's interest, on which the project is to be carried out; (12) Subject to § 790.20 (b) (ii), tech-

nical information and reports, geophysical data, well logs and core data, financial statements, milestone schedules, and maps and charts;

(13) Information covering the management experience of each officer or key person in the borrower's organization who is to be associated with the project;

(14) A description of the borrower's management concept and business plan. or plan of operations, to be employed in carrying out the project;

(15) A description of the project's technical and economic reasibility;

(16) A description of the intended sources and amount of capital and its form (equity, loans from principals, loans from the lender, outside financing, or factoring) together with evidence of a commitment from these sources and a copy of each such agreement, and evidence of the financial ability of each source to honor its commitment;

(17) A copy of the loan agreement to be executed by the lender and borrower;

(18) A listing of antois associated or to be associated with the project, including appropriate data as to the useful life of any physical asset, and any other security for the loan and gueranty agreement:

(19) A description of other Federal financial assistance (e.g., direct loans, guaranteed loans, grants, contracts) available or expected to be made available to the borrower in connection with the project;

(20) A description of the processes and methods the borrower plans to utilize so as to comply with \$790.23(c);

(21) Copies of all applications when filed, and approvals when issued by Federal, State and local government agencies, for permits and authorizations to conduct operations associated with the project:

(22) A description of the borrower's organization and a copy of the business certificate, partnership agreement or corporate charter, by laws, and appropriate authorizing resolutions;

(23) The lender's written assessment of all aspects of the borrower's loan application in sufficient detail as would be completed by any prudent lender considering a loan without a guaranty, together with copies of investigations from credit bureaus, references, bank inquirics, and professional organizations;

(24) Written assurance from guaranteed and, when appropriate to the project, non-guaranteed lenders that the loan amounts as well as terms and conditions imposed by such lenders will not be altered in any significant respect without approval of the Administrator:

(25) A description of salaries (and other financial remuneration including profit sharing and stock options) to be paid to officers and employees of the borrower that are, or will be, directly associated with the project; and

(26) Evidence of consultation conducted by the borrower with appropriate agencies of any affected State regarding the proposed project.

(b) In addition to supporting information illustrated in (2) above, the Manager may independently obtain or may require the lender to include with the guaranty application the filing of information regarding the lender as deemed necessary by the Manager, including but not limited to:

(1) Description of the lender's organization and a copy of the business certificate, partnership agreement or corporate charter, by-laws, and appropriate authorizing resolutions:

(2) Copies of investigations obtained from credit bureaus, reference and bank inquiries, and professional associations;

(3) Descriptions covering the manaccment experience of each officer or key person in the lender's organization who is or will be associated with the loan:

(4) A description of the management concept to be employed by the lender in surveillance of the loan; and

(5) When appropriate to the project,

surveying the financial aspects of complex technological projects.

(c) The Manager shall consider the application and other relevant information and shall be responsible for: (i) determining whether the application is in compliance with this regulation; (ii) assessing and evaluating the financial, technical, environmental, management, and marketing aspects of the project; and, (iii) recommending to the Administrator approval or nonapproval of the application. The Manager shall include with a recommendation for approval a proposed guaranty agreement containing appropriate terms and conditions pertinent to the project. The Manager will provide the borrower and lender with a written statement setting forth the basis for the Administrator's nonapproval of an application.

§ 790.22 Project cost illustrations.

(a) The cost elements set forth in paragraphs (b) and (c) of this section are only for the purpose of illustrating the manner by which the estimated aggregate cost of the project can be determined. It is expected that project costs will be accumulated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices which are consistently applied.

(b) Except as set forth in paragraph (c) of this section, reasonable and customary costs paid by the borrower that are directly connected to the project are generally permitted in computing the estimated aggregate project cost. These costs include, but are not limited to the following:

(1) Employees' salaries and wages consultant fees and other outside assistance;

(2) Land purchase or lease payments. including reasonable real estate commissions:

(3) Engineering fers, surveys, plats, title insurance, recording fors and legal fees incurred in connection with land acquisition:

(4) Site improvements, site restoration and abandonment cosic, access roads and fencing:

(5) Drilling of exploration wells, shallow hew-flow wells, and (est. production and reinjection wells:

(6) Buildings, transmission lines. power plant equipment, and machinery;

(7) Taxes to be paid to Federal, State and local government agencies and other taxing authorities;

(8) Insurance and bonds of all types; (9) Engincering, reological, architec-

tural and legal fees paid in connection with drilling, machinery relection, design, acquisition and installation;

(10) Research and development necessary to complete the project:

(11) Professional services and fees necessary to obtain licenses and permits and to prepare environmental reports and data

(12) Interest costs charged by the lender:

(13) Interest payments to other lenders:

(14) Costs incurred by the borrower evidence of the lender's experience in prior to approval of the guaranty agrea-

FEDERAL REGISTER, VOL. 41, NO. 103-WEDNESDAY, MAY 26, 1976



the project;

(15) Technical and socio-economic information dissemination costs: (16) Costs to provide safety and en-

vironmental protection equipment, facilities and services: (17) Travel and transportation costs;

(18) Bond financing costs and trustee fees:

(19) Fees for royalties and licenses;

(20) Costs associated with acquiring geophysical and other technical data; (21) Financial and legal services costs;

(22) Costs to comply with terms and conditions specified in the guaranty agreement or required by regulations and issuances by Federal, State and local government agencies; and,

(23) A contingency reserve.

(c) Costs which are not considered as project costs and are excluded from the guaranteed portion of the loan are illustrated below:

(1) Company organizational expenses; (2) Parent corporation general and ad-

ministrative expenses and other parent corporation assessments;

(3) Dividends and profit sharing to stockholders, employees and officers; (4) Goodwill, franchises, or trade or

brand name costs: (5) Except as provided in 790.31, fees

and commissions charged to the borrower for obtaining loans and Federal assistance:

(6) Loan commitment fees charged by lenders and finders' fees;

(7) Expenses not paid or incurred by the borrower:

(8) Normal operating expenses incurred after an initial period of start-up; and

(9) Cosis that are excessive or are not directly required to carry out the project.

(d) Independently, or at the direction of the Administrator, the Manager may cause to be performed a review of any or all cost elements included by the borrower in the estimated aggregate project cost. The borrower shall make available records and other data necessary to permit the Manager to carry out such review. In carrying out this responsibility, the Manager may utilize employees of Federal agencies or may direct the borrower to submit to a review performed by an independent public accountant or other competent authority.

(e) When costs incurred prior to the approval of the guaranty agreement, as provided in paragraph (b) (14) of this section, are included in the estimated aggregate project cost, the borrower will make available to auditors selected by the Manager financial and other records necessary to complete an audit of such costs if requested by the Manager.

§ 790.23 Environmental considerations.

(a) For a proposed project being actively considered for a loan guaranty for which an environmental statement or negative determination has been prepared by a responsible Federal official. the environmental statement or negative determination and supporting assessment will be utilized by the Manager and the

ment that are directly in connection with Administrator in considering the environmental consequences of the project.

(b) With respect to each project being considered actively for a loan guaranty for which paragraph (a) of this section is not applicable, the Manager, in accordance with 10 CFR Part 711, shall assess the potential effect of all phases of the project on the human environment, including but not limited to fish and other aquatic resources, wildlife habitat and populations, aesthetics, recreation, air and water quality, land use, and other resources in the area. This assessment will additionally consider, when appropriate to the project, the potential impact on the environment from the construction of power plants and transmission lines which may later be required but are not included in the project.

(1) To aid in the above assessment the Manager may request the views and recommendations of Federal, State, and local government agencies, environmental and industrial organizations, and others; and, when appropriate, may hold public hearings after giving due notice.

(2) If, as a result of the above assessment, the Manager determines that the proposed project will have a potentially significant effect on the quality of the human environment, final action on the guaranty application shall be held in abeyance until an environmental statement in accordance with section 102 (2) (c) of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 has been prepared and issued by the responsible Federal official.

(3) If the Manager determines that the proposed project will not have a potentially significant effect on the quality of the human environment, a negative determination shall be prepared by the Manager and submitted, together with the assessment, to the Administrator prior to final action on the guaranty anplication. The negative determination together with documentation supporting that determination shall be kept on file by the Manager. Environmental assessments and negative determinations prepared in compliance with this regulation shall be placed in ERDA Public Document Rooms.

(c) Each loan guaranty agreement shall include the following general terms and conditions for the protection of the environment:

(1) the horrower shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local requircments with respect to the control of air, land, water, and noise pollution. In the absence of requirements, the Manager, after consultation with appropriate Federal, State, and local government agencies, may recommend requirements for the Administrator's consideration and the borrower shall comply with such requirements as are approved by the Administrator.

(2) The borrower, in addition to any other action required by Federal, State or local requirements, or requirements established by the Administrator, or conditions set forth in leases issued by an agency of the Federal government, shall take the following specific actions:

(For purposes of this paragraph the anpropriate agency official means the Manager for projects conducted on private or State-owned land, and the Head of a Federal agency for projects conducted on any land administered by any agency of the Federal government.)

(i) Conduct operations in such a manner as to minimize disturbance to vegetation, drainage channels and streambanks, and employ such soil and resource conservation and protection measures as are deemed necessary by the appropriate agency official:

(ii) Remove or dispose of all waste generated in connection with the project in a manner acceptable to the appropriate agency official;

(iii) Take all reasonable precautions necessary to minimize to the maximum extent practicable land subsidence or seismic activity which could result from the project, including the taking of measures to monitor operations for land subsidence and seismic activity and, when requested by the appropriate agency official, make available records of all monitoring activities:

(iv) Take sesthetics into account in the planning, design, and construction of facilities:

(v) Employ such measures as are deemed necessary by the appropriate agency official to protect fish and wildlife and their habitat:

(vi) Conduct activities on known or suspected archeological; paleontological. or historical sites in accordance with specific instructions issued by the appropriate agency official;

(vii) Provide, in a timely manner, for the reasonable restoration of all disturbed lands, including the plucging of abandoned wells; and promotly employ corrective measures whenever adverse environmental effects exceed those expected; and,

(viii) Employ such other measures as are deemed necessary by the appropriate agency official to protect the quality of the human environment.

(d) For projects conducted on private or State-owned land:

(1) Assuring compliance with the requirements set forth in paragraph (b) of this section shall be the responsibility of the Manager, who may utilize experts from Federal agencies, National Laboratories or private firms, and shall have access to reports prepared by the borrower in compliance with requirements imposed by Federal, State and local government agencies.

(2) The borrower shall submit an annual report to the lender and the Manager giving a full account of actions taken to comply with the requirements set forth in paragraph (c) of this section.

(e) For projects to be conducted on any land administered by an agency of the Federal government:

(1) Assuring compliance with safety and operating procedures and environmental protection requirements chall be the reponsibility of the appropri-Federal agency or a representative cas thorized by the Head of that agency.

FEDERAL REGISTER, VOL. 41, NO. 103-WEDNESDAY, MAY 26, 1976



(2) The borrower shall provide to the lender and the Manager a copy of each annual environmental compliance report prepared by the borrower in accordance with regulations issued by the appropriate Federal agency.

(f) Nothing in this regulation shall be construed to modify requirements imposed on the borrower or lender by Federal, State and local government agencies in connection with permits, licenses, or other authorization to conduct or flnance geothermal activities.

§ 790.24 Mandatory purchase of flood insurance.

The Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 92-234) may require purchase by the borrower of flood insurance as a condition of receiving a guaranty on loans for acquisition or construction purposes in an identified flood plain area having special flood hazards. Questions emanating from borrowers or lenders regarding compliance with provisions of the Flood Disaster Protection Act and guidelines of the Federal Insurance Administration will be referred to the Manager. When the purchase of flood insurance is required, as finally determined by the Manager, such costs can be included by the borrower in the estimated aggregate project cost.

Subpart C---Servicing and Closing

§ 790.30 Loan servicing by lender.

Loan guaranty agreements approved in accordance with this regulation shall provide that:

(a) The lender shall exercise such care and diligence in the disbursement, servicing, and collection of the loan as would be excreised by a reasonable and prudent lender in dealing with a loan without guaranty;

(b) The loan agreement shall provide the customary period of grace for the making of any payment of principal or interest. However, the lender shall not grant to the borrower any further extension of time over and above any period of grace for the making of any payment in whole or in part under the loan agreement without the prior written consent of the Manager;

(c) The lender shall notify the Manager in writing without delay:

(1) That the first disbursement is ready to be made, together with evidence from the borrower that the project has commenced or is about to commence;

(2) Monthly, or at other agreed upon intervals, of the date and amount of each subsequent disbursement under the loan;

(3) Of any non-payment by the borrower of principal or interest as required by the loan agreement, if such nonpayment is not cured within the grace period, together with evidence of appropriate notifications made by the lender to the borrower;

(4) Of any failure, known to the lender, by an intended source of capital to honor its commitment;

(5) Of any failure by the borrower, known to the lender, to comply with terms and conditions as set forth in the loan agreement or guaranty agreement; or.

(6) When the lender believes that the borrower may not be able to meet any future scheduled payment of principal or interest.

(d) In the event the lender retains the option to accelerate payment of the borrower's indebtedness, the lender shall not do so without the prior written consent of the Manager.

(e) If the guaranty agreement so provides, the loan agreement will permit the borrower to defer payments of principal until such time that income from the project is sufficient to meet this obligation.

(f) Lenders will submit to the Manager periodic financial statements that report the status and condition of each loan guaranteed under this regulation. The Manager will prescribe the frequency, format and content of such statements. However, a report on each loan guaranty agreement entered into under this regulation shall, as a minimum, be submitted to the Manager annually on the anniversary date of the guaranty agreement. Reports will be furnished to the Manager until such time as the guaranteed portion of the loan or interest assistance is repaid.

§ 790.31 User charge.

(a) A user charge will be collected annually from the lender imposed on the guaranteed portion of the loan and computed at a rate to be set forth in the guaranty agreement. The rate shall be imposed on the anticipated average amount of the guaranteed portion of the loan that is estimated to be outstanding during the year. The user charge may be passed to the borrower by the lender and in such instances may be included in the project cost.

(b) At the time the guaranty agreement is closed, as set forth in § 790.45(d), the lender shall present to the Manager payment of the first year's user charge. Subsequent payments of the charge will be made by the lender on the anniversary date of closing. If interest assistance is in effect, payments of this charge, if passed by the lender to the borrower, will be deferred for the term of the interest assistance contract.

(c) The Administrator annually will evaluate whether the user charge rate being imposed is sufficient to cover anticipated administrative, default and interest assistance costs and, when appropriate, establish a revised rate to be applied to new guaranty agreements.

§ 790.32 Geothermal Resources Development Fund.

(a) As provided in Sec. 204(a) of Pub. L. 93-410, there is established in the Treasury of the United States a Geothermal Resources Development Fund (hereinafter referred to as the Fund), which is available to the Administrator in carrying out the loan guaranty and interest assistance program contemplated by this regulation, including the fayment of administrative expenses incurred in connection therewith.

(b) Appropriations to the Fund traare made available through legislation, o repayments made by borrowers in a.-cordance with terms and conditions 1 interest assistance contracts, or amount returned to the United States throws recoveries by the U.S. Attorney General. as provided in § 790.8, and not disburse in accordance therewith, shall, exception otherwise provided by law, be available to the Administrator for the payment lenders of principal and interest on guaranty agreements and interest assistanc. contracts made in accordance with the regulation. In addition, balances in the Fund may be used for necessary adminittrative expenses incurred by ERDA cu other Federal agencies acting pursuant to ERDA direction in carrying out the provisions of this regulation.

179

(c) In the event of a default, the Manager may enter into contracts as required to preserve the collateral for the loan and to complete unfulfilled environmental requirements. The cost of succontracts may be charged to the Fund

(d) In the event that interest essistance payments and default payments chhaust balances in the Fund, the Administrator will promptly seek to obtain sppropriations as are authorized.

(e) Moneys in the Fund not needed for current operations may, with the approval of the Secretary of the Treasury, be invested in bonds or other obligations of, or guarantees by, the United States.

(f) Not less than ten percent of the amount available for loan guarantee. during a fiscal year will be allocated ! guarantees on loans to small public an. private utilities and small independent. owned and operated businesses, as c. fined in § 790.5. The Administrator, a his discretion, may adjust the allocatio reserved for small concerns. To the et tent that guarantees on loans to qualue. small concerns are not issued within : months following the beginning of eac fiscal year, the uncommitted allocation of loan guarantees for small concern at the discretion of the Administrate may become available on an unrestricte hasis.

§ 790.33 Project monitoring.

The guaranty agreement shall providing that employees and representatives of ERDA shall, with the Manager's approval, have access to the project state. The lender, to the extent lawful approximation related to the project as is necessary to permit the Manager to determine technic progress, soundness of financial condition, management stability, compliant with environmental protection requirements, and other matters pertinent to the guaranty.

§ 790.34 Loan disburscments by lender

Unless otherwise provided in the guaranty agreement, the lender shall nemake any disbursement on the loar until:

(a) It has followed notification requirements as set forth in \$ 790.30(c) (1)

FEDERAL REGISTER, VOL. 41, NO. 103-WEDNESDAY, MAY 26, 1976

and (2) and has received written notice from the Lianager that disbursement is approved; and,

(b) It has received from the borrower satisfactory documentary evidence, as provided in § 790.35, that funds requested will be used to pay the borrower's costs incurred or to be incurred for the project.

§ 790.35 Satisfactory documentary evi-

The borrower shall furnish to the lender a written statement in support of each request by the borrower for loan disbursements, setting forth in such detail as the lender or Manager may require the purposes for which disbursement is requested and an attestation that such disbursements will be used only for such purposes. Signature on the requesting document shall be made by a person authorized to order the expenditure of the borrower's funds.

§ 790.36 Withdrawal of guaranty.

(a) The Administrator, may, upon the written recommendation of the Manager, terminate the guaranty by written notice to the lender and the borrower if the Manager finds that:

(1) Initiation of activity on the project has not occurred within the period of time set forth in the guaranty agreement. Within sixty days after termination under this circumstance, the Manager shall reimburse to the lender the full amount of the user charge paid by the lender if the charge has not been passed to the borrower;

(2) There is non-compliance on the part of the borrower or the lender with material terms and conditions set forth in either the loan agreement or the guaranty agreement, other than those concerning initiation of activity as referred to in paragraph (a) (1) of this section; or,

(3) There is failure by the borrower to acquire capital from intended sources, as provided in § 700.21(a) (16), and the borrower is unable to acquire alternate sources within a reasonable time as may be approved by the Manager.

(b) If the borrower tails to acquire capital from intended or alternate sources, or fails to complex with material terms and conditions set forth in the loan or guaranty agreement, the Manager shall notify the borrower and the lender that the guaranty may be reduced to the amount that has been disbursed by the lender as of the date of the notice. Disbursements made by the lender after such notification is received will not be covered by a guaranty.

(c) If the lender fails to comply with any material term or condition set forth in the guaranty or loan agreement, the guaranty may be terminated. Notice of the Manager's finding that, a material term has not been complied with shall be served by the Manager upon the borrower and the lender. Following notification, the borrower will be allowed reasonable time to acquire a substitute lender that is capable of complying with provisions in this regulation. If the borrower obtains a substitute lender satisfactory to the Administrator, a new guaranty agreement will be negotiated.

Upon issuance of the new guaranty to the substitute lender, the original lender shall be reimbursed by the borrower for unpaid principal outstanding and accrued interest.

§ 790.37 Default and demand.

(a) If the borrower defaults in making payment of principal or interest within the time period allowed in § 790.30(c) (3) and the lender has complied with the requirements placed on it as set forth in §§ 790.30 and 760.34, the lender may make demand in writing upon the Manager for payment pursuant to the guaranty, subject to the conditions described in paragraphs (b), (c) and (d) of this section.

(b) The Manager shall, pursuant to the provisions of \S 790.7, determine whether an interest assistance contract shall be executed. In the event that interest assistance is not warranted, the Manager shall so notify the Administrator and the lender. The lender shall make available without delay such documents and certifications as the Manager may reasonably require evidencing the lender's compliance with notification provisions of the guaranty agreement.

(c) Upon default by the borrower and notification by the lender, and to the extent that sufficient reserves exist in the Geothermal Resources Development Fund: (i) upon approval of the Admunistrator, the Manager shall, within sixty days after receipt of such documents. pay to the lender on a proportionate basis or in full, whichever the guaranty agreement provides, the guaranteed amount of unpaid principal and accrued interest outstanding at the date of default; and (ii) during the period beginning from receipt of such documents and until payment is made by the Manager, interest payable by the United States will accrue on the guaranteed debt at a rate to be determined by the Secretary of the Treasury taking into consideration current average market yields on outstanding short-term Treasury securities.

(d) The lender shall, concurrently with payment in full of all amounts guaranteed by the United States, acsume to the United States and transfer and deliver to the Manager the loan documents, together with all collateral documents evidencing any and all security for and guarantees of the loan then held by the lender as set forth in the loan or guaranty agreement.

§ 790.38 Preservation of collatoral.

Upon default by the borrower, the holder of collateral associated with the project shall take actions such as the Manager may reasonably require to provide for the care, preservation, and maintenance of such collateral so as to achieve maximum recovery upon liquidation of c collateral, security and guarantees for the loan. Except as provided in §5 790.37 and 790.40, the lender shall not waive or relinguish, without the consent of the Manager, any collateral or guaranty for the loan to which the Government would be subrojated upon payment under the guaranty agreement to the lender.

§ 790.39 Treatment of payments.

When the lender holds a guaranteed and non-guaranteed portion of a loan, payments of principal mide by the borrower in accordance with the loan agreement shall be applied by the lender to reduce the guaranteed and non-guaranteed portions of the loan on a proportionate basis.

§ 790.10 Assignment and incontestability.

(a) Except as may be required by law, the lender may assign to another lender rights and obligations under the loan or guaranty agreement only with the prior written consent of the Administrator.

(b) The lender may provide other lenders with participating shares in the hoan without the prior consent of the Administrator. Written notice shall be given by the lender to the Manager and the borrower when participating shares are so provided. However, the original lender shall continue to be responsible for and perform the provisions of the guaranty agreement pertaining to the lender, unless the Administrator approves a substitute lender.

(c) The guaranty agreement shall be conclusive evidence that the guaranty and the underlying loan are in compliance with the provisions of Pub. L. 93-410 and this regulation, and that such loan has been approved and is least as to principal and interest and other terms. Such a cuaranty shall be valid and incontestable by the Government, except for fraud or misrepresentation by the helder of the obligation.

§ 790.41 Survival of guaranty agreement.

The guaranty agreement shall be binding upon the lender, the borrower and the Administrator and upon their successors and assigns and shall survive payment by the United States. No delay exfailure of the Administrator or the Manager in the exercise of any right or remedy and no single or partial exercise of any such right or remedy shall preclude any further exercise thereof; and no action taken or omitted by the Administrator or the Manager shall be deemed a waiver of any such right or remedy.

§ 790.42 Security with respect to borrower's assets.

Each loan guaranteed under this regulation will be secured by liens or assignments of rights in assets associated with the project, or such other security specified in the guaranty agreement as may be reasonably required to protect the interests of the United States. Upon default by the borrower, as set forth i§ 790.8, the Attorney General will see t recovery from the assets of the borrower that are associated with the project or specified in the guaranty agreement.

§ 790.43 Other Federal assistance.

(a) Nothing in this regulation shell be interpreted to deny or limit the barrower's right to seek and obtain othe. Federal financial assistance (e.g., contracts, grants, direct loans or guarantee). Icans). However, the total amount of Federal financial assistance, including guarantices made under this regulation, obtained by the borrower for the project, shall not exceed 75 percent of the estimated aggregate cost of the project to be undertaken by the borrower.

(b) After closing of the loan guaranty agreement, the borrower will not undertake any work in connection with the project (by contract or grant) for a Federal agency without the Manager's written finding that performance of the work will not adversely affect the borrower's ability to comply with pertinent terms and conditions in the loan and guaranty agreement.

§ 790.44 Patent and proprietary rights.

(a) Patents and other proprictary rights accruing to the borrower and resulting from the project will remain with the borrower, except as such rights shall be, in the case of default, treated as project assets in accordance with terms and conditions in the guaranty agreement.

(b) The guaranty agreement may provide that patents or other proprietary intellectual property rights utilized in or resulting from the project, which are owned or controlled by the borrower, shall be made available to other domestic parties upon reasonable terms and conditions which protect the confidentiality of information, if such action is determined by the Administrator to be in the public interest. This requirement will not be needed where the principal purpose of the loan to be guaranteed is to utilize generally available technology to determine and evaluate a new geothermal resource base, or the acquisition of rights in geothermal resources.

(c) Where the principal purpose of the loan is for research and development with respect to extraction and utilization technologies, or for the development or demonstration of new and unique facilitics or equipment, the requirements for making patents and other proprietary intellectual property available to other domestic parties shall normally be in-cluded in the guaranty agreement unless the Administrator determines, upon the recommendation of the Manager, that such implementation would either seriously impair the borrower's ability to conduct the project, seriously impair the borrower's ability to maintain a marketplace posture, or be inconsistent with the borrower's pre-existing contractual obligations. The Administrator's determination on this matter shall include consideration of whether attainment of the objectives of the geothernal loan guaranty program, as set fort's in § 790.2, will be adversely affected by this requirement

§ 790.45 Closing.

The major activities leading to the closing of the guaranty agroement inchudo the following: (a) When an application for a loan guaranty has been approved by the Administrator, the Manascer will so notify the lender and the borrower and provide them with a copy of the proposed guaranty agreement.

(b) A preclosing conference will be arranged by the Manager, if the lender or borrower requests one, to discuss the terms and conditions contained in the guaranty agreement.

(c) Requests by the lender or borrower for modification of the terms and conditions set forth in the guaranty agreement shall be submitted to the Manager, supported by such documentation and facts as would justify the requests.

(d) Immediately after agreement to terms and conditions, the Manager shall arrange with the lender and the borrower for the preparation and review of necessary documents and agree upon a date for execution of the guaranty agreement and payment of the user charge.

§ 790.46 Suspension, termination or cancellation of operations or production on federal land administered by the Secretary of the Interior.

(a) The Manager shall inform the Supervisor (as defined in 30 CFR 279.2(c)) when a loan guaranty is approved involving a Federal lease, so as to provide for future coordination of the loan guaranty program and lease administration.

(b) Under regulations issued by the Department of Interior, a leaseholder may, as provided in 43 CFR 3205.3-8 and 30 CFR 270.17, apply for suspension of operations or production, or both under a producing geothermal lease (or for relief from any drilling or producing requirements of such a lease). When a loan guaranty has been issued under this regulation for a project to be conducted by a qualified borrower who is a lessee under the above cited regulation, the borrower shall submit the suspension application to the Manascr, together with a statement setting forth complete information showing the effect of such suspension on the borrower's ability to comply with terms and conditions set forth in the loan agreement. The Manager will notify the borrower in those situations when approval of the application might cause default by the borrower. Except in cases where potential environmental safety or reservoir damage is imminent, the borrower shall obtain the Manager's approval prior to submitting a suspension application to the Supervisor.

(c) 43 CFR 3204.3 requires that each geothermal lease issued by the Department of the Interior provide for the readjustment of terms and conditions at not less than 10-year intervals beginning 10 years after the date geothermal steam is produced. When a guaranty under this regulation has been issued for a loan on a project to be conducted by a borrower who is a lessee, and the borrower files an objection to any proposed readjustment with the Authorizod Officer (as defined in 43 CFR 3000.0-5(f)) a copy of the objection shall be submitted without delay by the borrower to the Manager. The Manager shall forward a copy of the objection to those lenders concerned, and shall consult with the Authorized Officer regarding any final action by the Authorized Officer which might terminate the lease. The Manager shall prepare an assessment on the effect of the proposed readjustment of lease terms and conditions that would cubstantially limit the borrower's ability to comply with the terms and conditions set forth in the loan agreement. The Manager shall forward his assessment in writing to the Administrator, the Authorized Officer and the Supervisor.

(d) Upon receipt by the lessee of notice of a proposed cancellation of a lease by the Authorized Officer, the lessee with a loan guaranteed under this regulation will provide the Manager and the lender with notice of such proposed action. Upon receipt of such notice the Manager will consult with the Supervisor and Authorized Officer for the purpose of determining whether the public interest can best be served by an acceptable alternative arrangement, such as obtaining assignments for a party qualified to hold geothermal leases who is a qualified borrower and who is willing to assume the original lessee's loan agreement and related undertaking, so that operation and production can continue.

(e) If default is likely to occur as a result of termination or cancellation of a lease, the Manager shall request the Supervisor or the Authorized Officer to rescind the lesse's privilege of removing assets from the premises, as provided in 43 CFR 3244.5.

§ 790.47 Appeals.

All decisions by the Manager relating to disputes arising under a guaranty agreement or loan agreement made under and entered into pursuant to this regulation shall be in writing. The borrower or lender, as applicable, may request the Manager to reconsider any such decision. If not satisfied with the final decision made by the Manager, the borrower or lender, upon receipt of such written decision, may appeal the decision within 30 days, in writing, to the Chairman, Board of Contract Appenis (EBCA). Energy Research and Development Administration, Washington, D.C. 20545. That Board when functioning to resolve such loan guaranty disputes, shall proceed in the same general manner as when it presides over appeals involving contract disputes. The decision of the Board with respect to such appeals shall be the final decision of the Agency.

Bigned at Washington, D.C., this 25th day of May, 1976.

ROBERT C. EFAMANS, Jr., *Adriinistrator*. [FR Doc.76-15152 Filed 5-55-75;8:45 am]

APPENDIX I

AMENDMENTS TO THE GEOTHERMAL RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT, AND DEMONSTRATION ACT

92 STAT. 86

aote.

TITLE V-AMENDMENTS TO THE GEOTHERMAL ENERGY RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT, AND DEMON-STRATION ACT

SEC. 501. As used in this title-

- Definitions (1) the term "Act" means the Geothermal Energy Research, Development, and Demonstration Act of 1974 (88 Stat. 1079) ; and 30 USC 1101
 - (2) the term "Administrator" means the Administrator of the Energy Research and Development Administration.
- SEC. 502. Section 101(b) of the Act is amended-30 USC 1121.

(1) by striking out subparagraph (E) of paragraph (1) and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"(E) the Assistant Administrator of the Energy Research and Development Administration for Solar, Geothermal, and Advanced Energy Systems;"

- (2) by striking out the period at the end of paragraph (1) and inserting in lieu thereof a semicolon;
- (3) by adding at the end of paragraph (1) the following new subparagraphs:

"(G) an Assistant Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency;

"(II) an Assistant Secretary of Treasury; and

"(I) an Assistant Secretary of Agriculture."; and (4) by striking out "one member of the Project" in paragraph

Chairman (2) and inserting in lieu thereof "the Assistant Administrator of

the Energy Research and Development Administration for Solar, Goothermal, and Advanced Energy Systems". 30 USC 1123. Sic. 503. Section 103(b)(4) of the Act is amended by inserting the

phrase "or administrative regulations" after "legislation", and by inserting ", environmental and taxing" after "leasing" Sac. 504. Section 105(e)(3) of the Act is amended by striking out

30 USC 1125. the period and inserting in lieu thereof "or such assistance would not be adequate to satisfy the goals and requirements of the demonstration program under this section."

Losa guaranty SEC. 505. Section 201(b) of the Act is amended by striking out "or" program, at the end of paragraph (3), by striking out the period at the end of establishment. paragraph (4) and inserting in lieu thereof "; or", and by adding at 30 USC 1141. the and thereof the following new paragraph :

"(5) construction and operation of a new commercial, agricultural, or industrial structure or facility or modification and operation of an existing commercial, agricultural, or industrial structure or facility, when geothermal hot water or steam is to he used within or by such structure or facility, or modification thereto, for the purposes of space heating or cooling, industrial or agricultural processes, onsite generation of electricity for use other than for sale or resale in commerce, other commercial applications, or combinations of applications separately eligible under this title for loan guarantee assistance.".

SEC. 506. Section 201(b)(4) of the Act is amended by striking out Asis, p. 86. "from" and inserting in lieu thereof "using".

PUBLIC LAW 95-238-FEB. 25, 1978

SEC. 507. Section 201(c) of the Act is amended by adding at the end Estent of thereof the following new sentence: "In the case of a guaranty for the guaranty. purposes specified in subsection (b) (5), the aggregate cost of the project shall be deemed to be that portion of the total cost of construction and operation which is directly related to the utilization of geothermal energy within the structure or facility in question, except that the aggregate cost of the project with respect to which the loan is made may be the total cost including construction and operation in cases where the facility or structure has been located near a geothermal energy resource predominantly for the purpose of utilizing geothermal energy, or as determined by the Administrator the economic viability of the project is substantially dependent upon the performance of the geothermal reservoir.". Limitation.

SEC. 508. Section 201(e) of the Act is amended-

(1) by striking out "\$25,000,000" and inserting in lieu thereof "\$100,000,000: Provided, That in the case of a guaranty under subsection (b) (5), the amount of the guaranty for any loan for a project shall not exceed \$50,000,000"

(2) by striking out "\$50,000,000" and inserting in lieu thereof "200,000,000"; and

(3) by inserting before the period at the end thereof the following: * , unless the Administrator determines in writing that a guaranty in excess of these amounts is in the national interest. Any such determination shall be submitted to the Speaker of the House and the Committee on Science and Technology of the House of Representatives, and to the President of the Senate and the Committee on Energy and Natural Resources of the Senate, accompanied by a full and complete report on the proposed project and guaranty. The proposed guaranty or commitment to guar- Finalization. antee shall not be finalized under authority granted by this Act prior to the expiration of thirty calendar days (not including any date on which either House of Congress is not in session) from the date on which such report is received by the Speaker of the House and the President of the Senate.

SEC. 509. Section 201 of the Act is further amended by adding at the Interest payment end thereof the following new subsections:

"(g) With respect to any guaranty which is issued after the enactment of this subsection by, or in behalf of, any State, political subdivision, or Indian tribs and which is either guaranteed under, or supported by taxes levied by said issuer which are guaranteed under this title, and for which the interest paid on such obligation and received by the purchaser thereof is included in gross income for the purposes of chapter 1 of the Internal Revenue Code for 1954, as unended, the Administrator shall pay to such issuer out of the fund 26 USC 1 at sog established by this title such portion of the interest on such obligations, as determined by the Administrator, in consultation with the Secretary of the Treasury, to be appropriated after taking into account current market yields (1) on obligations of such issuer, if any, or (2) on other obligations with similar terms and conditions, the interest on which is not so included in gross income for purposes of chapter 1 of said Code, and in accordance with such terms and conditions as the Administrator shall require in consultation with the Secretary of the Treasury.

"(h) The full faith and credit of the United States is pledged to the payment of all guaranties issued under this title with respect to principal and interest.

Determination transmittal to Speaker of House, President of Senate, and congressional

consultation

92 STAT. 88 PUBLIC LAW 95-238-FEB. 25, 1978

Guarantiss, fees. "(i) The Administrator shall charge and collect fees for guaranties in amounts sufficient in his judgment to cover applicable administrative costs and probable losses on guaranteed obligations, but in any event not to exceed 1 per centum per annum of the outstanding indebtedness covered by each guaranty. Fees collected under this subsection shall be deposited in the fund established by this title.

Capital market impact minimization. "(i) The Secretary of the Treasury shall insure to the maximum extent feasible that the timing, interest rate, and substantial terms and conditions of any guaranty exceeding \$25,000,000 will have the minimum possible impact on the capital markets of the United States, taking into account other Federal direct and indirect commercial geocritics activities.".

30 USC 1142. SEC. 510. Section 202 of the Act is amended to read as follows:

"DEFAULT; PAYMENT OF INTEREST

"SEC. 202. (a) If there is a default by the borrower, as defined in regulations promulgated by the Administrator and set forth in the guarantee contract, the holder of the obligation shall have the right to demand payment of the unpaid amount from the Administrator. Within such period as may be specified in the guarantee or related agreements, the Administrator shall pay to the holder of the obligation the unpaid interest on, and unpaid principal of the guaranteed obligation as to which the borrower has defaulted, unless the Administrator finds that there was no default by the borrower in the payment of interest or principal or that such default has been remedied. Nothing in this section shall be construed to preclude any forebearance by the holder of the obligation for the benefit of the borrower which may be agreed upon by the parties to the guaranteed obligation and approved by the Administrator.

Rights,

approved by the Administrator. "(b) If the Administrator makes a payment under subsection (a) of this subsection, the Administrator shall be subrogated to the rights of the recipient of such payment as specified in the guarantee or related agreements including, where appropriate, the authority (notwithstanding any other provision of law) to complete, maintain, operate, lease, or otherwise dispose of any property acquired pursuant to such guarantee or related agreements, or to permit the borrower, pursuant to an agreement with the Administrator, to continue to pursue the purposes of the project if the Administrator determines this to be in the public interest. The rights of the Administrator with respect to any property acquired pursuant to such guarantee or related agreements, shall be superior to the rights of any other person with respect to such property.

Notification to Attorney General. Payment

Payments,

contracta.

d'(c) In the event of a default on any guarantee under this title, the Administrator shall notify the Attorney General, who shall take such action as may be appropriate to recover the amounts of any payments made under subsection (a), including any payment of principal and interest under subsection (d), from such assets of the defaulting borrower as are associated with the project, or from any other security included in the terms of the guarantee.

"(d) With respect to any obligation guaranteed under this title, the Administrator is authorized to enter into a contract to pay, and to pay, holders of the obligation, for and on behalf of the borrower, from the Geothermal Resources Development Fund, the principal and interest payments which become due and payable on the unpaid balance of such obligation if the Administrator finds that---

"(1) the borrower is unable to meet such payments and is not in default; it is in the public interest to permit the borrower to PUBLIC LAW 95-238-FEB. 25, 1978

continue to pursue the purposes of such project; and the probable net benefit to the Federal Government in paying such principal and interest will be greater than that which would result in the event of a default;

"(2) the amount of such payment which the Administrator is authorized to pay shall be no greater than the amount of principal and interest which the borrower is obligated to pay under the loan agreement; and

"(3) the borrower agrees to reimburse the Administrator for Reimbursement such payment on terms and conditions, including interest, which are satisfactory to the Administrator.".

SEC. 511. Section 204 of the Act is amended by redesignating subsection (c) as subsection (d) and inserting after subsection (b) the following new subsection (c):

obligations, issuance to Treasury. 30 USC 1144.

"(c) If at any time the moneys available in the fund are insufficient to enable the Administrator to discharge his responsibilities under this title, he shall issue to the Secretary of the Treasury notes or other obligations in such forms and denominations bearing such maturities, and subject to such terms and conditions, as may be prescribed by the Secretary of the Treasury. This borrowing authority shall be effective only to such extent or in such amounts as are specified in appropriation Acts. Such authorizations may be without fiscal year limitations. Redemption of such notes or obligations shall be made by the Admin-' Redempt istrator from appropriations or other moneys available under this section. Such notes or other obligations shall bear interest at a rate Interest rate determined by the Secretary of the Treasury, which shall not be less than a rate determined by taking into consideration the average market yield on outstanding marketable obligations of the United States of comparable maturities during the month preceding the issuance of the notes or other obligations. The Secretary of the Treasury shall purchase any notes or other obligations issued hereunder and for that purpose he is authorized to use as a public debt transaction the proceeds from the sale of any securities issued under the Second Liberty Bond Act, as amended, and the purposes for which securities may be 31 USC 774. issued under that Act are extended to include any purchase of such notes or obligations. The Secretary of the Treasury may at any time sell any of the notes or other obligations acquired by him under this Sale. subsection. All redemptions, purchases, and sales by the Secretary of the Treasury of such notes or other obligations shall be treated as nublic debt transactions of the United States.".

SEC. 512. Title II of the Act is further amended by adding at the end thereof the following new section :

"COMMUNITY IMPACT ASSISTANCE

"Sec. 205. (a) The Administrator, for any project which has a 30 USC 1145. guarantee under this title of not less than \$50,000,000 and which will have an intended operating life of not less than five years to satisfy the purposes under this title for which the guarantee has been made, shall endeavor to insure that, taking into consideration appropriate local community action and all reasonably available forms of assistance under this section and other Federal and State statutes, that the impacts resulting from the proposed project have been fully evaluated by the borrower, the Administrator, and the Governor of the affected State, and that effective steps have been taken or will be taken in a timely manner to finance community planning and development costs resulting from such project under this section, if applicable under

92 STAT. 90

PUBLIC LAW 95-238-FEB. 25, 1978

State and local actions, review.

30 USC 191.

other provisions of law, or by other means. When the project will be located on leased Federal lands, the Administrator shall specifically review State and local actions under section 9(a) of the Mineral Leasing Act Amendments of 1976 (Public Law 94-377) and insuro that any funds made available to the State pursuant to such section 9(a) are used to finance such planning and development costs before any Federal assistance under subsection (c) of this section is considered or authorized.

"(b) The Administrator, for projects not included under subsection (a), may in his discretion consider the community impacts which may result from such projects, and may take such actions, under authority directly available to him under other statutes or in coordination with other Federal agencies or the State, as he considers necessary and appropriate to insure timely and effective planning and financing for such community impacts.

"(c) (1) In order to discharge his responsibilities under subsection (a), and in accordance with such rules and regulations as the Administrator in consultation with the Secretary of the Treasury shall prescribe, and subject to such terms and conditions as he deems appropriate, the Administrator is authorized, for the purposes of financing essential community development and planning which directly result from, or are necessitated by, a project under subsection (a), to-

Paymenta. guarantees and ommitments.

Suma

advancement

Tax abates

Limitation

credite

"(A) guarantee and make commitments to guarantee the payment of interest on, and the principal balance of, obligations for such financing issued by eligible States, political subdivisions, or Indian tribes.

"(B) guarantee and make commitments to guarantee the payment of taxes imposed on such project by eligible non-Federal taxing authorities which taxes are earmarked by such authorities to support the payment of interest and principal on obligations for such financing, and "(C) require that the qualified borrower receiving assistance

for a project under this section advance sums to eligible States, political subdivisions, and Indian tribes to pay for the financing of such development and planning: Provided, That the State, political subdivision, or Indian tribe agrees to provide tax abatement credits over the life of the project for such payments by such applicant.

"(2) No guarantee or commitment to guarantee under paragraph (1) of this subsection shall exceed \$1,000,000.

Defaults, tax (8) In the event of any default by the borrower in the payment of payment. taxes guaranteed by the Administrator under this section, the Administrator shall pay out of the fund established by this title such taxes at the time or times they may fall due, and shall have by reason of such payment a claim against the borrower for all sums paid plus interest Consultation

(4) If after consultation with State, political subdivision, or Indian tribe, the Administrator finds that the financial assistance programs of paragraph (1) of this section will not result in sufficient funds to carry out the purposes of this subsection, then the Administrator may-

Loans "(A) make direct loans to the eligible States, political subdivisions, or Indian tribes for such purposes: Provided, That such loans shall be made on such reasonable terms and conditions as the Repaymont, Administrator shall prescribe : Provided further, That the Adminwaiver. istrator may waive repayment of all or part of a loan made under this paragraph, including interest, if the State or political subdivision or Indian tribe involved demonstrates to the satisfaction

PUBLIC LAW 95-238-FEB. 25, 1978

92 STAT. 91

of the Administrator that due to a change in circumstances there will be net adverse impacts resulting from such project that would probably cause such State, subdivision, or tribe to default on the loan: or

"(B) require that any community development and planning costs which are associated with, or result from, such project, and which are determined by the Administrator to be appropriate for such inclusion, shall be included in the aggregate costs of the project.

"(5) The Administrator is further authorized to make grants to Grans. States, political subdivisions, or Indian tribes for studying and planning for the potential economic, environmental, and social consequences of projects and for establishing related management expertise.

"(6) At any time the Administrator may, in consultation with the Debt obligations, redemption Secretary of the Treasury, redeem, in whole or in part, out of the fund established by this section, the debt obligations guaranteed or the debt Consultation obligations for which tax payments are guaranteed under this subsection.

"(7) When one or more States, political subdivisions, or Indian tribes would be eligible for assistance under this subsection, but for the fact that construction and operation of the project occurs outside its jurisdiction, the Administrator is authorized to provide, to the greatest extent possible, arrangements for equitable sharing of such assistance.

"(8) Such amounts as may be necessary for direct loans and grants pursuant to this subsection shall be available as provided in annual authorization Acts.

"(9) The Administrator, if appropriate, shall provide assistance in Federal share. the financing of up to 100 per centum of the costs of the required community development and planning pursuant to this section.

"(10) In carrying out the provisions of this section, the Administra- Facility title tor shall provide that title to any facility receiving financial assistance under this section shall vest in the applicable State, political subdivision, or Indian tribe, as appropriate, and in the case of default by the borrower on a loan guarantee made or committed under subsection (b) of this section, such facility shall not be considered a project asset for the purposes of section 202 of this Act.

"(11) The Administrator shall not use his authority under this subsection to provide Federal assistance unless any Federal funds transferred pursuant to section 9(a) of the Mineral Leasing Act Amendments of 1976 (Public Law 94-377) to the State from the lease 30 USC 191. of Federal land for or associated with the project have been or, with assurance, will be committed, to the maximum extent allowable under Federal statutes, to financing such essential community development or planning directly resulting from, or necessitated by, a project on leased Federal lands.".

Ante. p. 88

ω CЛ

APPENDIX J

の一部である

GEOTHERMAL RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT FUND

BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 1979

Geothermal Resources Development Fund

For carrying out the Loan Guarantee and Interest Assistance Program as authorized by the Geothermal Energy Research, Development, and Demonstration Act of 1974, \$15 million to remain available until expended: provided that the indebtness shall not exceed the aggregate of \$300 million. Provided further, that after September 2, 1984, no part of this or any other appropriation for the purposes of the Loan Guarantee and Interest Assistance Program shall be available for obligation (Public Works for Water Power Development and Energy Research Appropriation Act, 1978)

Program and Financing (in thousands of dollars)

Identification Code 89-0206-0-1-271

	1977 actual	<u>1978 est.</u>	<u>1979 est.</u>
Program by activities:			
Production, demonstration, and distribution (program costs, funded)	635	44,345	1,990
Change in selected resource (undelivered resources)	es <u>10</u>	10	10
10.00 Total obligations (object class 25.0)	645	44,355	2,000
Financing:	1977	1978	1979
21.40 Unobligated balance available, start of year		29,355	-2,000
24.40 Unobligated balance available, end of year	29,355	2,000	
40.00 Budget authority (appropriation)	30,000	15,000	

	1977	1978	1979
Relation of obligations as outlays:			
71.00 Obligations incurred, net	645	42,355	2,000
72.40 Obligations balance, start of year		326	36,081
74.40 Obligations balance, end of year	-326	-36,081	-32,081
90.00 Outlays	319	6,600	6,000

Production demonstration and distribution - to make available the financial resources needed for commercial development of geothermal energy, DOE is administering a Federal loan guaranty program. The objectives of the loan guarantee program are: 1) to encourage and assist the private sector to accelerate development of geothermal resources by minimizing lender's financial risk associated with the introduction of new technology; and 2) to develop normal borrower-lender relationships that will in time encourage the flow of credit without the need for Federal assistance. Implementation of the loan guarantee program is coordinated closely with the Department of Interior's Geothermal Leasing Program and with DOE's research and development effort.

The Status of the loan guarantee program authority is provided below:

Loan Guarantees (in thousands of dollars)

	1977 actual	1978 est.	1979 est.
Balance of aggregate auth- orization, start of year		190,950	215,950
Increase in aggregate authorization	200,000	100,000	
Guarantees made	9,050	75,000	12,500
Balance of aggregate authorization, end of year	190,950	215,950	203,450

The new loan guarantees totaling \$12,500 thousand planned for 1979 will be used to provide incentives for resource development and nonelectric projects.

Source: Executive Office of the President, Office of Management and Budget, Washington, D.C.



APPENDIX K

LOAN GUARANTY APPLICATION FORM

		OMB No. 38R-01
Form ERDA-634 (9-76) U.S. ENERGY RESEARCH DEVELOPMENT ADMINIST APPLICATION FOR LOAN (Geothermal Project Use additional sheets as necessary for is is insufficient space.	A AND RATION GUARANTY (s) tems for which there	For Government Use PROJECT NAME: PROJECT NUMBER: DATE RECEIVED: ERDA FIELD OFFICE:
	I. NAME OF APPLICANTS	
The following applicants request a Federal guaranty for a 1. LENDER	loan as hereinafter described:	2. BORROWER
a. NAME	a. NAME	
b. ADDRESS (street and number; city, state and ZIP code)	b. ADDRESS (S	treet and number; city, state and ZIP code)
C. DESCRIPTION OF PRIMARY BUSINESS	C. TYPE OF OR	GANIZATION: (e.g., Corporation, Partnership, Etc.)
c. DESCRIPTION OF PRIMARY BUSINESS The lender and the borrower respectively authorize the in any guaranty contract executed between ERDA and the lend 1. FOR THE LENDER	c. TYPE OF OR II. AUTHORITY TO ACT ndividuals designated below to der and borrower:	GANIZATION: (e.g., Corporation, Partnership, Etc.) act in their behalf under the terms and conditions of 2. FOR THE BORROWER
c. DESCRIPTION OF PRIMARY BUSINESS The lender and the borrower respectively authorize the in any guaranty contract executed between ERDA and the lend 1. FOR THE LENDER a. NAME	c. TYPE OF OR II. AUTHORITY TO ACT ndividuals designated below to der and borrower: a. NAME	IGANIZATION: (e.g., Corporation, Partnership, Etc., act in their behalf under the terms and conditions of 2. FOR THE BORROWER
c. DESCRIPTION OF PRIMARY BUSINESS The lender and the borrower respectively authorize the ir any guaranty contract executed between ERDA and the lend 1. FOR THE LENDER a. NAME TITLE	c. TYPE OF OR II. AUTHORITY TO ACT ndividuals designated below to der and borrower: a. NAME TITLE	IGANIZATION: (e.g., Corporation, Partnership, Etc., act in their behalf under the terms and conditions of 2. FOR THE BORROWER
c. DESCRIPTION OF PRIMARY BUSINESS The lender and the borrower respectively authorize the in any guaranty contract executed between ERDA and the lend 1. FOR THE LENDER a. NAME TITLE b. ADDRESS (street and number, city, state and ZIP code)	c. TYPE OF OR II. AUTHORITY TO ACT individuals designated below to der and borrower: a. NAME TITLE b. ADDRESS (3)	IGANIZATION: (e.g., Corporation, Partnership, Etc., act in their behalf under the terms and conditions of 2. FOR THE BORROWER street and number, city, state and ZIP code)
c. DESCRIPTION OF PRIMARY BUSINESS The lender and the borrower respectively authorize the in any guaranty contract executed between ERDA and the lend 1. FOR THE LENDER a. NAME TITLE b. ADDRESS (street and number, city, state and ZIP code) c. TELEPHONE	c. TYPE OF OR II. AUTHORITY TO ACT individuals designated below to der and borrower: a. NAME TITLE b. ADDRESS (A c. TELEPHONE	AGANIZATION: (e.g., Corporation, Partnership, Etc., act in their behalf under the terms and conditions of 2. FOR THE BORROWER street and number, city, state and ZIP code)
c. DESCRIPTION OF PRIMARY BUSINESS The lender and the borrower respectively authorize the in any guaranty contract executed between ERDA and the lend 1. FOR THE LENDER a. NAME TITLE b. ADDRESS (street and number, city, state and ZIP code) c. TELEPHONE III. DES	c. TYPE OF OR II. AUTHORITY TO ACT ndividuals designated below to der and borrower: a. NAME TITLE b. ADDRESS (A c. TELEPHONE SCRIPTION OF THE BORROW	AGANIZATION: (e.g., Corporation, Partnership, Etc., act in their behalf under the terms and conditions of 2. FOR THE BORROWER street and number, city, state and ZIP code;
c. DESCRIPTION OF PRIMARY BUSINESS The lender and the borrower respectively authorize the ir any guaranty contract executed between ERDA and the lend 1. FOR THE LENDER a. NAME TITLE b. ADDRESS (street and number, city, state and ZIP code) c. TELEPHONE III. DES 1. DATE BORROWING COMPANY WAS ESTABLISHED (month, year)	c. TYPE OF OR II. AUTHORITY TO ACT ndividuals designated below to der and borrower: a. NAME TITLE b. ADDRESS (A c. TELEPHONE SCRIPTION OF THE BORROW 2. PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BU	AGANIZATION: (e.g., Corporation, Partnership, Etc.) act in their behalf under the terms and conditions of 2. FOR THE BORROWER street and number, city, state and ZIP code) WER USINESS (city, state)

191

4. IF THE BORROWER IS A SUBSIDIARY OR AFFILIA	TE OF ANOTHER ORGANIZA	TION, COMPLETE a-d BELOW	
a. NAME OF PARENT OR AFFILIATE	b. ADDRESS		
C. NAME AND TITLE OF CONTACT OFFICIAL FOR PA	ARENT OR AFFILIATE	d. TELEPHONE	
5. PRINCIPAL OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS OF THE BE	ORROWER ASSOCIATED WITH	THE PROJECT	

5. IF THE PROJECT IS A JOINT VENTURE OR GENERAL OR LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, COMPLETE - BELOW				
a. NAMES OF ALL PARTNERS OR JOINT VENTURERS NOT LISTED IN 1, 2 ABOVE:	b. ADDRESS			
C. NAME AND TITLE OF CONTACT OFFICIAL FOR EACH PARTNER OR JOINT VENTURER LISTED IN III, 6, a:	d. TELEPHONE NO. OF CONTACT OFFICIAL			

. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE SCOPE AND EXTENT OF ANY PARTNERS' OR JOINT VENTURERS' ROLE IN THE PROJECT:



 $\mathcal{F}(z,z)$

IV. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

1. DATE PROJECT IS TO BE INITIATED	2. SCHEDULED COMPLETION DATE

3. BRIEF DESCRIPTION INCLUDING LOCATION AND CURRENT STATUS OF PROPOSED PROJECT

4. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF ASSETS TO BE OFFERED AS SECURITY FOR THE GUARANTEED LOAN:

5. DATE CONTINUOUS OPE PROJECT IS ANTICIPATE	RATING REVENUE I D TO BEGIN:	FROM THE		6. ANTIC	IPATEI	D AVERAGE ANNUAL PI nw hours or equivalent):	RODUCTION OF USEFUL
7. SOURCE OF PROJECT IN	COME					<u> </u>	
a. Names and Addresses of	Potential Customers	b. N	lame of	Contact Of	ficial		c. Telephone No.
B. ESTIMATED PAYMENT O	F ROYALTIES TO FI	EDERAL GO	OVERN	MENT OVE	RLIFE	TIME OF PROJECT:	
9. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF	METHOD OF CALCU	LATING RO	DYALT	IES	;		
	•	۷.	PROJE	CT FUNDIN	IG		
1. TOTAL ESTIMATED AGGREGATE COST OF PROJECT \$	2. PORTION OF P COST TO BE F GUARANTEED	ROJECT EDERALLY	3. F/ PF \$	ACE AMT. O	F 4	PORTION OF LOAN 5 TO BE GUARANTEED:	. FACE AMT, OF GUARANTY COM- MITMENTS: \$
	VI. LOAN	TERMS (at	tach co	mplete amo	tization	schedule)	
L INTEREST RATE	2. LOAN DURA- TION (years,	3. PAYMEN BEGIN (NT OF date)	INTEREST	то	4. PAYMENT OF PRIN- CIPAL TO BEGIN	5. FREQUENCY OF PAY- MENT:
	months)					(month, year)	interest: Principal:
	INCURRED TO DAT	Έ:		7. LENDE	R'S NO	N-GUARANTEED PORTIC	ON OF THE LOAN:
6. DIRECT PROJECT COSTS							
5. DIRECT PROJECT COSTS				5			
6. DIRECT PROJECT COSTS \$ 8. OTHER LENDERS SHARI	NG IN THE GUARAN	TEED LOA	N:	s nt of ioan			

VII. DESCRIPTION OF OTHER PROJECT FUNDING

I. O	ther Committed Sources of Non-Federal Funds	
	A. COMPANY NAME	d. \$ AMOUNT
		. DATE AVAILABLE
Α.	b. CONTACT OFFICIAL	1. FORM OF FUNDING
	C. TELEPHONE NO.	
	a. COMPANY NAME	d. \$ AMOUNT
_		. DATE AVAILABLE
в.	B. CONTACT OFFICIAL	f. FORM OF FUNDING
	C. TELEPHONE NO.	
. A	mount and Source of Other Federal Assistance Available or Expected 1	To Be Made Available:
	a. AGENCY NAME	d. \$ AMOUNT
_		. DATE AVAILABLE
А.	b. CONTACT OFFICIAL	f. GRANT OR CONTRACT NO.
_	C. TELEPHONE NO.	
	a. AGENCY NAME	d. \$ AMOUNT
_		. DATE AVAILABLE
В.	D. CONTACT OFFICIAL	I. GRANT OR CONTRACT NO.

VIII. ATTACHMENTS

This application will not be acted upon until all required attachments have been submitted.

List and identify all attachments made part of this application:

C. TELEPHONE NO.

NAME		SIGNATURE	TELEPHONE NO
		SIGNATORE	recertione no.
TITLE			
		X. CERTIFICATIONS	
. The LENDER at	tests that the a	above loan will not be made without a Federal guaranty becau	use:
. The LENDER at	tests that the a	above loan will not be made without a Federal guaranty becau	use:
1. The LENDER at	tests that the a	above loan will not be made without a Federal guaranty becau	use:
1. The LENDER at	tests that the a	above loan will not be made without a Federal guaranty becau	use:
a. The LENDER at	tests that the a	above loan will not be made without a Federal guaranty becau rein attests that he qualifies for preferential consideration as a	use: a small business entity as defined in 10 CF
a. The LENDER at	tests that the a R described her	above loan will not be made without a Federal guaranty becau rein attests that he qualifies for preferential consideration as a	use: a small business entity as defined in 10 CF

pon information and belief, and as to those matters they believe them to be true:					
FOR THE LENDER:		FOR THE BORROWER:			
	ł	·			
(signature)	(date)	(signature)	(date)		

The U.S. Code, Title 18, Section 1001, makes it a criminal offense to make a willfully false statement or misrepresentation to any department or agency of the United States as to any matter within its jurisdiction.



APPENDIX L

LOAN GUARANTY AGREEMENT

195 DRMFJ

LOAN GUARANTY AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT is entered into as of pursuant to Title II of the Geothermal Energy Research, Development, and Demonstration Act of 1974 (P.L. 93-410) and the DOE Loan Guaranty Regulations contained in 10 CFR Part 790, be and between:

The United States Government (hereinafter referred to as the "Government"), acting through the Department of Energy (hereinafter referred to as "DOE"), (hereinafter referred to as the "Borrower"), and (hereinafter referred to as the "Lender").

WHEREAS: Borrower is planning a project for the use of geothermal resources in ______ for ______

(hereinafter referred to as the "Project"), which it is unable to finance through usual sources, and therefore, desires to secure a Government guaranty of certain loans to be made to it by Lender, and

WHEREAS: The Lender is prepared to lend money for such project if a suitable guaranty of the government can be secured.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Borrower is able to supply a portion of the cost of the Project but needs to borrow a sum which does not exceed 75% of the aggregate cost of the Project, and its desired loan does not meet the standards of available lenders without the presence of a Federal guaranty, and

WHEREAS, DOE is prepared to provide such a guaranty of such loan on the terms and conditions outlined herein, and

WHEREAS, Lender is prepared to make such loan pursuant to such guaranty.

Loan Guaranty Agreement

- 2 -

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the covenants contained herein, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 <u>Definitions</u>. All terms used in this Guaranty Agreement shall have the meaning accorded to them in 10 CFR Part 790. Any terms not therein defined but which are defined herein or in the Loan Agreement shall have the meaning accorded to them herein or in the Loan Agreement. The following terms as used in the Guaranty Agreement shall have the following meanings:
 - A. "Guaranty" means this Guaranty Agreement.
 - B. "Loan Agreement" means the document to which this Guaranty constitutes Exhibit I and which in turn constitutes Exhibit A to this Guaranty.
 - C. "Manager" means manager of DOE's San Francisco Operations Office, or a representative who is duly and properly delegated in writing to act for him, a copy of which delegation is delivered to Borrower and to Lender, to perform the functions required of the Manager under the DOE Regulations.
 - D. "Background Patent" means a domestic patent showing an invention or discovery which is not a Subject Invention and which is owned or controlled by the Borrower at any time through the completion to this project:
 - Which the Borrower, but not the Government, has the right to license to others; and
 - (2) Infringement of which cannot reasonably be avoided upon the practice of any specific process, method, machine, manufacture or composition of matter (including relatively minor modifications thereof) to continue or practice the results of this project.
 - E. "Secretary" means the Secretary of the United States Department of Energy or a representative authorized by the Secretary.

Loan Guaranty Agreement

F. "Other Proprietary Rights" means rights in trade secrets relating to recorded information regardless of form or characteristics, or a scientific or technical nature. It may, for example, document research, experimental, developmental, or demonstration, or engineering work, or be usable or used to define a design or process, or to procure, produce, support, maintain, or operate material. It may be graphic or pictorial delineations in media, such as drawings or photographs, text in specifications or related performance or design type documents or computer software or printouts.

- 3 -

Examples include research and engineering data, engineering drawings, and associated lists, specifications, standards, process sheets, manuals, technical reports, catalog item identification, and related information. It does not include financial reports, cost analyses, and other information incidental to project administration.

G. "Background Proprietary Rights" means other proprietary rights that were developed at private expense, and utilized or incorporated in the Project.

1.2 Guaranty.

DOE by this Agreement, and subject to the terms and conditions herein set forth, does hereby guarantee and promises to pay to Lender on demand, in writing, subject to DOE's rights under Section 4.5 of this Agreement, in the lawful money of the United States of America, the amount of unpaid principal approved by DOE to be disbursed and accrued interest owing to Lender by Borrower under the terms of the Loan Agreement. DOE's obligation to Lender under this Guaranty Agreement will arise only in the event that there has been a default (as defined in Section _____ of the Loan Agreement).

1.3 Purpose.

The purpose of the project is _____

- 4 -

1.4 Term of Guaranty.

This Guaranty shall be effective ______, 19___, and shall expire upon the payment of all principal and interest owing to Lender by Borrower under the Loan Agreement (Exhibit A) unless sooner terminated in accordance with this Agreement; or as it may be mutually extended or terminated by the parties.

SECTION 2: THE LENDER'S COVENANTS

2.1 LENDER agrees that:

- A. It shall exercise such care and diligence in the disbursement, servicing, and collection of the Loan as would be exercised by a reasonable and prudent lender in dealing with a loan without a guaranty;
- B. It will not amend the Loan Agreement without prior written approval of the Manager;
- C. Without the prior written consent of the Manger, it will not grant Borrower any further extension of time over and above any period of grace for the making of any payment in whole or in part under the Loan Agreement nor, except upon the occurrence of an event of default under the Loan Agreement, will it accelerate the scheduled payments under the Loan;
- D. It will, within ______ working days after receipt by it of the financial statements required to be furnished to it pursuant to Section 4.1 (c) of the Loan Agreement, deliver or cause to be delivered to DOE copies of all such reports, together with a statement that the Bank has reviewed and evaluated the reports. The statement will include an opinion by an officer of the Lender regarding whether or not the financial statements indicate that the status and condition of the loan are such that the Borrower is in compliance with the terms of the Loan Agreement.
- E. It will notify the Manager in writing:
 - That the first disbursement on the Loan is ready to be made together with evidence from the Borrower that the Project has commenced or is about to commence;
 - (2) Of the date and amount of each disbursement under the Loan;

Loan Guaranty Agreement

- 5 -

- (3) Of any non-payment by Borrower of any principal or interest as required by the Loan Agreement, if such non-payment is not cured within the grace period, together with evidence of appropriate notifications made by it to the Borrower;
- (4) Of any failure known to it by an intended source of capital to honor its commitment;
- (5) Of any failure by the Borrower known to it, to comply with terms and conditions as set forth in the Loan Agreement or Loan Guaranty Agreement; and
- (6) When it believes that the Borrower may not be able to meet any further scheduled payment of principal or interest.
- 2.2 Lender agrees that disbursements by Lender to Borrower under the Loan shall only be made pursuant to:
 - A. A written request from Borrower to Lender stating the purpose for which the disbursement is requested in such detail as the Manager may request, and
 - B. Receipt by Lender of an attestation (signed by a person authorized to order expenditure of Borrower's funds) that such disbursements will be used only for the purpose stated in the request and to the effect that funds requested will be used by Borrower to pay Borrower's costs incurred, or to be incurred for the Project, and
 - C. Prior receipt by Lender of a written Notice from the Manager that the disbursement is approved. (Copies of items furnished in A. and B. above must be sent by Lender to the Manager prior to approval.)
- 2.3 Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement:
 - A. The Lender agrees to take such steps as may be commercially reasonable to preserve and maintain the collateral granted to it under Section ______ of the Loan Agreement, so as to achieve maximum recovery upon liquidation of the collateral.
 - B. Concurrently with payment in full of all amounts guaranteed by DOE, it will assign to the Government and transfer and deliver to the Manger the loan documents together with all collateral documents evidencing any and all security for the loan held by it.

Loan Guaranty Agreement

- 6 -
- 2.4 Lender agrees not to waive or relinquish, without the prior written consent of the Manager, any collateral or guaranty for the Loan.
- 2.5 Lender agrees to pay DOE an annual user charge of one per cent (1%) of the anticipated average amount of the guaranteed portion of the Loan that is estimated to be outstanding during the year. The first year's charge, \$______, shall be paid upon execution of this Guaranty and subsequent payments shall be made by Lender annually on the anniversay date of the execution of this Guaranty. If the Borrower does not initiate the project within sixty (60) days after the execution of this Loan Guaranty Agreement, the Manager shall reimburse reimburse to the Lender the full amount of the user charge paid by the Lender if the charge has not been passed on to the Borrower. The user charge may be passed to the Borrower by the Lender and, in such instances, may be included in the project cost.
- 2.6 The Lender may not assign to another Lender rights and obligations under the Loan or this Loan Guaranty Agreement, without the prior written consent of the Secretary. The Lender, however, may provide another Lender with participating shares in the Loans without the prior written consent of the Manager. When participating shares are so provided, the Lender shall give written notice to the Manager and the Borrower. In the event there are participating shares, the original Lender shall continue to be responsible for and perform the provisions of the Loan Guaranty Agreement pertaining to the Lender unless the Manager approves a substitute lender.
- 2.7 Lender agrees and Borrower concurs that DOE or its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any and all of its records and documents relating to the Loan, for such time periods as Lender maintains such records in accordance with its standard operating procedures.

SECTION 3: BORROWER'S COVENANTS

3.1 The Borrower agrees that it will:

- A. Initiate activity on the Project within _____ days after execution of this Agreement;
- B. Obtain all necessary permits, licenses, and approvals necessary for the performance of the Project;
- C. Comply with all laws and regulations applicable to the Project;

- 7 -

- D. Comply with requirements of 10 CFR Section 790.23, and the specific language of 10 CFR Section 790.23 (C) is hereby incorporated by reference into this Agreement;
- E. Comply with the following Federal Procurement Regulations which are listed below and by this reference incorporated into this Agreement:
 - (1) Clean Air and Water 41 CFR Section 1-1.2302.2
 - (2) Construction Equal Opportunity 41 CFR Section 1-12.803-4
 - (3) Certificate of Non-segregated Facilities 41 CFR Section 1-12.803-10 (D).
- F. Not undertake any work in connection with the Project (by contract or grant) for a Federal agency without the Manager's written finding that performance of the work will not adversely affect its ability to comply with pertinent terms and conditions in the Loan Agreement and Loan Guaranty Agreement;
- G. Acquire capital equal to at least 25% of the project costs;
- H. Make all reports described in Exhibit B, <u>Reports</u>, attached to this Agreement and by this reference made a part hereof, within the times allowed for the submittal of such reports;
- I. Notify the Manager of any deviation in Project planning, management, implementation procedures or techniques from those set forth in the Application for a loan guaranty or the Milestone Schedule which may have a significant impact on any aspect of the Project; and
- J. Consult and cooperate with DOE and its agents and representatives to resolve any problems which may arise with respect to any aspect of the Project throughout the term of the guaranteed loan.
- 3.2 During the term of this Guaranty, Borrower will:
 - A. Identify and report in writing to the Manager when a patent application on a subject invention is filed in any country, and when a patent issues on a subject invention.
 - B. Obtain prior written consent of the Manager to transfer rights to third parties in: (a) subject inventions and/or (b) other proprietary rights resulting from this Project.

Loan Guaranty Agreement

- 8 -

3.3 Borrower agrees that:

- A. Employees and representatives of DOE and other Federal agencies shall, with the Manager's approval, have timely access to the project site at all reasonable times, and will assure availability of all information within its control related to the Project to permit the Manager as is necessary to determine technical progress, soundness of financial condition, management stability, compliance with environmental protection standards and requirements, and other matters pertinent to the Guaranty. In addition, the Borrower agrees that the Manager or his duly authorized representative may have access to all its books, records and other relevant documents related to the Guaranty for a period up to three years after the conclusion of the term of this Agreement.
- B. Except as hereinafter provided in this paragraph, all information flowing from the Project will be open to public dissemination. Trade secrets, commercial and financial information, geological, geophysical, and geographical information and data (including maps) concerning wells which the Borrower makes available to DOE during the preliminary discussion or at any time throughout the duration of the Project on a privileged or confidential basis, will be so treated by DOE and, subject to Freedom of Information Act requirements, will not be publicly disclosed without prior written approval of the Borrower. In order to assist DOE in carrying out this provision, information deemed by the Borrower to fall within one of the foregoing categories shall be identified and appropriately marked by the Borrower.
- 3.4 Borrower agrees to obtain flood insurance as required by 10 CFR Section 790.24, if it is determined necessary at some future date.

SECTION 4: EVENTS OF BREACH

4.1 It is agreed that:

A. Upon a finding by the Manager that the Lender has breached any of the covenants contained in Section 2 of this Guaranty Agreement or any other material term or condition of this Guaranty Agreement or the Loan Agreement, and the breach shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days after written notice to Lender of the finding describing the material breach, the Guaranty shall be terminated and the government shall have no obligation hereunder.

Loan Guaranty Agreement

- 9 -

- B. Upon such finding and notice by the Manger of such finding, the Borrower will be allowed ______ days to acquire an approved substitute lender.
- C. Lender may continue to make approved advances as provided herein Under the Guaranty for a period of no longer than the ______ days during which Borrower may seek a substitute lender. If a substitue lender is procured during such period and a new Guaranty negotiated between DOE, Borrower and the substitute lender within such period, then this Guaranty shall not cover any Advances made after the date of issuance of the new Guaranty by DOE to the substitute lender.
- D. If a new Guaranty Agreement is not negotiated with a substitute lender within such _____ - day period, then this Guaranty shall not cover any Advances made after the end of such period.
- E. Lender may not recover any amount in excess of disbursements approved by DOE together with accrued interest thereon.
- 4.2 Upon a finding by the Manager that the Borrower is in breach of any of the covenants contained in Section 3 of this Agreement, or of any other term or condition of this Guaranty Agreement or the Loan Agreement, and the breach shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days after written notice to the Borrower of the finding describing the breach, or if an Event of Default as specified in Section ______ of the Loan Agreement has occurred, this Loan Guaranty shall be reduced to the amount approved for disbursement plus any accrued interest due on those approved disbursements as of the date the notice from the Manager is received by the Lender. Any subsequent disbursements will not be covered by the Guaranty.
- 4.3 Upon default by the Borrower and notification by the Lender, and to the extent that sufficient reserves exist in the Geothermal Resources Development Fund: (1) upon approval of the Secretary, the Manager shall, within sixty (60) days after receipt of such documents pay to the lender, the guaranteed amount of unpaid principal and accrued interest outstanding at the date of default; and (2) during the period beginning from receipt of such documents and until payment is made by the Manager, interest payable by the United States will accrue on the guaranteed debt at a rate to be determined by the Secretary of the Treasury taking into consideration current average market yields on outstanding shortterm Treasury securities.
Loan Guaranty Agreement

4.4 Upon a determination by the Manager that a default has occurred (except where interest assistance is provided as set forth in Section 4.5 below) the following shall apply with respect to patents and proprietary data:

- 10 -

- A. <u>Foreground</u>. Borrower agrees to convey to the Government, upon request, the entire right, title, and interest throughout the world in any patent applications and patents resulting from subject inventions, and other proprietary rights accruing to the Borrower and resulting from the Project. These conveyances shall be duly executed instruments and such other papers as are deemed necessary to vest in the Government the entire right, title, and interest to enable the Government to exercise full and complete ownership and control over these assets.
- B. <u>Background</u>. For a period of five years after the date of default, and upon the Secretary's determination in writing that it is in the public interest, Borrower agrees to license background patents and background proprietary rights upon reasonable terms and conditions, and under conditions to protect the confidentiality of information, to domestic third parties to continue or practice the results of the Project.
- C. <u>Borrower's License</u>. Upon conveyance to the Government of title to the above patent applications, patents and other proprietary rights referred to in Subparagraph A above, Borrower may reserve upon request a revocable, non-exclusive license in each of said patent applications, patents, or other proprietary rights, upon such reasonable terms and conditions as may be specified by DOE at the time of said request.
- 4.5 Nowithstanding any other part of this Agreement:
 - A. In the case of failure by the Borrower to make interest payments as required in the Loan Agreement, the Manager reserves the right and shall, within a period of thirty (30) days after receipt of notice of failure to pay interest, pursuant to the provisions of 10 CFR Section 790.7, determine whether an interest assistance contract shall be executed. In the event that interest assistance is not warranted, the Manager shall so notify the Secretary and the Lender. The lender shall make available without delay such documents and certifications as the Manager may reasonably require evidencing the Lender's compliance with notification provisions of the Loan Guaranty Agreement.

Loan Guaranty Agreement

- 11 -

- B. In the event interst assistance is warranted, DOE will enter into an agreement with the Borrower to pay Lender for and on behalf of the Borrower, upon the same terms and conditions provided in the Loan Agreement and the Note, interest payments then in arrears and interest payments which thereafter become due and payable on the unpaid balance of the Loan. Lender agrees to accept interest paid from DOE in lieu of the Borrower.
- 4.6 The Manager is under no obligation to exercise the rights given him in this Agreement and may, when he determines that it is in the best interest of the Government, waive or delay the exercise of any of those rights including, but not limited to, the voiding or reducing of the Guaranty.

SECTION 5: ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

5.1 Communications.

All notices, demands, or other communications shall be in writing addressed as follows:

A.	If to DOE:	Manager
		San Francisco Operations Office
		Department of Energy
		1333 Broadway
		Oakland, CA 94612
B.	If to the Lender:	

5.2 Survival of Agreement.

C. If to the Borrower:

This Guaranty Agreement shall be binding upon the Lender, Borrower, and DOE and upon their successors and/or assignees and shall survive payment by the United States. No delay or failure of the Secretary or the Manager in the exercise of any right or remedy and not single or partial exercise of any such right or remedy shall preclude any further exercise thereof, and no action taken or omitted by the Secretary or the Manager shall be deemed a waiver of any right or remedy.

- 12 -

5.3 Disputes.

Any dispute arising under this Agreement should be sent to the Manager. All decisions by the Manager relating to disputes arising under the Loan Guaranty Agreement or Loan Agreement shall be in writing. The Borrower or Lender, as applicable, may request the Manager to reconsider any such decision. If not satisfied with the final decision made by the manager, the Borrower or Lender, upon receipt of such written decision, may appeal the decision within thirty (30) days, in writing, to the Chairman, Board of Contract Appeals (EBCA), Department of Energy, Washington, DC 20545. That Board when functioning to resolve such loan guaranty disputes, shall proceed in the same general manner as when it presides over appeals involving contract disputes. The decision of the Board with respect to such appeals shall be the final decision of the Agency.

5.4 Other Loans.

It is agreed that: (1) the terms and conditions set forth in any non-guaranteed loan relating to the project shall be acceptable to the Manager, and (2) the non-guaranteed loan shall be subordinate to the guaranteed loan.

5.5 Officials Not to Benefit.

No member of, or delegate to Congress, or resident commissioner, shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement, or to any benefit that may arise therefrom; but this Section 5.5 shall not be construed to extend to this Agreement if made with a corporation for its general benefit.

5.6 Applicable Law.

Interpretation of this Loan Guaranty and the rights and obligations of the parties thereto shall be governed by the laws of the United States of America. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to modify requirements imposed on the Borrower or Lender by Federal, State, or local government agencies in connection with permits, licenses or other authorization to conduct or finance geotheraml activities. Loan Guaranty Agreement - 13 -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the United States of America, the Borrower, and the Lender(s) have extended this Agreement, intending to be legally bound thereby.

	THE UNITE	D STATES OF AMERICA	
	BY		
	TITLE		<u></u>
(Borrower)		(Lender)	
BY	BY		
TITLE	TITLE		
BY			
TITLE			



1. Contraction of All 1. Contraction of the Second Se

121

207